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Standing Committee on
PUBLIC ACCOUNTS

A&Va;ces to the eXChange fund account..........-...

00 0000000000000 000000000 Q0000000000000 000000000000

.| Agricultural Commodities Stabilization Activities..

- Audit Office,

Aircraft and equipment from U.S.eceeccesccccccccese
Air Food Caterers (Dept. of Transport)..eccecececcees
Air Food Caterers - Lease. Letter from G.A. Scott
Depﬁ} Of Transport........o.......-.............
Airport QperationS...cccececececesccccccsccsccsccscs
AnalySis of the paerll CnB-Cocoooooooooooo:ooconco
Anderson, T.D. Chairman, Canadian Pension Comm....
Approximate Costs of a Typical week's Programs in
the fall schedul€..seccescoscccoccccccsccccscnce
Armstrong, E.B. Deputy Minister, Dept. of National
Defence DND Schools in Canada...eeccsccscccccces
Armstrong, E.B. Letter to Public Accounts Committee
re Construction projects...ccccceevccccccccccccas
Armstrong, Mr. E.B. (Deputy Minister) Dept. of
AL anal DOTMACE . e crsenseosotanesesesdissls
Army Benevolent Fund...ceccececccccccccccccccssccne
Atomic Energy of Canada...cceceoccccecccccccccccces
otalf shortages..cscseseevosccscceces
solnnisensees: HRLARLLEB L sssccsvcossoseccstosccsesesd
Auditor-General's Report 1961-62. Summary of
Employees authorized for Public Service, Crown
Corporations, etCeccecccoocccccccsccsscccccoccne
Balls, H.R. Comptroller of the Treasury. Study
Paper..................................-........
Balls, H.R. Comptroller of the Treasury. Witness.
Board of Grain Commissions for Canada..eee...
Boyle, L.P.

(Dept. of Public Works)ec.oeeeococcccs
Bryce, i (Dept. of Finance)...............--...
Bussitre, E. (Canada Council).ccecccocoscosccccccs
Cameron, G.D.W. Dr. Deputy Minister, Dept. of
National Health and Welfare....cececeeccccccccse
Cmada Council..............I.l.......‘.0.....‘....
Canada Council. Balance sheets... compared 1961,
1962’ 1963000000000......'...l......‘..."......
Canada Council. Notes on the balance sheets 1961,
1962’ 196300..0.00...QOO..O.....Oo-i....'....".
Canada CounCilo WitHGSSBS.........................
Canadian Arsenals Limited...ccccccecccceccccscccces
Canadian Broadcasting Corporation. Accounts
ReCeivable—Miscellaneous........................
Canadian Broadcasting Corporation. Analysis of the
Pmoll....‘.0.......0.......'..Q.......O.......
Canadian Broadcasting Corporation. Approximate
Costs of a Typical Week's Programs in the Fall

Schedule...0..0...“..0.0....0..0......00'0...0.

12 P-5ll-13
22

12 p.513
17 p.SLB
18 p.954
13, 14

; 27 p.m9‘50

1 p.20-23

1 p.31-33
29 p.1303-7
29
27 p.1236-7
17
16
18

21
27 p.1250-2

18 p.892-911
18

19 p.966-7
12 p.511

12 p.513
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Canadian Broadasting Corporation. Auditor-Gen-
eral's report 1963 (paragraph 135).cccceccccccce
Canadian Broadcasting Corporation. Consolidation
of FacilitieS.cececccocessccnoccscsococcscccccee
Canadian Broadcasting Corporation. Film Purchase
and RentalsS..ceeecececceccoccccccccccccccccconne
Canadian Broadcasting Corporation., Operating Costs
of Radio and Television Services in English and
French LanguagesS..cceeececececscosscsscscsccccccce
Canadian Broadcasting Corporation. Programs not
available for advertising...ccceeeeeci.ceosscccces
Canadian Broadcasting Corporation. Reports of
Auditor-General...cceeeovececcscoscoccccscccccee
Canadian Broadcasting Corporation. Sale of CBC
Programs to Commonwealth Countries.....cceccccee
Canadian Broadcasting Corporation. Trustee Pension
Plan...........;......o.-oo...q-..........--....
Canadian Broadcasting Corporation. CBC Commercial
Acceptance Policy.ceececesssscccsssccscsssscones
Canadian Broadcasting Corporation. 5th report of
comnittee respectingecccecccocccsccccccssccoccce
Canadian Broadcasting Corporation. Witnesses......
Canadian Commercial Corporation. Auditor-General's
BTt Daragrapl A28 ) s« v sessnsnscocssoscsssos
Canadian Government Elevators....ccccececcecocceces
Canadian National (West Indies) Steamships Limited.
Canadian Overseas Telecommunication Corporation....
Canadian Patents and Development Limited.....c.cccee
Canadian Pension Commission. Witnesses....cccoceee
Castonguay, Nelson, Representation Commissioner.
NEENIE [ Do cis sl bbbt sovsipsvivissussosscsanseses

Coal, Inferior accepted by Dept. of National

Defencel....'...........l.0-‘."‘.....0...'0..0'

Construction of Surveys and Mapping Building, Ottawa

Breakdown of Claim and Payments.....c.ceccoceccceees
Cornwall International Bridge Company Limited......
Crawford, Dr, J.N.B. Ass't. Deputy Minister. Dept.

of ‘Veterans Affair8..cssoecsss00ss0000s000ss000s
Cromb, W.T. War Veterans Allowances Board. Letter

to Committee...................................-
witness..0.'...0....O.........l...’l....l."....
Crown Assets Disposal Corporation Auditor-General's

Report 1963.l.........'.....l.l.............l...

Fom.......0..............l....'..I..l.........

General Conditions of Sale.sececccccccccccccccns

Surplus, Report of..0..Q.Q.....‘...O....0.‘.....
Crown Assets Visposal Corporation - Witnesses......
Crown Corporations. Auditing of AccountS.....cco..

Nos.

26 p.1190-3
19 p.966-7

19 p.966-7

12 p.512

11 p.431

11 p.398-430
19 p.966-7

11 p.407; 424
11 p.431-2

19 p¢959-62
1, 12

26 p.1193-4
27 p.1327-9
26 p.1194
26 p.1194-6
26 p.1196-7
22

25 p.1145-59
3 p083-5

17 p.844
26 p.1197-9

20

24 p.1133-7
23 p.1084-93

26 p.1199-1200
6 p.197

6 p.198

6 p.195

5, 13
27 p.1270-1
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Crown Corporations, Loans to and Investments ineeees
Government of Canada EqUity Incececsecccccccccce
Crown Corporations. Other Countries compared with
Canada (Auditor General).........................
Crown Corporations. Report of Auditor-General
19636c0c0c0ccccscsccecesesccssscesscssssscccccsee
Crown-owned vehicles, unauthorized use ofeececccccccce
Custodian of Enemy Property.......o-..-............o
Customs and Excise (Dept. of National Revenue)
Witnesses fOreseccccccccecscscccscccccccsscesccecoe
D Mov Bulletin No 63/11 See Movement of Mobile
Trailer Home, Procedures fOrecescscscccccesccccccce
Defence Construction (1951) Limitedeccccccccscccccee
D N D Schools (Canada) (Dept. of National Defence)..
Davidson, Geo. F. (Sec'y of Treasury Board)eeceseccses
Davies, V.F. (CBC) COEPtrOlleroooaoooooooooooooooooo
Deletions, Recommendations for, from the v. 2 of
Public AccountSescecccsccccesccccccscoscssccsccccs
Divorcee, paymenta t0cseesecceccsscvcccccccccccscnce
Douglas, J.R. Auditor General's Officesceccsscccsse
Driedger, E.A. Deputy Minister. Dept. of Justiceces.
Dwyer, Peter (Canada Council).......................
Eighth Reporteccecccesccsscscecccccccccccccccssnsece
Eldorado Aviation Limitedesecccsccccsccccccscccccscce
Eldorado Mining and Refining Limitedeecccccccccccccce
Engineering Contractural procedures for Construction
Projects. Dept. of National Defencesceecccccceccce
Estimates, Form and Content Ofececscccccccecccccccccce
Exchange Fund Accounteceecscccscscccccsscccccccccccces
Exchange Fund Account. Report of Minister of..
Finance reccccccccccccccccscsccccccssccccccccccce
Exchange fund, advances to See Advances to the
exchange fundesesccccccescescsccccccccccccccccccsces
Export Credits Insurance Corporation................
External Aid Office. Letter from H.O. Moran,
Directorececccececccccsccccccsccsceccccccscccscccee
Faribault, Marcel (Canada COunCil)oooooocooooooooooo
Farm Credit Corporation.............................
Farmers emergency fund See Prairie Farm Emergency
Md.............................................
Fifth report........................................
Financial Administration Act and "Public Accounts®..
FOllOW-up Report....................................
Tm...................'.........................
Forbes. Ee JUdeS' Exp0n838.oo.oooooooooooooooooooo
Forbes, E. Prairie Farm Assistance Acteeeccccccesee
Fourth report.......................................
General Election Expenditures as outlined by the
Auditor Generalecescsscscscesecccocccssccccccccee

Nos.

23 po109h
23 polth‘S

26 p.ll78-81

26 p01186-1228

4 pe94-99
27 p.1252-h

2L

14 p.648-51
26 polZOO‘l
17 pe 843
10

113 12

29 p01299

3 p085) 89'90

20-23

14

18

28 p.1280-5
26 p.l201—2
26 pe1202-4

18 p.955-6
2 pebl-45
27 p.1254-7

16 po785'92

26 p0120L-6
27 p.1272-3
18
26 p01206—8
19 p.959-62
29 p.1303

1

- p025'33
2 p058-6l
3 pe71-2
18 p.8h6—52

25 p.llhl-h5
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T

Goodwin, R.W. (Dept. of Transport)..ccccesscccccces
Hays and Rudy (Messrs) Surplus Assets Disposal.....
Hees, George (Hon) President of the Montreal and
Canadian Stock Exchanges.......Witness..........
Hind, A.R. Ass't. Deputy Minister for Customs.....
Hospitalization of Veterans Orders-in-Council......
House Trailer. Procedures for Movement of ccceecece
Howell, J.G. Ass't Deputy Minister for Operations
Dept. of National Revenue..ccececccccccscsssccce
Indirect contribution towards provincial texes.....
Internal Financial Control....ccceeeeccccccccsccccce
Investments (Federal Government)eeecececccccscccces
Judges Income TaXeeeoeosoooossscscscoscccccsccossoce
Judges' Living AllOWAnCEeS...scccvessccscoccosccccne
Lalonde, Lucien (Dept. Public Works) Letter re
Construction of Surveys and Mapping Building....
Lalonde, Lucien (Dept. Public Works)... Witness....
Labarge, R.C. Ass't. Deputy Minister for Excise...
Letter. Dept. of National Health and Welfare re
unauthorized use of Departmental vehicle........
Letter re Construction of Public Building, North
Bay; Ontario.ccceseccccoccccvvcescscscssssscsccns
Re Contracts....cceeccccccccoccsssscecccsccccces
Letters to G.W. Baldwin, M.P. as chairman of
Committee Air Food Caterers DND Schools.....c.e
Loans to and Investments in Crown Corporations at
MATON' 31, 1963 sanscsscrooveccnssscsscsssncoccns
Long, Mr. G.R. Auditor General's Office....cco0cee
Martineau, Jean. Canada Council.....cccecccsccccce
Millar, B.A. Auditor General's Offic€....ccccccces
Mobile Trailer Home (House Trailer) Procedures for
Movement Of..ccievevcccccccscvssscsccsssssscssne
Moore, Trevor. Canada Council....ceoceeceececcccscce
Moran, H.O. Director General. External Aid Office.
Movement of Mobile Trailer Home, Procedures for....
National Capital Commission....ccecceccescoccccccse
National Centennial Administration.ccccececccccccece
National Defence Department Oromocto, N.B.
Comparison of kxpenditures and Revenue..........
National Film Boal'd................................
National Harbours Board.:..cccccccceccccscoccccccee
National Productivity Council...cccccccccoeccccccece
National Revenue Department Witnesses.......ceceee
Ninth Report.......................................
North Bay, Ont. Construction of Public Building.

htterOOOJ.....0.......0...........0............

Northern Ontario Pipe Line Crown Corporation.......

Nos,
15
28 p.1277-9

18 p.855-881
24 p.1117-8
28 p.1l288-9
14 p.648-51

24
1
2
9 p.259 and

10 p.330-1
2 p.58-61
2 p.58-61

17

17

24

21

p.844
p . 10/414“&5

p.1007

20
20
17 p-81+2-lb
23 p.1094
5 5,06
18

14

14 p.648-51

18

27 p.1272-3

14 p.648-51

26 p.1208-10
26 p.1210-11

19 p.964=5

27 p.1239-40
26 p.1211-16
27 p.1257-8
24, p.1110-32
29 p.1297-1307

20 p.1007

p.1111-15 i

p.3l and |
P.57 ,
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Nos.

Northern Transportation Company Limited....ccececess 26 p.1218-19
Official History First and Second World Wars. Cost.. 20 p.1010-12
0il and Gas Exploratory PermitS..eccccecececececeess 10 p.332
Operating Costs of Radio and Television Services in i

English and French LanguageS...sccccceeeccsccsees 12 p.512-13 |
Oromocto, N.B. Assistance tO...ceccecececccccccccss b p.92-4

National Defence. Information on Comparison of

Expenditures and RevVenue.........eceeeeeesccccees 19 P.96L4=5
Ouimet, Mr. J.A. (CBC) President.....ccececceeeecess 11, 12
Park Steamship Company Limited...ceeeevessccssceceee 26 p.1219
Pelletier, Paul. Deputy Minister Veterans Affairs

Letter to G.W. Baldwin, M.P. re Hospitalization

O URUBTINE - oo it s hoh s s s adas s abins epppasssvy. B8 Psli8BY
Pelletier, Paul JBept. Minister of Dept. Veterans

Affairsoll.0.00.0..0....000...0.0.I........O.'... 20
Polymer Corporation Limited and Subsidiary Companies 26 p.1219-21

Grant in lieu Of taxes...........-............... 27 p.1231-2

Post Office ActivitieB...csecccvsscccccccscscocsssse 21 Pol2hl-2
Prairie Farmers Assistance Fund., AcCt.seceesvsseenee 3 P.67-73
Prairie Farm Emergency Fund....cceceecececscecscsess 1 p.27-28,
0 000 0000 0060600000000 0060 0000000000000 00000000000000000 & pahs-h7 and
@ 00 2 000 000000 NRPRPIeRRsRERERRBRIOE R s0 000000 0B00 3 p.67-73
Public Accounts Committee 1964, Extract from Senate

DODREEE S st hr cinss K hv v Ra s AR AB s smassaesss Bf DekidO=)
Public Printing and Stationery. Dept..cecececcececess 27 P.1242-6
Public Printing and Stationery. Stores....ceccseee. 27 p.1259

Public Works Dept. Letter from Deputy Minister re
Construction of Surveys and Mapping Building,
ot T Ve ey L T (s W Brnd o Wi ity M) MNP STRINDR 1 % TR
Public Works Dept. Letter re Construction of a
Public Building, North Bay, Ont, Letter re...... 20 p.1007
REIEIOE S o s Frs s o ks snntibneniaunssnsssoassesssss 3 Pell0Bu
Public Works, Dept...Witnesses...eceececvccccccocces 17
Queen Elizabeth II Canadian Fund to Aid in Research
on the Diseases of Children.....cccecesecscescees 27 p.1261=2
Ramsay, W.A. (Dept. of Transport)...ccceececececscee 15
Recommendations from Committee for improving
compilation of "The Public Accounts of Canada"
Raclai SIL 3 Rt s st thsrennsanchasnpangecsoss 2 P.1297=1302
BEROFE IS She Dol BEBRE . cnsssstcsspsccoscosssscss & Po I
BERONE - 5 s s v pansesbnssnsnsssonas 2 P39
BRI sasndannasssvnsenssssass &1 Peld3
BOREER L. assannibopsnsesoseses IB PeBlifns2
RRERE i csadeansrivapasmsansess 17 P62
BRI o b b dsnsibosssenuveesss S0 P TGVTH
RPN s st anansbssasensassese 48 PellTT=Y
BIgNtN s cecoccsvsbsovsssensssis 28 P.1280=5
Ninthooccoonooooooooooooooono-o 29 p01297-1307
Representation Commissioner (Mr. Castonguay)........ 25 p.1ll45-59
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Return on Investments 1962-63. Interest, Dividends
and/or profits, Totals. (Canadian Government)...
Retum on Investments. Other loans and investments
(Conadian Government )..cceececsocsceccocccssosas
Revenues, Other Loans and InvestmentS....cccevvv000
Revenues, Other non-tax MiscellaneousS....ecececcoes
Richard, Louis. Pres. and General Manager Crown
Assets Disposal Corporation..eccececccoccccccees
Royal Canadian Mint Operations....cececcecececccces
Royal Canadian Mint StocKS..eeeeeccoccecesccccccces
St. Lawrence Seaway Authority...ecececececesccccccs
Scott, G.A. Deputy Minister of Transport. Letter
re Air Food Caterers....cceeeeecccecccccccscccss
Scott, G.A. (Dept. of Transport) Witness.......ee.
Seventh report..............................-......
Sim, David. Deputy Minister. Customs and Excise...
Smith, D.A. (Dept. of Transport).cec.cceeoececsese
Stokes, A.B. Auditor General's Office....cocevcees
Study Paper Prepared by the Comptroller of the
Treasury.....uo................................
Surplus Assets Disposal, Sub-committee on. Draft
Report‘.ooo-cooooaooooooooooooo.-ooocooooo--ooooo
Surveys and Mapping Building. Construction Costs...
Taylor, T.T. Dept. Veterans Affairs. Letter to
Mp, U.T. Cromb, Chairman War Veterans Allowance
mard....0'..0.0...0.0........l..lOIOC.‘....I...
Transport, Dept. of, Letter f£rom-re Air Food
Caterers...... Ce00ssssessssssssssssssnssscessses
Trueman, Dr. A.W. (Canada Council)..cececcescoccee
Unemployment Insurance Fund Spot CheckS....cccovese
ADUS®, . 0000000000000 000ss0vsossvsscssssssscccios
Administration..ceesecccciocceccsccccocscsonnass
Unemployment Insurance Fund OperationS...cccececess
United Kingdom on the form of Government Accounts..
Vehicles, unauthorized use of crown owned....ccecee
Iﬁtter FCeevecvcoccsssccscscscnsenscscsoscsscsccscccsce
Veterans Affairs, Deputy Minister. Letter to G.W.
Baldwin M.P. re Hospitalization of Veterans.....
Veterans Affairs Department...Witnesses.....ccceese
Veterans Affairs (Dept.) Letter from T.T. Taylor to
Mr. Cromb re Criminal Prosecutions -~ Recipients
of War Veterans Allowance for fraud, etC.....c..
War Veterans Allowance Board. Letter to the Commil~
tee: from Mr. COMD S S esass00s0csddoesesosssossse
War Veterans Allowances (Mr. Henderson, Auditor

%neral)..ﬂ0.................00....‘........‘...

Letter from ur. Crombsscscesccndonsoncoscsscccse

Nos.

9 p.259 and
10 p.330-1

10 p.330-1
10 p.330-1
10 p.333-4

5y 13
27 p.1246=7
27 p.1262-4 &
28 p.1290-2

17 p.842

15, 18

28 p.1277-9
2l p.1110-32
35,17, 22
26

29 p.1303-7

28 p.1277-9
17 p.84L

24 p.1138

5
18
2 p.48
2 p.49-51; 53
2 p . 51"14
29 p.1305=7
L p.94=99
20 p.1044

28 p.1288-9
20

24 p.1138
2 p.1133-4

23 p.1079-84
24 p.1133-4




s

ool

‘..‘ ’99 mut &5l
wonn $o. des bavt.b!e

u.wlk"dl‘!l‘

(o S v-r;fqna- W

PP AT Y. ‘,.1.1.517‘.

oo T T i RN

54 -5§1u~3wn*‘,u-.u-u¢-l\m
aod ik ww—ww}i .12( =00 nawel

Susue - " --v.M'l

L IR




oL S

Williamson, H.J. (Dept. of Transport).ececesecececcss
Williams, G.P. (Dept. of Public workS).o-aooooooooo
World War, First and Second Official History-Cost..
Yukon Territorial Government.cececcecececosccoccccecs

Nos,

15

17

20 p.1010-12
27 p.1266-9
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HOUSE OF COMMONS

Second Session—Twenty-Sixth Parliament

1964

STANDING COMMITTEE

ON

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS
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ORDERS OF REFERENCE

HouseE oF COMMONS,
FripAy, April 10, 1964.

mittee on Public Accounts:

Resolved,—That the following Members do compose the Standing Com-

Messrs.

Baldwin, Gendron, Ricard,
Basford, Grafftey, Rinfret,
Beaulé, Gray, Rochon,
Berger, Hales, Rock,
Cameron (High Park), Harkness, Rondeau,
Cameron (Nanaimo- Lessard (Saint-Henri), Ryan,

Cowichan-The Islands), Loiselle, Scott,
Cardiff, Mandziuk, Skoreyko,
Chaplin, McLean (Charlotte), Smith,
Coté (Chicoutimi), McMillan, Southam,
Crouse, McNulty, Stefanson,
Drouin, Muir (Lisgar), Tardif,
Dubé, O’Keefe, Tucker,
Eudes, Pigeon, Valade,
Fane, Pilon, Wahn,
Forbes, Regan, Whelan,
Frenette, Richard, Winch—>50.

(Quorum 15)

WEDNESDAY, March 11, 1964.

Ordered,—That the said Committee be empowered to examine and inquire

into all such matters and things as may be referred to it by the House; and to
report from time to time its observations and opinions thereon, with power
to send for persons, papers and records.

MonxpAay, May 4, 1964.

Ordered,—That the Standing Committee on Public Accounts be empowered
to print such papers and evidence as may be ordered by the Committee and
that Standing Order 66 be suspended in relation thereto; that its quorum be

reduced from 15 to 10 Members and that Standing Order 65(1) (e) be suspended
in relation thereto.

Fripay, May 22, 1964.

Ordered,—That the Reports of the Canada Council for the fiscal years
ended March 31, 1962 and March 31, 1963, tabled on October 10, 1962 and
on July 11, 1963 respectively, be referred to the Standing Committee on Public

Accounts in order to provide for a review thereof pursuant to section 23 of the
Canada Council Act.
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4 STANDING COMMITTEE
FripAy, May 22, 1964.

Ordered,—That the Public Accounts, Volumes I, II and III for the fiscal
years ended March 31, 1962 and March 31, 1963, and the Reports of the Auditor
General thereon, tabled on January 21, 1963 and on February 19, 1964 respec-
tively, together with the financial statements of the Canada Council for the
fiscal years ended March 31, 1962 and March 31, 1963 and the Reports of the
Auditor General thereon, tabled on October 10, 1962 and on July 11, 1963 re-
spectively, be referred to the Standing Committee on Public Accounts.

Attest.
LEON J. RAYMOND,

The Clerk of the House



REPORT TO THE HOUSE
Fripay, May 1, 1964.
The Standing Committee on Public Accounts has the honour to present its
FIRST REPORT

Your Committee recommends:

1. That it be empowered to print such papers and evidence as may be
ordered by the Committee and that Standing Order 66 be suspended in relation
thereto;

2. That its quorum be reduced from 15 to 10 members and that Standing
Order 65 (1) (e) be suspended in relation thereto.

Respectfully submitted,

G. W. BALDWIN,
Chairman

(Note,—This Report was concurred in by the House on Monday, May 4.)






MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

THURSDAY, April 30, 1964.
(1)

The Standing Committee on Public Accounts met this day at 11.05 o’clock
a.m. for organization purposes.

Members present: Messrs. Baldwin, Berger, Cardiff, Coté (Chicoutimi),
Crouse, Dubé, Fane, Forbes, Frenette, Gendron, Lessard (Saint-Henri), Loiselle,
Mandziuk, McLean (Charlotte), McMillan, Pilon, Rinfret, Rock, Rondeau, Scott,
Southam, Stefanson, Tucker, Wahn, Whelan, Winch—(26).

The Clerk attending, and having called for nominations, Mr. Berger
moved, seconded by Mr. Loiselle, that Mr. Baldwin be elected Chairman of the
Committee.

There being no further nominations, Mr. Baldwin was declared elected
as Chairman.

Mr. Baldwin thanked the Committee for the honour conferred on him
and then referred to the objective and excellent press coverage of last year’s
committee sittings.

On motion of Mr. Lessard (Saint-Henri), seconded by Mr. Tucker, Mr.
Tardif was elected Vice-Chairman.

On motion of Mr. Stefanson, seconded by Mr. Forbes,

Resolved,—That a Sub-Committee on Agenda and Procedure comprised of
the Chairman and six members to be named by him, be appointed.

On motion of Mr. Loiselle, seconded by Mr. Lessard (Saint-Henri),

Resolved,—That permission be sought from the House to print such papers
and evidence as may be ordered by the Committee.

On motion of Mr. Berger, seconded by Mr. Crouse,

Resolved,—That the Committee print 700 copies in English and 300 copies
in French of its Minutes of Proceedings and Evidence.

On motion of Mr. Rock, seconded by Mr. Southam,

Resolved,—That the Committee recommend to the House that its quorum

be reduced from 15 to 10 members.

Mr. Fane suggested that the Chairmen of the various select committees
meet and organize their sittings in such a manner as to prevent numerous
committee meetings at the same time.

Following a brief discussion concerning future proceedings, the Commit-
tee adjourned at 11.20 a.m. to the call of the Chair.



8 STANDING COMMITTEE

TUESDAY, May 26, 1964
(2)

The Standing Committee on Public Accounts met this day at 9.30 a.m. The
Chairman, Mr. G. W. Baldwin presided.

Members present: Messrs. Baldwin, Cardiff, Céte (Chicoutimi), Crouse,
Fane, Forbes, Gray, Hales, Harkness, Lessard (Saint-Henri), Mandziuk, McLean
(Charlotte), McMillan, O’Keefe, Regan, Ricard, Rinfret, Rock, Skoreyko,
Southam, Stefanson, Tardif, Tucker, Wahn (24).

In attendance: Mr. A. M. Henderson, Auditor General of Canada and Messrs.
Long, Millar, Stokes, Smith, Douglas, Crawley, Chapman and Laroche of the
Auditor General’s office.

The Chairman, after a brief introductory statement, announced the com-
position of the Subcommittee on Agenda and Procedure as follows: Messrs.
Baldwin, Tardif, Ryan, McMillan, Hales, Winch and Co6té (Chicoutimi).

The oral report of the Subcommittee on Agenda and Procedure was then
presented by the Chairman, recommending that the Committee sit on Tuesdays
and Thursdays at 10.00 a.m. and that permission be sought from the House
to establish subcommittees.

After discussion, Mr. McMillan moved, seconded by Mr. Forbes,

Resolved,—That the Committee sit at 10.00 a.m. on Tuesdays and Thursdays
and that the Chairman of this committee meet with the Chairman of the Special
Committee on Defence to co-ordinate hours of sitting.

On motion of Mr. Hales, seconded by Mr. Tucker,

Resolved,—That the Committee be empowered to appoint sub-committees,
to fix the quorum of any such sub-committee and to refer to such sub-commit-
tees any of the matters referred to the Committee; that any such sub-committee
so appointed have power to send for persons, papers and records and to examine
witnesses; to sit while the House is sitting, to adjourn from place to place, and
to report from time to time to the Committee.

The Committee recessed at 9.50 a.m. in order to proceed to the House to
hear Mr. U. Thant, Secretary-General of the United Nations, and agreed to
reconvene at 11.00 a.m. this day.

The Committee resumed at 11.05 a.m.

Members present: Messrs. Baldwin, Berger, Cardiff, Forbes, Mandziuk,
Regan, Rinfret, Rock, Southam, Stefanson, Tardif, Tucker, Wahn (13).

In attendance: Same as at 9.30 a.m. sitting.

The Chairman introduced Mr. A. M. Henderson, who made a brief statement
on matters to be considered by the Committee and referred to the function
and role of the Auditor General.

Mr. Henderson then introduced his senior officers as follows: Messrs. Long,
Millar, Stokes, Smith, Douglas, Crawley, Chapman and Laroche.

The Committee then proceeded to the consideration of the “Follow-Up
Report by the Auditor General on the action taken by departments and other
agencies in response to recommendations made by the Committee in 1963”.
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On motion of Mr. Regan, seconded by Mr. Stefanson,

Resolved,—That the Follow-Up Report of the Auditor General be printed
as an Appendix to the Minutes of Proceedings and Evidence of this day. (See
Appendix).

Mr. Henderson supplied additional information on the three introductory
paragraphs, followed by a statement on “Office of the Auditor General” dealing
with staff recruitment and was questioned thereon.

After discussion on “The Form of the Public Accounts”, on motion of
Mr. Wahn, seconded by Mr. Berger,

Resolved,—That the Steering Committee discuss the advisability of setting
up a subcommittee to consider the form of the Public Accounts and report the1r
recommendation to the Main Committee.

At 12.05 p.m., the Committee adjourned until 10.00 a.m., on Thursday,
May 28.

M. Slack,
Clerk of the Committee.






EVIDENCE
Tuespay, May 26, 1964.

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, I see a quorum. May I welcome you here.

My remarks will be very brief, because I hope we will complete certain
recommended business and then be able to have a few minutes discussion
with regard to whether or not it is our wish to reconvene after we have
adjourned before ten o’clock to hear the speech of the secretary general of
the United Nations.

First, let me say how happy I am to have you all here, particularly so
early in the morning. There is a large amount of work which this committee
has in store for it during the ensuing series of meetings. I will not say anything
more than that now, because of the pressure of time, However, to accentuate
that point, I would ask our secretary, Mr. Slack, to read the orders of
reference covering the matters the committee will have before it.

The CoMMITTEE CLERK:

Fripay, May 22, 1964.

Ordered,—That the reports of the Canada Council for the fiscal
years ended March 31, 1962 and March 31, 1963, tabled on October 10,
1962 and on July 11, 1963 respectively, be referred to the standing
committee on public accounts in order to provide for a review thereof
pursuant to section 23 of the Canada Council Act.

Fripay, May 22, 1964.

Ordered,—That the Public Accounts, Volumes I, II and III for
the fiscal years ended March 31, 1962 and March 31, 1963, and reports
of the Auditor General thereon, tabled on January 21, 1963 and on
February 19, 1964 respectively, together with the financial statements
of the Canada Council for the fiscal years ended March 31, 1962 and
March 31, 1963 and the reports of the Auditor General thereon, tabled
on October 10, 1962 and on July 11, 1963 respectively, be referred to
the standing committee on public accounts.

The CHAIRMAN: Thank you. You will see from these orders of reference
that in addition to completing our examination of the 1962 Auditor General’s
report and the public accounts, we also have, of course, the same for 1963
and the examination of the financial statements and report in connection with
the Canada Council for the two years. In addition, if time will permit, later
on, as has been the practice of this committee in the past, we may take up
one or two of the crown corporations, or more if time permits, which are
included in volume III of the public accounts. Our terms of reference referring
the public accounts to us for examination contain this right. This is a matter
to which we will have to give some consideration later on when we see to
what extent we are making progress. So, this accentuates the statement I
made earlier to the effect that there is a large job for this committee during
the ensuing period of this session.

11



12 STANDING COMMITTEE

May I now announce the composition of the subcommittee on agenda
and procedure? Besides the Chairman it includes Messrs. Tardif, Ryan,
McMillan, Hales, C6té (Chicoutimi), and Winch. In addition, under the same
arrangement which prevailed last year, Mr. Beaulé will sit in on the meetings
and report to his particular group with regard to the discussions of the steer-
ing committee.

Your steering committee met and made the following recommendations
which I would ask you to consider now: first, that we meet on Tuesdays and
Thursdays at 10 a.m. This is a change from last year when we met on
Mondays and Fridays. Of course, there will be some conflict. It was the view
of the steering committee that we put this forward for your consideration. I
will ask you to consider it before we leave this morning.

In addition, we also thought it advisable to seek permission from the house
to establish subcommittees. The reason is that it has been the experience of this
committee that there are a number of matters which lend themselves well to
treatment by subcommittees. I am thinking of such matters as the form of the
estimates, matters relating to the manner in which the public accounts them-
selves are presented, and a lot of other items which can be well treated by
means of small subcommittees sitting or meeting with the Auditor General or
his officials and representatives from various departments concerned.

Now we tried this last year but with some doubt in my mind. There is a
precedent which suggests that, while you can appoint a subcommittee, there is
some doubt as to the validity of its deliberations and whether or not it has the
right to hear witnesses, and receive documents. I only need to tell you that
this goes back to 1942-1943 when the matter was considered. At that time the
war expenditure committee decided to establish subcommittees to look into
matters, and it was decided, as a result of advice received from officials, that it
would be better to receive from the house itself authority to establish such
subcommittees.

This was, therefore, the view of your steering committee when we met
having in mind the many subjects and much work which we think can be more
competently, efficiently and effectively carried on by means of subcommittees.
The steering committee thought we should ask this main committee to make a
recommendation to the house to receive such authority.

Is there any discussion on these two particular subject matters: first, that
the committee should meet on Tuesdays and Thursdays at 10.00 a.m.? Perhaps
we can deal with that item first.

Mr. McM1LLAN: Mr. Chairman, I wonder if it has been considered meeting
at 9.30 a.m. instead of 10.00 a.m. A number of us are on the defence committee
and I think they intend to meet at 11.00 a.m. on Tuesdays and Thursdays, so we
would have just an hour and one half to spend on each committee and there
would be no overlapping.

The CHATRMAN: You would be in good condition to go into the house. Thank
you for the suggestion. I think it is an excellent one. Are there any further
comments?

Mr. HARKNESS: In the case of committees meeting regularly, has there been
any investigation of efforts to co-ordinate their times of meeting? It seems to
me that something definite should be done along that line.

The CHAIRMAN: I am informed that it has been considered by the steering
committee. You mean, has there been any co-ordination between the various
committees?

Mr. HARKNESS: Yes.
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The CHAIRMAN: I think it has been considered. I notice that the assistant
government whip, Mr. Rinfret, is present today. Perhaps he could inform us if
there has been any arrangement made to try to co-ordinate the various com-
mittees. .

Mr. RINFRET: Yes.
The CHAIRMAN: We are heading in that direction.

Mr. Rock: It does not look like it to me. The private bills committee is sup-
posed to meet within half an hour, but because of the visit today of Mr. U
Thant, it will not sit. I do not think we should leave it to the whips. There is a
sizeable staff in the committees branch all situated in the same row of offices
on the fourth floor, and surely they can always tell the chairmen “at this time
we have this committee meeting, and that time we have that committee meet-
ing”. Surely they could bring up a proper type of schedule which we could
go by.

The CHAIRMAN: Thank you.

Mr. Rock: I think those members should recommend the times which are
best for those meetings.

Mr. HARKNESS: Mr. Chairman I would suggest that the committees which
are going to be meeting regularly at the present time are this committee and
the defence committee as well as probably the external affairs committee. I do
not know of any others. If the Chairmen of those committees could get together
probably a schedule could be worked out so that there is a minimum of over-
lapping.

The CHAIRMAN: Thank you Mr. Harkness. We did have a meeting of the
chairmen of committees last session toward the tag end.

Mr. LESSARD (Saint-Henri): I think that would be the best thing to do,
Mr. Chairman.

The CHAIRMAN: May I take it, Dr. McMillan, you are in fact suggesting that
we meet at 9.30 in the morning rather than 10 o’clock on Tuesdays and Thurs-
days?

Mr. McMILLAN: Yes, since there are other meetings to be held immediately
afterward.

The CHAIRMAN: Yes.

Mr. ForBEsS: Mr. Chairman, Dr. McMillan has made that suggestion in
view of the fact that he is a member of another committee. Surely the meetings
of the various committees could be co-ordinated, as Mr. Harkness has suggested,
and thereby obviate the necessity of meeting at 9.30. I am anxious to meet
at 9.30 but when one sits in the House of Commons until 10.30 it is 11 o’clock
before one arrives home and 9.30 the following morning arrives pretty early.
I think we should co-ordinate the meetings of these committees so that we
will not have them sitting at the same time and then from 10 o’clock in the
morning would give us ample time to do the business we have before us.

The CHAIRMAN: Perhaps it would be best if someone made a motion to this
effect, then if there is any discussion or desire to amend it we can do so.

Mr. McMiLLaN: I should like to move that the chairmen of the defence
committee and public accounts committee meet in an attempt to co-ordinate
the hours of sittings in view of the fact there are a number of members of
this committee who are members of the defence committee as well.

The CHAIRMAN: Would you also suggest that we should meet at 10 o’clock
on the day of our next meeting and then arrive at some decision?

Mr. McMiLLAN: Yes, and I think we should have some co-ordination.
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The CHAIRMAN: Would you include that suggestion in your motion?
Mr. McMiILLAN: Yes.

The CHAIRMAN: Is there a seconder to the motion?

Mr. ForBEs: I second the motion.

The CHAIRMAN: Dr. McMillan has moved that we meet at 10 o’clock on
Tuesdays and Thursdays and that the Chairman of your committee meet with
the chairman of the defence committee and other committees in an attempt to
co-ordinate the meetings so as to avoid over-lapping.

Mr. LessArRD (Saint-Henri): Mr. Chairman, I think the chairmen of all
the committees should meet in an attempt to solve the problem.

The CHAIRMAN: I took the liberty of adding that suggestion to the motion
made by Dr. McMillan.

Mr. Rock: You are getting support, Mr. Chairman.
The CHAIRMAN: All those in favour of the motion?
Motion agreed to.

I declare the motion carried.

Our next subject involves permission from the House of Commons to
establish subcommittees.

Mr. HaLEs: Mr. Chairman, I think that is an excellent idea which has
proven in the past to be much better and allows committees to do the work
with greater speed. As long as the subcommittees report back to the main
committee before reporting to the House of Commons I see no danger of anything
going through which is not approved of by the whole committee.

The CHalrMAN: I think it would be obligatory that the subcommittees
report to the main committee before any further report is made. There was
some doubt in respect of the legality of subcommittees actually entertaining
witnesses, hearing evidence and examining documents without having obtained
the authority of the House of Commons to do so in the first instance. So that
there is no doubt in this regard I am suggesting we should have a motion to
this effect. I might say that the subcommittee on procedure and organization
is considering this whole question and, without anticipating, it is my hope that
that committee will come up with something in due course probably in the
general order of a reference to all committees including the right to establish
subcommittees. If I have approval for this suggestion can I take it you have
moved this, Mr. Hales?

Mr. HaLeEs: I will be glad to make that a motion, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. O’KEerFE: Mr. Chairman, in view of our experience last year in getting
a quorum even for this committee how do you expect to be able to get a
quorum for the subcommittees?

The CHAIRMAN: The subcommittees will be smaller, Mr. O’Keefe. They will
consist of some three to six or seven members. There is not the same restriction
on the times of their meeting because they can meet in between these meetings.
The committee that sat on the form of the estimates sat for several weeks and
sat in the evenings; I think there were seven members on that subcommittee
and they needed four for a quorum.

Mr. Tucker: I wish to second the motion.

Mr. REGAN: The subcommittees would deal with specific matters that
would, in due course, be reported back to the full committee?

The CHAIRMAN: Yes.
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Mr. ReEcaN: I think it is an excellent way to cover matters.

The CHAIRMAN: Matters that are technical in nature and which do not
have the same necessity for publicity can well be covered by subcommittee.
We do a tremendous amount of work in these subcommittees, as was proven
last year.

Mr. Hales, may I read a motion which I took the liberty of drafting with
the clerk?

That the committee be empowered to appoint subcommittees, to fix
the quorum of any such subcommittee and to refer to such sub-
committees any of the matters referred to the committee; that any such
subcommittee so appointed have power to send for persons, papers and
records and to examine witnesses; to sit while the house is sitting, to
adjourn from place to place, and to report from time to time to the
committee.

Mr. HaLEs: I am in agreement with that.
The CHAIRMAN: It is seconded by Mr. Tucker.

Are you ready for the question, gentlemen?
Will all those who are in favour of the motion please indicate. Contrary?

Motion agreed to.

Gentlemen, it is now a quarter to ten. Mr. Henderson has come here with
a large number of his officials. We hope there might be some time to hear
them after we have heard the secretary general of the United Nations at ten
o’clock. I understand the secretary general’s speech is to last for half an hour.

You have had handed to you the follow up report that will form the subject
of our discussion. Is it your wish that we should reconvene and ask Mr.
Henderson and his officials to come back here at a time which you think will be
suitable? May I suggest eleven o’clock?

Mr. Gray: Mr. Chairman, I think there is no reason why the committee
should not reconvene, but I would like to point out that the Minister of Industry
has invited members taking part in the designated area program to attend
a special meeting in which the workings of the agency concerned are to be
explained in some detail. I merely draw that to your attention though, of course,
there may be many members of this committee who are not concerned with
that.

Mr. FANE: The defence committee meets at eleven o’clock and some of us
are concerned with that.

The CHAIRMAN: Would any members be free to come back here at eleven
o’clock?
Some hon. MEMBERS: Yes.

The CHAIRMAN: It appears from the number of members who have just
raised their hands that we will get a quorum. I suggest that we should get
under way with the report at eleven o’clock, have it tabled, and have Mr.
Henderson introduced in order to get the matter started. We have a great deal
of work and we did find last year that we were rushing things at the end.
I think there is too much importance attached to the material we are dealing
with to try to rush it again. Are you agreeable to reconvening at eleven
o’clock?

Agreed.

The meeting is adjourned until eleven o’clock this morning.
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AFTER RECESS

The CHAIRMAN: The meeting is called to order. I thank you for your haste
in getting back here as early as you all did so that we can make some progress
with our deliberations.

First, might I introduce to you Mr. Maxwell Henderson, the Auditor Gen-
eral of Canada who appears before us in two capacities. It is his report which
we consider with respect to the matters contained in his report; these are our
points of embarkation in dealing with all of the subjects which we do discuss.
In addition, Mr. Henderson and members of his staff are witnesses in the sense
that they corroborate and amplify matters in the report on which members of
the committee might wish to question them.

Very briefly, I might say that Mr. Henderson, who was born in England,
has had a long and distinguished career as a chartered accountant both in
industry and during various phases of government employment. He has been
Auditor General since 1960, and during that time has brought down a number
of reports in his capacity as Auditor General. As such he deals not only with
the accounting end of it but with the parliamentary audit, to make sure that
money is properly accounted for and is also spent in accordance with parlia-
mentary directions. Mr. Henderson and members of his staff are usually with
us continuously. I am going to introduce him to you now and ask him if he
will, in turn, after he has made some comment, introduce the members of his
staff who are here with him. All of the members of his staff are not with us on
all occasions but only when we deal with a particular subject matter which
invites their particular concern.

Mr. A. M. HENDERSON (Auditor General): Thank you very much, Mr.
Chairman. It gives me particular pleasure, gentlemen, to appear before you
again today at the commencement of the sittings of the committee, and, as the
Chairman has said, it is in my official capacity as an officer of parliament that
I am traditionally the adviser of this committee.

Before introducing the senior members of my staff who are with me here
today, I should perhaps say a few words about the material that you have
before you. As you know, the committee’s last report was its fourth report 1963
presented to the House of Commons on December 19, 1963. In accordance with
the standing instructions of the committee, I have prepared the usual follow-up
report describing the action taken by the various departments, agencies and
crown corporations on the committee’s various recommendations made in this
last report. This will be the first item of business on the agenda, and it will
therefore give you an idea of the detailed matters with which you have to deal.
The format of this particular report is designed to explain the details and the
background of the points as simply as possible. You will notice that it deals
with 21 subjects. In breaking these down you will perhaps have noted that I
myself will be following up on nine of them, which is what the committee
asked me to do in the regular course of my work, while 10 of the remaining
12 items were the subject of positive recommendation by the public accounts
committee to the executive that they take remedial action of one kind or
another. You will however have noted from perhaps the third paragraph on
page one that of these 10 only three of the recommendations have been car-
ried out so far by the departments concerned since you made your last report
on December 19.

After considering the items in the follow-up report it is assumed I think
that the committee will wish to carry on with its examination of my report
for the fiscal year ended March 31, 1962. When the committee rose last Decem-
ber it had examined paragraphs 1 to 74 of that report, and also had dealt with
paragraphs 84, 114 and 140. Presumably, Mr. Chairman, it will now wish to
carry on with its examination from paragraph 75 to the end of this particular
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volume, and after that turn its attention to my report for the fiscal year ended
March 13, 1963 which, in accordance with the terms of reference of the com-
mittee which were read out early this morning, was tabled on February 19
last.

I should perhaps just say a brief word about the function and role of the
Auditor General. As you know, he is an officer of parliament. His functions
and responsibilities are outlined in part VII of the Financial Administration
Act. By law he is entitled to free access at all convenient times to all files,
documents and records relating to accounts of every government department,
crown corporation and agency, and is also entitled to require and receive from
members of the public service such information, reports and explanations as
he may deem necessary for the proper performance of his duties.

Section 67 of the Financial Administration Act requires the Auditor
General to examine in such manner as he may deem necessary the accounts
relating to the consolidated revenue fund and to public property, and to
ascertain whether in his opinion among other things money has been ex-
pended for the purposes for which it was appropriated by parliament, and
the expenditures have been made as authorized.

Section 70 of the act requires the Auditor General to report to the House
of Commons each year on the results of his examinations. Among the matters
upon which he is specifically required to report in relation to expenditures
is any case where any appropriation has been exceeded or was applied to a
purpose or in a manner not authorized by parliament, and any case where
an expenditure was not authorized or was not properly vouched or certified.
In addition, he is required to report any other case that he considers should
be brought to the notice of the House of Commons.

I should now like to take a moment to introduce to you the members
of my staff who are here today. As the Chairman has mentioned, it is not
proposed that we should attend in quite such force each of the sittings, but,
generally speaking, I shall have my audit directors present when you are
dealing with those matters which are their individual responsibility. On my
right is Mr. George Long, C.A., who is acting assistant auditor general with
a long and distinguished career in the audit office. He will be participating
in all of the meetings with me. Next to Mr. Long is Mr. Millar, my audit
director whose prime responsibility is handling all national defence opera-
tions, the crown corporations in that field, and his work now includes the
Department of Industry and the Department of Defence Production. On Mr.
Millar’s right is Mr. Laroche, of our revenue audit branch, and Mr. Crowley
who is in charge of all of the national revenue side of our work, that is
to say customs and excise income, taxation, the Canadian mint, the Secretary

. of State, the post office, the exchange fund and various other areas. Next to
Mr. Crowley is Mr. Chapman who deals with all of the responsibilities we
have in the House of Commons, in the Senate, the central pay office, the
superannuation branch, the civil service commission work, the external affairs
department and the passport division. On Mr. Chapman’s right is Mr. Douglas,
my audit director in charge of our work in the Department of Citizenship
and Immigration, the’ Department of Labour, the Department of National
Health and Welfare, the Unemployment Insurance Commission, the Depart-
ment of Veterans Affairs, and so on. On Mr. Douglas’s right, is Mr. Smith,
my auditor director in charge of the larger spending departments, to name
a few the Department of Transport, the Department of Public Works, Public
Printing and Stationery, the Department of Northern Affairs and National
Resources, the National Research Council, the Department of Mines and
Technical Surveys, and so forth. Finally, we have Mr. Arthur Stokes, who
is my audit director in charge of such departments as agriculture, the Depart-

ment of External Affairs, the Privy Council, the Secretary of State, Depart-
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ment of Trade and Commerce, and the majority of the crown corporations
which we examine and, as you know, they include some large ones.

That completes my introductions, Mr. Chairman, and perhaps will serve
to give the members a brief idea of the way in which our office is organized
and how we assign and go about our work. If there are any questions, I
would be pleased to deal with them.

The CHAIRMAN: Has the committee any questions with regard to any of the
functions of the various audit directors who have been introduced? This would
be an appropriate time to ask any such questions. If not, possibly the com-
mittee might like to carry on in the way we have in the past by giving page
by page and paragraph by paragraph consideration to the follow-up report
which, as Mr. Henderson said, indicates the measure of success or lack of it
which met the recommendations which the committee made last year. If there
are no questions with regard to the personnel and functions of the gentlemen
who have been introduced, let me say that we are very glad to have them
here and that we look forward to having them again from time to time as we
come to that part of our report to which we may direct our attention.

Is it your wish, gentlemen, that we start on the follow-up report and deal
with this first? Have you all got copies of the follow-up report before you
now?

Mr. SoutHAM: How long is the committee sitting this morning? I have
another short meeting which I wish to attend so that I will have to be excused,
but I will come back if you are going to go on.

Mr. Rock: I have to leave at 12 o’clock.
Mr. REGAN: So do L.
The CHAIRMAN: We might sit until 12 o’clock.

The follow-up report has been tabled. Would someone make a motion
that it be printed as an appendix to today’s proceedings?
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Mr. REGAN: I so move.
Mr. STEFANSON: I second the motion.
Motion agreed to.

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Henderson, would you mind turning to the follow-up
report before us. I assume we might start on page one and deal with the various
items. I think the first item is one of particular concern because last year,
as an innovation, this committee asked the deputy ministers of the departments
which were concerned in our report to advise the Auditor General within three
months as to what action had been taken on matters on which the committee
had made recommendations. I wonder if I might start off the proceedings by
asking Mr. Henderson what written reports have been received by the depart-
ment in response to this request of the committee.

Mr. HENDERSON: Not very many, I am afraid. However, in the absence of
these, as I explain in the comments I make on each item, I have followed them
up myself and in some cases was able to obtain a reply, in other cases I am
still waiting for replies. However, I have sought to bring the members up to
date as best I could in accordance with the instructions I received from the
committee. I deal with each case in the comment section on the item, and you
will notice in some cases I have quoted what the department has said, for
example, in the case of reimbursement to servicemen for lease termination pay-
ments, what the deputy minister wrote to me on April 3. In other cases I have
made inquiries and sometimes spoken to the deputy minister concerned.
In those cases I advise you what he told me.
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The CHAIRMAN: I suppose the inference behind this is that there has not
been a very large and substantial compliance with the committee’s request last
year?

Mr. HENDERSON: It seems if we compare the three out of ten batting average
this time with the previous one, which I think was 13 out of 25 or something
of that nature, it is not as good as the previous one.

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, have you any questions in respect of this
particular aspect of the follow-up report.

Mr. WaHN: If we think it is desirable to achieve this end and if we knew
of those who have not complied we could perhaps raise this question when
the estimates of the various departments are before the house. Perhaps this
would give an incentive for some to comply more fully in the future.

Mr. HENDERSON: I think Mr. Wahn has a good point. But, in all fairness,
I am doubtful if all the departments read this as closely perhaps as they have
done in the past. The report follows the same format but in the past I myself
have written to each deputy minister while the follow-up report was being put
together to ask them to bring me up to date. I think, in all fairness, they
probably were waiting to hear from me instead of realizing this had been changed
around. They were told to write to me within three months of December 19
and that, of course, led me to await hearing from them, and I suppose the
responses fell between the two. However, we went after them in order that I
might be able to give you an as up to date report as possible.

Mr. TarpIF: What excuses do they use for not replying?

Mr. HENDERSON: Well, they are busy people. These were the committee’s
definite instructions in the closing paragraph of its last report. A number were
aware of it but, I suppose, they felt that the longer they left it the more up to
date their information would be.

The CHAIRMAN: I will read the precise paragraph in this connection, namely
paragraph 58 of our fourth report, which reads as follows:

The importance of maintaining parliamentary control over financial
matters is the paramount concern of this committee. It is therefore
expected that its recommendations will be given close attention by the
departments, crown corporations and other agencies, and the committee
requests that each deputy minister concerned advise the Auditor General
within three months from this date as to what action has been taken on
matters on which the committee has made recommendations in this
report.

Mr. TarpiF: Is there not a method of having the deputy ministers con-
, cerned initial these reports to prove they have read them, or is this only for
the benefit of the committee?

Mr. HENDERSON: They obtain minutes of the proceedings and I presume
within their own departments they must have some follow up.

Mr. REGAN: Inasmuch as the past practice has been for the Auditor General
to contact the deputy ministers, perhaps they had relied on the expectation of
receiving such a letter. Would it not be worth while now for the Auditor General
to write to those deputy ministers from whom he has not heard and then he can
report to us at a later meeting what reaction he received.

Mr. HENDERSON: Mr. Regan, that could be done but you might care to go
through the items first and see what specific comments you then would like
to make in individual instances.

Mr. REGAN: Fine.

Mr. ForBes: Can we not request the deputy ministers to appear before the
committee and ask their reasons for not replying?
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Mr. HENDERSON_: Certainly, sir, and you may want to do that after yoni have
gone through the items in the follow-up report. You may wish to question
several of them or do what you think best in the circumstances.

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, most of them will be appearing at one time
or another during the course of our deliberations and I think this is an excel-
lent thing for members to keep in mind when putting questions. As I said,
this is a point that could be raised later and, as Mr. Regan said, this should bring
to their mind the necessity in the future of complying with our request.

Mr. TArDIF: Has the committee authority to make them comply with our
request? You said we should try to make them.

The CHAIRMAN: Offhand, I would say we are limited to calling them before
us as witnesses. As I appreciate it, the main force of the committee is in the
amount of study it gives and the resulting publicity in respect of what the
committee feels are matters which should concern us. We have no power other
than to ask them to appear before us as witnesses and then, of course, the con-
sequent report we make back to the house will be based on those views the
committee has after hearing all the evidence and all the witnesses who appear
before us.

Are there any further questions in respect of the first three paragraphs? If
not, could we deal now with the next item, the office of the Auditor General,
which starts in the middle of the first page.

Mr. HENDERSON: Under this heading I have set down the committee’s action
at its last meetings, from which you will note that I was asked to keep the
committee posted in respect of whether or not the arangement that was made
is functioning to my satisfaction and is enabling me to recruit such officers and
employees as are necessary for me to perform my duties.

I have set down the precise situation as it existed at the close of last month
and indicated to you that as a result of delays which developed in the procedures
of the civil service commission and the treasury board in connection with
recommendations made by the commission about the revised rates of pay and
new classes, little headway was made on the recruiting side with the result
that since the arrangement was made I have secured a net increase of only
two employees, still leaving 18 short of my establishment.

As the Chairman mentioned, this committee always has shown a keen
interest in the staff problems of my office and I remain very grateful for the
help and advice I have received from time to time from the Chairman and the
members. At this time I am sorry I do not have more progress than this to
report.

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Henderson, do you feel that this shotage must neces-
sarily be reflected, to some extent, in the work which you are directed by
statute to carry on with regard to your examinations?

Mr. HENDERSON: I have said this, Mr. Chairman, in my last two reports to
the House of Commons, my 1962 and 1963 reports I have made it clear and
I think you considered it at your last meeting in respect of the 1962 report,
which you will be considering. The matter is covered in the preface and
amounts to a qualification of the scope.of my work which I must say to you
again I regard very seriously. I pointed out in my 1963 report, and I quote:

As I stated in my report last year, there are altogether too many
instances where staff shortages result in the audit office being unable to
carry out its test examinations with sufficient frequency or in sufficient
depth to achieve even the minimum standard required by modern ac-
cepted auditing practice.

I went on in that report to say that I looked forward to being able to re-
port progress as a result of the arrangement made last November toward im-
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proving the scope of my audit work during the now current year, 1964-65. But,
I would be less than frank if I did not say to you that until my staff can be
effectively brought up to strength and until what I would describe to you as
red tape road blocks of the type mentioned here have been surmounted it will
not be possible to report progress in bringing the scope of the work up to the
minimum standard required by modern accepted auditing practice. As of today
the recruitment outlook is good.

The secretary of my office who came to me from the Civil Service Com-
mission following the arrangement made last November reported for duty on
January 20 last and, as a result, we have received more effective service from
the Civil Service Commission because they have decentralized their authority
to him. He operates from my office and, I might say, part of that agreement was
that in occupying the position of secretary in my office such a position would
be created on my establishment, and that he would fill it; in other words, I
would pay his salary. However, despite repeated requests which I have been
making over the past six months and which I am still making, this has not
been done yet. The officer continues to be on the salary roll of the Civil Service
Commission. This is important to me because, as you know, I am anxious in
knowing what the true costs of my operation are. Also, there is an important
organizational question involved.

I have a letter in front of me from the treasury board, saying they cannot
move on this because they are still awaiting replies to letters from the Civil
Service Commission dated March 18 and March 24.

The other matter mentioned here was in respect of changes in my audit
supervisors’ rates of pay and salary, about which I have been inquiring for
a long time. I was informed on May 20 that treasury board, in fact, had actually
approved this on May 14 but we have not been advised as to the amount or
given the details yet. They have not sent the minute or anything. And, May 14
was a fortnight ago.

Mr. Tarpir: Mr. Henderson, what would you recommend to remove these
road blocks?

Mr. HENDERSON: I am doing my best to work them out. So long as my officer
must function as it does this arrangement represents an improvement, and
what I am giving you now is a progress report.

The original consideration which this committee brought to the matter
was that being an officer of parliament my establishment should be removed
from the jurisdiction of these regulatory bodies and that I should do my own
recruiting. But, because of the various legal and other difficulties in the way, the
chairman of the Civil Service Commission and I worked out this arrangement
last November under the aegis of this committee. I am giving you this up to
date report now in accordance with your request.

Mr. Rock: You do not come under the jurisdiction of any minister?
Mr. HENDERSON: No.

Mr. Rock: You are the Auditor General for the parliament of Canada?
Mr. HENDERSON: Yes.

Mr. Rock: And, in respect of all departments you report to this committee
and to parliament and, for this reason, you do not want your hands tied to the
civil service. Indirectly, you also check on the civil service?

Mr. HENDERSON: That is a fact. It is my duty to check them as well as
treasury board.

Mr. Rock: So, you should not have to depend on them for recruitment;

you should recruit your own staff as a separate body, and this is what you
want.
20879—3
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Mr. HENDERSON: This is what I hoped would be the case, and this is what
this committee, since 1960, has recommended be the case. But, because of the
fact that none of the governments of the day had moved on that recommenda-
tion it came to a head, as you recall, last November, at which time Mr. MacNeill,
the chairman of the Civil Service Commission, and I sat down and worked
out this arrangement described in your last report. I am doing my utmost to
make that work, and so is Mr. MacNeill.

There has been an improvement in the set-up by virtue of the reasons I
described. But we have not been able to make the progress we hoped because
of the delays I referred to in the third paragraph of my comments. However,
I would like to have more time to work this out. I would express the hope that
I might be given that additional time and, of course, report back to you later.

Mr. Rock: I understand that you are short 18 persons?
Mr. HENDERSON: That is right.
Mr. Rock: And that you have received only two.

Mr. HENDERSON: Over the six months period I have lost and gained per-
sons, and have a net gain of two.

Mr. Rock: Do you have difficulty in recruiting the proper staff; has the
Civil Service Commission offered you any personnel that are suitable for your
staft?

Mr. HENDERSON: Oh, yes. Through the good work of their representative,
who, as I have explained, is now the secretary of my office, we are receiving
more effective service, and the recruitment outlook is better. The salaries could
be described as satisfactory, I think, and I am hoping that once the problems
I have mentioned are out of the way, we can begin to show some improvement.

Mr. Rock: Would you repeat the main problem that you would like to
see out of the way?

Mr. HENDERSON: The clearance of the salaries of my audit directors. I
only succeeded in having the general staff salaries cleared a few weeks ago.
I, myself, have taken the matter up with the senior treasury board officials, and
the minister kindly has interested himself in it. They have sought to help, but
it seems that procedures take an unconscionably long time.

Mr. Rock: You think it will be resolved?

Mr. HENDERSON: I hope so. I intend to keep after it as diligently as I can.

Mr. Rock: You feel you will have these 18 vacancies filled within a year
or so?

Mr. HENDERSON: I hope so, sir.

Mr. ForBES: You say that this condition of shortage of staff, and so on, has
existed since 1960. Do you have a large backlog of auditing work in respect

of the various departments? Has the work not been done, or is your present
staff overworked?

Mr. HENDERSON: It is a combination of both. If your staff is inadequate,

then you tend to cut back on the depth of your work or the frequency of your °

visits to the various departments. We make test audits based on the volume
or the dollar size of the transactions. We are able to make tests only of these
as you can appreciate. To the extent we are plagued with staff problems, we
have to shorten those tests and in some cases not do them at all.

In 1962, the matter had reached the point where I felt it important I bring
it to the attention of the house in my report, which I did. I do not feel I should
disclose the extent to which those tests are inadequate, because, obviously,
that would be inviting trouble. However, I have disclosed them to the respective
ministers of finance so that they know in a general way where we are vulnerable.
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Mr. REcAN: Mr. Henderson, would it be reasonable to assume that, even
if these difficulties that you have, such as with the Civil Service Commission,
were cleared away, you would still encounter considerable difficulty possibly
in recruiting the number of personnel you need who have the qualifications
which are prerequisite because of the competitive nature of the market for these
people today, and the advantages that accrue to an auditor in commercial life,
private business, and the large companies? Do you feel, if these difficulties
which you presently have are cleared away, that this would not necessarily
be a full solution to your problem?

Mr. HENDERSON: I would not anticipate that we would have difficulty com-
petitively with private firms. Our salary structure today is quite competitive
with theirs, I think. In the higher levels or echelons, however, service in the
government does not compete with service in the professions or in industry, as
you know; but there is a good type of young man coming along who is anxious
to obtain experience. This summer we have taken on some students for four
months at our lowest salary level. These are students from universities, and
we are impressed by their calibre and by the interest they are showing in
the work. We are hoping that some of them later on will join us permanently.

Mr. RINFRET: How many students are involved?
Mr. HENDERSON: Seven, I think.

The CHAIRMAN: Are there any further questions on this particular item;
if not, we might go on to the next item, the form of the public accounts. Have
you any comment on this?

Mr. HENDERSON: As members of the committee are aware, this was the
subject of a study by a subcommittee of this committee in 1961. As a result
of that, the public accounts were brought out in three volumes which included
a number of improvements. I have to say to you, as I said in my report to the
house, that I think there is additional important information which usefully
could be disclosed in the public accounts and, on the other hand, I think there
is some material there which could be dispensed with. I do not have any precise
recommendation to make to you just at this time on the subject.

The CHAIRMAN: Do you think that a further subcommittee study, having in
mind the rather technical nature of this particular matter, might be appointed
for the purpose of carrying on discussions between the subcommittee, your
officials and officials of the treasury board.

Mr. HENDERSON: It is the comptroller of the treasury who is responsible
for the preparation of the public accounts; possibly he might have some views
on this. I have not discussed it with him lately.

In 1961 the subcommittee’s considerations were very helpful, but frankly
‘we did not make all the progress a number of us had hoped. You face the
problem of the extent to which you might be prepared to cut back the listing
of civil servant names and their salaries which, as you know, occupy a con-
siderable amount of space in the public accounts; then there is the extent to
which you would abbreviate contract listings and so forth, employees’ travelling
expenses and the like.

In our subcommittee discussions, when we got right down to it, we found
there existed a certain reluctance to dispense with this or that listing, and it
was difficult to obtain unanimity. It might be that with further discussion of
those points we, in fact, could make some headway. I hope one of these days
this will be done, but I thought I should say this to you to point up the kind
of problem encountered. On the other hand, I myself have asked whether addi-
tional information could not be shown in the accounts. You will notice in the
second paragraph I am able to report to you that one of my suggestions was

adopted and the public accounts last year reported in respect of remissions
20879—33
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in much greater detail. I think the reporting of remissions, and the reasons
for them, are matters of considerable importance.

The CHAIRMAN: Thank you. Are there any questions on this?

Mr. BErRGER: I notice that you say that progress has been made and we
seem to be headed in the right direction. So that we do not have to go back
over what was done last year, could you indicate to us what still needs to be
done by a subcommittee or this committee to speed up the work?

Mr. HENDERSON: You mean what a subcommittee could do?

Mr. BERGER: A subcommittee or the committee. You say progress has
been made, and we seem to be headed in the right direction.

Mr. HENDERSON: In my report I have dealt with several. For example, as
I say in the previous paragraph, I think there could be a more informative
disclosure of accounts receivable due to the crown and inclusion of financial
statements covering departmental operating activities. I hope those two sug-
gestions will commend themselves to you. At this particular juncture, of
course, you have the treasury paying particular attention to the recommenda-
tions of the royal commission on government organization. They are in the
throes of seeing how far they can adopt recommendations like these.

The CHAIRMAN: I believe it is two years since this was done the last time.

Mr. HENDERSON: In 1961, I think.

The CHAIRMAN: As a result of the subcommittee’s report, I believe various
improvements were made in the form of the public accounts.

Mr. HENDERSON: Yes, sir.

The CHAIRMAN: And there are further improvements which could be
made and the subject matter lends itself to a discussion by a subcommittee.

Mr. HENDERSON: Most certainly. If you feel you could tackle it, I think
it should be done some time. I would hope that you could form a subcommittee
and make some progress in considering this.

The CHAIRMAN: Would it be the wish of the committee that your steering
committee meet and give some thought to the constitution of a subcommittee
to deal with this matter? =

Mr. Rock: Do you not think it is a little early?

The CHAIRMAN: I thought we might leave it in the hands of the steering
committee to consider and bring back a recommendation at a later stage.

Mr. HENDERSON: You might like to seek the advice of the Minister of
Finance and the comptroller of the treasury in order to have their views.

Mr. Waun: I think it would be in order to have the steering committee
give some thought to this, and I would so move.

The CHAIRMAN: There is a motion by Mr. Wahn, seconded by Mr. Berger.

Motion agreed to.
The CHAIRMAN: The motion is agreed to.
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APPENDIX

FOLLOW-UP REPORT BY THE AUDITOR GENERAL TO THE STANDING
COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC ACCOUNTS ON THE ACTION TAKEN BY
DEPARTMENTS AND OTHER AGENCIES IN RESPONSE TO
RECOMMENDATIONS MADE BY THE COMMITTEE IN 1963

In paragraph 58 of its Fourth Report 1963, presented on December 19, 1963,
the Committee requested each deputy minister concerned to advise the Auditor
General within three months as to what action had been taken on matters on
which the Committee had made recommendations in its report.

In paragraph 59 of the Fourth Report 1963 the Committee requested the
Auditor General to report to it on the action taken by the various government
departments, Crown corporations and other agencies toward implementing
recommendations made by the Committee. This is my report on the current
situation with respect to the various recommendations made by the Committee
in the above mentioned Fourth Report 1963. }

It will be noted from the comments that follow that action which the
Committee might consider appropriate in the circumstances has been taken by
the departments or other agencies concerned in three of the ten cases where
recommendations had been made by the Committee in its Fourth Report 1963.

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL

Members of the Committee will recall that agreement was reached on
November 22, 1963 between the Auditor General and the Chairman of the
Civil Service Commission on the steps to be taken to achieve the objectives of
the Auditor General in the area of recruitment, selection and negotiation with
candidates for positions in his Office. While giving the Auditor General freedom
to recruit staff, these steps contemplated adherence to the basic personnel
policies and standards sought for the Canadian public service by the Civil
Service Commission, and the Auditor General accepted the responsibility to see
that this is maintained through the medium of effective liaison. In order to
facilitate the achievement of these objectives, the Civil Service Commission
agreed to second a senior employee from its staff to the staff of the Auditor
General to handle his staff and administrative matters.

The Committee expressed its satisfaction at this arrangement whereby the
Auditor General will in future be permitted to recruit and manage the staff

‘of his Office, with the approval of the Treasury Board, and asked him to advise

the Committee whether or not this arrangement is functioning to his satisfaction
and enabling him to recruit such officers and employees as are necessary for
him to perform his duties.

Comment by the Auditor General: The arrangement made on November 22,
1963 with the Civil Service Commission was not implemented until January 20,
1964 when the Civil Service Commission seconded the senior employee to my
Office.

It will be recalled that the establishment approved for my office for 1963-64
is 179 employees whereas the actual working strength at November 30, 1963
was 159. The latter figure dropped to 157 because of two resignations but
increased to 161 early last month when four new appointments were made.
Consequently, we are still short 18 auditors.

This unsatisfactory situation is largely due to delays which developed in
the procedures of the Civil Service Commission and the Treasury Board in
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connection with the recommendations made by the Commission that revised
rates of pay and new classes be established for the existing Auditor strength.
This was not cleared finally by Treasury Board until May 4th last, while similar
changes respecting my audit supervisors or directors have not been cleared yet.

I hope these delays will soon be behind us and we can recruit our staff up
to its much needed strength.

THE ForM oF THE PUBLIC ACCOUNTS

The Committee expressed satisfaction that the Public Accounts volumes
for the fiscal year ended March 31, 1961 had been arranged in the manner
recommended by the Committee in its Fifth Report 1961 and that this arrange-
ment had been continued in the Public Accounts for the year ended March 31,
1962.

The Committee noted that further consideration might be given to sum-
marizing or reducing a number of the detailed listings in the Public Accounts
so as to present more significant and relevant information to Parliament. It
also felt that consideration might usefully be given to the inclusion of additional
important information suggested by the Auditor General. However, as time
had not permitted consideration of this by any sub-committee convened for
the purpose, the Committee recommended that this be undertaken during
the next session of Parliament.

Comment by the Auditor General: The Public Accounts volumes for the
fiscal year ended March 31, 1963 (tabled on February 19, 1964) continued to be
arranged in the manner recommended by the Committee in 1961. As I informed
the House of Commons in my 1962 and 1963 Reports, additional important
information should, in my opinion, be disclosed in the Public Accounts. Examples
of this would include a more informative disclosure of accounts receivable
due to the Crown and inclusion of financial statements covering departmental
operating activities.

In my 1962 Report I suggested that explanatory statements should be given
in the Public Accounts with respect to each remission granted by the Governor
in Council. I am pleased to report that this suggestion has been adopted and in
the Public Accounts for the year ended March 31, 1963 the remissions granted
during that year have been reported in greater detail than in previous years.

THE ForRM AND CONTENT OF THE ESTIMATES

It will be recalled that a Sub-Committee was appointed by the main
Committee on November 15, 1963 under the chairmanship of Mr. Ian G. Whan
to confer with officers of the Treasury Board and the Auditor General to review
the form and content of the Estimates, including a report addressed to the
Chairman on September 30, 1963 by the Secretary of the Treasury Board
outlining changes proposed by the Treasury Board in the number and nature
of votes in the annual Estimates. The Sub-Committee submitted its report on
December 16, 1963 and on this basis the Committee made its Third Report to
the House.

In its Third Report the Committee made the following immediate recom-
mendations under paragraph 3:

(a) Adoption of the revised vote pattern proposed by the Treasury Board
for introduction into the Main Estimates 1964-65 subject to certain
improvements suggested by the Auditor General to the Committee.

(b) Inclusion of supporting financial information of Crown corporations
and other public instrumentalities in the Details of Services for the
purpose of providing better information to the Members and to the
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public with respect to the nature of the fiscal requirements of the

Crown corporations and other agencies requiring financing by parlia-

mentary appropriations.

(¢) Presentation of additional information in the Estimates concerning
the staff of all government departments and the Crown corpora-
tions and other public instrumentalities referred to under clause
(b) above:

(i) the number of employees actually on the payrolls at the la.test
date available during the course of the Estimates preparation;
and

(ii) brief notes explaining proposed major increases in the size of
establishments.

Your Committee recommends the adoption of as many of the fore-
going improvements as is practicable in the Main Estimates for 1964-65.

Comment by the Auditor General: The Main Estimates for 1964-65,
tabled by the Minister of Finance on March 3, 1964, included adoption of the
revised vote pattern proposed by the Treasury Board and approved by the
Committee in its Third Report 1963 under (a) above. The major improvements
I had suggested to the Committee in this vote pattern were adopted by the
Treasury Board.

Supplementary financial information regarding Crown corporations and
other public instrumentalities, recommended by the Committee under (b)
above, and presentation of additional staff information called for under (c)
above, were not included in the Main Estimates for 1964-65.

SEconDp Crass MAIL

Paragraphs 15 and 16 of the Fourth Report 1963 have reference to second
class mail. The Committee noted that the revisions of second class rates which
had been made were confined to two areas and would not result in more than
one million dollars additional annual revenue. It was further stated that the
deficit in second class mail was currently exceeding $26 million per annum.
The Committee further noted that this deficit cannot be reduced without a
general upward revision of rates of postage on Canadian publications or by
means of an annual grant from Parliament in an amount sufficient to cover
the loss to the Post Office in handling second class mail.

The latter was a recommendation of the Royal Commission on Govern-
ment Organization. The Committee stated that it believed early consideration
should be given by Parliament to these alternatives and requested that the
Auditor General keep the matter before Parliament in his annual Reports in

~order that subsequent Committees may give consideration to it.

Comment by the Auditor General: In accordance with the Committee’s
direction to me on this subject, I shall deal with it in my next Report to the
House of Commons.

PrRAIRIE FARM EMERGENCY FuUND DEFICIT

In its Fifth Report 1961, the Committee, having regard for the fact that
the Agricultural Stabilization Act provides for the inclusion of an item in
the Estimates to cover the net operating loss of the Agricultural Stabilization
Board in any year, recommended ‘“that consideration be given to amending
the Prairie Farm Assistance Act to provide similarly for the inclusion of an
item in the Estimates to cover any deficit that might be anticipated in the
operation of the Prairie Farm Emergency Fund.”

In reiterating this recommendation, the Committee in its Fourth Report
1963 expressed the hope that an amendment along these lines will be placed
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before Parliament at an early date. In the meantime, the Committee requested
that the Minister of Finance seek parliamentary approval by means of an
Estimate item to cover any advances to the Prairie Farm Emergency Fund
(that is, the deficit resulting from the Fund’s operations) that are to be
written off to expenditure for the year.

Comment by the Auditor General: In paragraph 46 of my Report to the
House of Commons for the year ended March 31, 1963, I reported that the
amount of such advances for that year, $7,295,000, was treated as a deficit
and had again been charged directly to expenditure. I again recorded my view
that Parliament should be requested to appropriate funds to cover these
deficits and thus provide an opportunity to Members of the House to review
results of the Fund’s operations.

It is accordingly gratifying to note that in Supplementary Estimates (E)
for the year ended March 31, 1964 tabled on March 6, 1964, provision was
made for the Fund’s operating loss in that year as follows:

Vote 175e—Estimated amount required to recoup the Prairie Farm
Emergency Fund to cover the net operating loss for the fiscal year
ending March 31, 1964—$1,940,000.

This item is included in Appropriation Act No. 2, 1964, assented to on April 6,
1964.

REIMBURSEMENT TO SERVICEMEN FOR LEASE TERMINATION PAYMENTS

In its Fourth Report 1963 the Committee had noted the recommendations
made in its Fifth Report 1961 that the maximum period with respect to which
reimbursement is made to members of the Forces for lease termination pay-
ments should be reduced to the equivalent of one month’s rent in future. While
the Committee took note of information received from the Department of
National Defence that a guide was being issued for unit commanding officers,
in the counselling of Service personnel with regard to the leasing of accom-
modation, it remained of the opinion that a further and more detailed inquiry
should be made by the Committee at the next session.

Comment by the Auditor General: In response to my inquiry as to what
action had been taken by the Department of National Defence on this matter,
I was advised by the Deputy Minister of National Defence on April 3, 1964
as follows: l

I refer to the requirement itemized in paragraph 58 of Votes and
Proceedings of the House of Commons No. 115 of 19 December 1963,
wherein each Deputy Minister is called upon to advise the Auditor
General as to what action has been taken on matters on which the
Standing Committee on Public Accounts has made recommendations
in its Fourth Report.

The single recommendation in the report applicable to this Depart-
ment is found at paras. 22-25 and concerns reimbursmeent to service-
men for lease termination payments. In this connection, the Department
has issued a tri-service order which is a guide for unit commanding
officers in the counselling of personnel in matters related to lease
liability, and as well has amended regulations which provide for
discretionary powers to be exercised by administrative officers in deal-
ing with individual cases.

I first drew the attention of the House of Commons to the regulations
governing reimbursement to servicemen for lease termination payments in
my 1960 Report, noting that such outlays were being made up to a maximum
of three months’ rent.
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The 1961 recommendation of the Committee that the maximum period
be reduced in future to the equivalent of one month’s rent was not adopted
by the Department of National Defence. The general practice has continued
to be to make reimbursement on the basis of the permissible maximum of
three months’ rent and, as stated in my last Report to the House, the outlay
for these lease termination payments during the fiscal year 1962-63 amounted
to $670,000.

ADVANCES TO THE EXCHANGE FUND ACCOUNT

At its last meeting the Committee had been informed by the Deputy
Minister of Finance that the report by the Minister of Finance, originally
requested by the Committee in its Fifth Report 1961, had been drafted and
approved by the then Minister. However, because of subsequent developments
with respect to the valuation of the Canadian dollar, it appeared that the infor-
mation contained in this report was out of date, and in addition the Deputy
Minister felt he would like to see additional information included in such a
report. Accordingly the Committee agreed that consideration of this item be
deferred until the next meeting of the Committee.

Comment by the Auditor General: I am informed by the Deputy Minister
of Finance that he expects to place a report by the Minister on this subject
before the Committee during the current session.

UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE FUND

In its Fourth Report 1963 the Committee expressed the hope that when
the Report of the Committee of Inquiry into the Unemployment Insurance Act
(tabled in the House on December 20, 1962) is considered by Parliament,
action will be taken to implement the Committee’s earlier recommendation
that the preparation of annual financial statements for the Unemployment
Insurance Fund should be made a statutory responsibility of the Unemploy-
ment Insurance Commission, and that the statements should be reported upon
by the Auditor General.

Comment by the Auditor General: No action has yet been taken. The
Chief Commissioner of the Unemployment Insurance Commission has advised
me that the Report of the Committee of Inquiry is still under study by the
Government and that the Commission is awaiting the revision of the Unemploy-
ment Insurance Act which is expected to result from this study to provide
the necessary legislation regarding the preparation of the annual financial
statements for the Unemployment Insurance Fund.

In the meantime and pending provision of such a statutory direction, the

" annual financial statements of the Fund, approved by the Chief Commissioner,

are being presented by him to me for examination and certification.

DEPARTMENTAL OPERATING ACTIVITIES

In its Fourth Report 1963, the Committee reiterated its belief that it would
be desirable if financial statements reflecting the financial results of depart-
mental trading or servicing activities were included in the Public Accounts,
provided this could be done without undue cost or staff increases. It requested
the Auditor General to continue to keep the development of this objective
under close surveillance and to report thereon to the Committe in due course.

Comment by the Auditor General: In accordance with the Committee’s
direction, I am continuing to keep the development of this objective under

close surveillance and will deal with it in my next Report to the House of
Commons.
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BoARD OF GRAIN COMMISSIONERS

It will be recalled that ever since 1961 the Committee has expressed its
concern that in each year since 1953-54 the expenditures of the Board of
Grain Commissioners have exceeded its revenues by more than $1,000,000,
and the Committee recommended “that steps be taken to bring revenues and
expenditures into balance”. The Committee requested the Auditor General to
keep this matter under review and to report to it in due course.

Comment by the Auditor General: The Deputy Minister of Agriculture
has advised me that the question of revising fees for the mandatory inspection
and weighing services has been a matter of continuing study. As a result the
Board of Grain Commissioners for Canada has issued Circular No. 310 dated
April 20, 1964 which in part states, “that effective August 1, 1965 the Board of
Grain Commissioners proposes to amend its Regulations to increase inspection
and weighing fees by fifty per cent, in order to enable the Board to meet
expenditures involved in providing these services”. I was further informed
that the Board had in mind a revision of these fees in the present crop year,
but due to the very narrow margin in which the grain trade was operating on
contracts under the current international agreements, it was not considered
equitable to announce changes after those contracts had been entered into.

SUBSIDIES

Consideration was given by the Committee at its last meeting to a listing
prepared annually by the Treasury Board officers for the information of the
Board showing the provision in the Estimates for grants, subsidies and special
payments for the period 1959-60 to 1962-63, inclusive. The Committee requested
that the figures on this listing be brought up to date by the officers for con-
sideration at a subsequent meeting.

Comment by the Auditor General: I understand that the Secretary of the
Treasury Board has brought the figures on this listing up to date and that they
will be made available to the Committee during the current session.

THE CANADA COUNCIL

In its Fifth Report 1961 the Committee noted that it had been informed
that profits realized and interest earned on the University Capital Grants Fund
had not been allocated to the provinces or to the universities and recommended
that the Council seek to conclude this matter without further delay. The
Committee was informed by the Chairman and members of the Council that
the Council, following advice from legal counsel, proposed to accept the 1956
census as a basis for distribution of the accumulated profits and interest
earned, and also to accept the ‘hotch-pot’ or trust fund approach for this
distribution.

Having been informed of the doubts expressed by the Auditor General and
other legal counsel as to the propriety of the forgoing under subsection (2) (b)
of section 17 of the Canada Council Act, the Committee postponed further
consideration of this matter until the next session, at which time consideration
would also be given by the Committee to its 1961 recommendation concerning
the Council’s need for increased resources for purposes of its work.

Comment by the Auditor General: I am informed that the Council is now
using the 1956 census and the ‘hotch-pot’ or trust fund approach as the basis
for the distribution of the accumulated profits and interest earned on the
University Capital Grants Fund, and that this will be reflected in the accounts
of the Canada Council for the fiscal year ended March 31, 1964.
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AUDITOR GENERAL’S REPORT, 1961-62

SUMMARY OF EMPLOYEES AUTHORIZED FOR THE PUBLIC SERVICE, BY DEPARTMENTS,
CROWN CORPORATIONS AND OTHER INSTRUMENTALITIES

The Committee expressed interest in this summarized listing showing the
numbers of employees authorized for the public service, by department, Crown
corporations and other instrumentalities at the close of each fiscal year in com-
parison with the numbers at the close of the preceding year, and commended
the Auditor General for assembling and furnishing such an informative listing
for the purpose of explaining the second largest object of expenditure in federal
spending.

In its Fourth Report 1963 the Committee requested the Auditor General
to continue to prepare this comparative listing annually and, effective with
his Report for the fiscal year 1963-64, to include therein a more detailed break-
down of the various departmental and Crown corporation establishments by
divisions and sub-divisions together with the numbers of employees actually on
strength at March 31st, for the purpose of showing the size of each establish-
ment’s organization on a still more informative comparative basis.

Comment by the Auditor General: A comparative listing prepared along the
lines directed by the Committee will be included as an appendix to my Report
to the House of Commons for the fiscal year ended March 31, 1964.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL

The Committee expressed interest in the comments of the Auditor General
regarding the importance of adequate internal financial control in departments
and Crown corporations, particularly the need for more effective use being
made of staffs engaged in internal auditing work.

In its Fourth Report 1963 the Committee requested the Auditor General to
continue his examinations into this important area of internal financial control
and to report further to the House on steps taken or which should be taken to
improve financial management in the various departments, Crown corporations
and other instrumentalities.

Comment by the Auditor General: In accordance with the Committee’s
direction, I am continuing my examination into this important area and will
be reporting to the House of Commons further on the subject in my next
Report.

GOVERNMENT CONTRIBUTIONS NOT MADE TO SUPERANNUATION ACCOUNTS

The Committee was concerned to note that no contributions had been made
to the Public Service Superannuation Account, the Canadian Forces Superannu-
ation Account or the Royal Canadian Mounted Police Superannuation Account
as required by their respective Acts to provide for increases in benefits payable
as a result of salary and pay increases during the fiscal years 1960-61 and
1961-62. Evidence was given by the Deputy Minister of Finance to the effect
that the Department felt that such increases were not in the nature of general
pay increases as set out in the Statutes. As a consequence, no charges with
respect to these liabilities were made to expenditure and the present consider-
able actuarial deficiencies in these superannuation accounts have continued to
mount.

In its Fourth Report 1963 the Committee stated that it felt steps should be
taken promptly by the Executive to remedy this situation and it urged the
Minister of Finance to give the matter his early attention.
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Comment by the Auditor General: In a statement to the House of Commons
on March 6, 1964, the Minister of Finance mentioned several adjustments being
made in the accounts for 1963-64 with regard to accumulated actuarial
deficiencies in the various superannuation accounts. I addressed some questions
concerning these adjustments to the Deputy Minister of Finance on April 27th
last but have not yet received a reply to my letter.

ERRORS IN PUBLIC SERVICE SUPERANNUATION ACCOUNT PENSION AND
CONTRIBUTION CALCULATIONS

The Committee noted with concern that a high incidence of error had
continued in the Superannuation Branch of the Department of Finance involy-
ing both overpayments and underpayments of pensions on a continuing basis
and also incorrect charges for contributory service. The steps that were being
taken by the Department of Finance towards remedying this state of affairs
were noted. The Committee requested the Auditor General to keep Paraliament
informed as to the progress being made.

Comment by the Auditor General: I shall continue to keep Parliament
informed as to the progress being made in remedying this situation.

INTEREST CHARGES ON LOANS TO THE NATIONAL CAPITAL COMMISSION

The Committee noted that the National Capital Commission remains in the
position where it is required to pay interest on loans obtained from the Govern-
ment of Canada for the purpose of acquiring property in the National Capital
Region, and that funds to meet the interest payments themselves must be
provided through parliamentary appropriations because the property held does
not yield sufficient revenue. It further noted that parliamentary appropriations
may be required to provide funds through the National Capital Fund in order
to pay off the amounts of the loans made.

Since outlays on properties such as these are expenditures of the Crown
rather than income-producing investments, the Committee believed that it
would be more realistic were Parliament asked to appropriate the funds in the
years in which properties, which are not to be specifically held for resale, are
to be acquired instead of leaving the expenditure involved in the repayment of
loans to be absorbed in future years, and it recommended that the Executive
review the present practice with the National Capital Commission with a view
to placing the financing of the Commission on this more realistic basis.

Comment by the Auditor General: I am informed by officers of the National
Capital Commission that they are not aware of any such review having been
commenced yet.

INDIRECT COMPENSATION TO CHARTERED BANKS

In considering the question as to whether or not the balances maintained
by the Government of Canada with the chartered banks interest-free to the
level of $100 million constitute indirect remuneration, the Committee was
assisted in its deliberations by the Deputy Minister of Finance who outlined the
arrangement which has been in effect since January 1, 1957 whereby the banks
pay interest to the Government of Canada on the amount by which minimum
weekly balances are in excess of this sum.

The Committee in its Fourth Report 1963 stated it was in agreement with
the view of the Auditor General that this arrangement does constitute indirect
compensation to the chartered banks and that this may be construed as being
contrary to the intent of section 93(1) of the Bank Act. The Committee believed
that if the banks are to be compensated for services provided to the Crown,
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consideration should be given to the most equitable manner in which this may
be done with statutory sanction being given by means of an appropriate amend-
ment to the Bank Act, possibly at the time of the decennial revision in 1964.

Comment by the Auditor General: Notice was given by the Minister of
Finance in the House of Commons on April 13, 1964 concerning the introduc-
tion of a measure to amend the Bank Act to extend by one year to July 1,
1965 the authority to carry on business for the banks to which this Act applies.

In a statement to the House of Commons on May 6, 1964 the Minister said
it was his hope that a Bill relating to the decennial revision would be pre-
sented in the late fall of 1964.

LIVING ALLOWANCES TO FEDERALLY APPOINTED JUDGES

The Committee noted that in cases where federally-appointed judges are
appointed from time to time as conciliators or arbitrators on boards, they are
paid living allowances of $60 a day in addition to actual out-of-pocket expenses
for transportation, parlour and pullman car accommodation and taxicabs.

The Committee stated in its Fourth Report 1963 that it was of the opinion
that a daily rate at this level could be regarded as including an element of
remuneration which would be contrary to subsection (1) of section 39 of the
Judges Act. It therefore recommended that if additional remuneration was
to be paid to judges appointed as conciliators or arbitrators on boards estab-
lished to deal with disputes affecting employers and their employees, the
approval of Parliament for payment of the additional remuneration should
be sought.

Comment by the Auditor General: Although I have not been advised
directly by the Deputy Minister of Labour, I am informed that living allowances
of $60 per day continue to be paid by the Department to judges appointed as
conciliators or arbitrators on boards in addition to their actual out-of-pocket
expenses for transportation, parlour and pullman car accommodation and
taxicabs.

UNEMPLOYMENT ASSISTANCE

In the course of its consideration of the problems arising from the adminis-
tration of the Unemployment Assistance Act, the Committee was assisted in
its review by the Deputy Minister of Welfare who referred at length to the
problems encountered in administering this legislation across Canada.

The Committee stated in its Fourth Report 1963 that it shared the opinion
of the Deputy Minister of Welfare and the Auditor General that consideration
should be given by Parliament to redrafting the Unemployment Assistance
Act so as to state more clearly the objectives and methods of achieving them,
and to remove ambiguities in the present law which have resulted in varying
interpretations. The Committee believed that consideration should also be given
to including with Unemployment Assistance other existing programs to assist
the needy so as to provide better co-ordination of federal-provincial efforts in
this field.

Comment by the Auditor General: As the Members of the Committee are
aware, changes in the legislation governing the federal-provincial public
assistance programs administered by the Department of National Health and
Welfare have been under consideration for some time. On February 14 and 15,
1964, in compliance with recommendations in the joint communique of the
conference of the Prime Minister and provincial Premiers in November 1963,
the Deputy Minister of Welfare and the provincial Deputy Ministers of Welfare

met as a working group in Ottawa to consider problems over the whole range
of federal-provincial shared welfare programs.
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REPORT TO THE HOUSE
WEDNESDAY, June 3, 1964.
The Standing Committee on Public Accounts has the honour to present its

SECOND REPORT

Your Committee recommends:
1. That it be granted leave to sit while the House is sitting.

2. That it be empowered to appoint sub-committees, to fix the quorum of
any such sub-committee and to refer to such sub-committees any of the matters
referred to the Committee; that any such sub-committee so appointed have
power to send for persons, papers and records and to examine witnesses; to sit
while the House is sitting, and to report from time to time to the Committee.

Respectfully submitted,
G. W. BALDWIN,
Chairman

(Note—This Report was concurred in by the House on the same day.)

35
20881—1}






—

MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

TUESDAY, June 2, 1964
(3)

The Standing Committee on Public Accounts met this day at 10.05 a.m.
The Chairman, Mr. G. W. Baldwin, presided.

Members present: Messrs. Baldwin, Cameron (High Park), Coté (Chicou-
timi), Crouse, Drouin, Fane, Forbes, Harkness, Lessard (Saint-Henri), McLean
(Charlotte), Muir (Lisgar), Pilon, Rinfret, Rock, Ryan, Southam, Stefanson,
Tardif, Wahn, Winch (20).

In attendance: Mr. A. M. Henderson, Auditor General of Canada and
Messrs. Long, Douglas, Crowley, Chapman, Laroche, Laframboise and Millar of
the Auditor General’s office.

The Chairman referred to the cancellation of the sitting scheduled for
Thursday, May 28, as Room 371 was not available.

On motion of Mr. Fane, seconded by Mr. Tardif,

Resolved,—That the Committee request permission to sit while the House
is sitting.

On motion of Mr. Fane, seconded by Mr. Rinfret,

Resolved,—That notwithstanding the resolution of May 26, the committee
sit at 9.30 a.m. on Tuesdays and Thursdays.

The Committee then resumed consideration of the “Follow-Up Report by
the Auditor General on the action taken by departments and other agencies
in response to recommendations made by the Committee in 1963”.

Mr. Henderson supplied additional information and was questioned thereon,
assisted by Mr. Douglas.

Mr. Henderson agreed to supply at the next sitting answers to questions
by Mr. Winch relating to paragraphs dealing with “The form and content of
the Estimates” and also “Prairie Farm Emergency Fund Deficit”.

The Committee completed consideration of the Auditor General’s Follow-
Up Report and the Chairman advised that at its next sitting the Committee
would further consider the 1962 Report of the Auditor General.

At 11.55 a.m., the Committee adjourned until 9.30 a.m. on Thursday, June 4.

M. SLACK,
Clerk of the Committee
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EVIDENCE
TUESDAY, June 2, 1964.

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, I see a quorum. The meeting will come to
order.

I have one or two very brief matters to bring up. Firstly, may I apologjze
for having cancelled the last meeting. This particular room is the nest}ng
ground of the caucus of Her Majesty’s loyal opposition. There was a meeting
here last Thursday and unfortunately we could not obtain another room; also,
the defence committee was meeting, so I had to cancel our meeting. I
apologize for having to do that.

Secondly, you may recall the resolution passed at the last meeting. The
committee authorized the report to be made to the house calling for the
appointment of subcommittees along the lines of our discussion. I take the
responsibility for the fact that in suggesting the resolution we included in it
a provision that the subcommittees should have the power to sit while the house
is sitting. Our main committee does not have that power, and I would suggest,
with your approval, that you might like to amend the resolution to give the
main committee power to meet while the house is in session. We did not find
it necessary to use that power last year, and the only reason we suggest it is
in the event we have witnesses here who are unable to complete their
testimony in one sitting. Last year we did not sit at all while the house was in
session, except on the occasion when we were preparing our report. This also
is my hope this year.

According to your request, I was in touch with the chief government whip
with regard to a meeting of the chairmen of committees to see whether we
could integrate and arrange the respective committee meeting times so that
there would not be too much overlapping. So far, such a meeting has not been
held, but I believe such a meeting will be held. In the meantime, I did have a
meeting with Mr. Hahn, the Chairman of the defence committee. A number of
our members also are members of that committee.

Subject to your approval, he suggested, and I think it is a good idea, that
the public accounts committee might meet from 9.30 a.m. until 11 a.m., and
the committee on defence would meet from 11 o’clock on; in other words, one
committee would follow the other. This would permit members to attend both
committees. It would also mean that one room would be available in the
morning for two committees. This is a small step we have made in an effort
to permit members to attend both committees.

Mr. FANE: May I so move?

The CHAIRMAN: I would be glad if you would. There should be two
separate motions; one with regard to meeting while the house is in session, if
necessary, and the other with regard to the sittings.

Mr. LessARD (Saint-Henri): Would the power to sit while the house is in
session be for the subcommittee?

The CHAIRMAN: It would be for the main committee if required. Last
year we did not have to do so, and I hope we will not have to do so this year;
but it might be advantageous to have this power for the main committee as
well as for subcommittees if such are established.

Mr. WincH: As I think you know, I am most interested in the public
accounts, but also in the defence committee. Is it my understanding that as
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a result of your discussion with Mr. Hahn, the meetings of both will be held in
the same committee room so that we can go from one to the other?

The CHAIRMAN: I think this is the general understanding. I have not
looked at the Votes and Proceedings to see whether or not that has been carried
out; but the idea is that we would meet from 9.30 a.m. until 11 a.m., and the
defence committee would carry on in the same room as soon as we completed
our sitting at 11 o’clock. I believe they would sit from 11 a.m. until 1 p.m.
This is an attempt to work out some reconciliation of our conflicting times.

Mr. WincH: What is the position now? The defence committee is called for
11 o’clock, and I believe they are meeting in a different room today.

The CHAIRMAN: I understand that their next meeting will be in the same
room as ours.

Mr. ForBes: Out of some 265 odd members in the House of Commons, I
think there should be sufficient members to go around so that there would be a
quorum on all the committees without one group of members being the group
which attends the committees. I believe this is an important committee. I know
the last time I was on it, there was not enough time spent on this subject. I
think this committee is important enough that we should meet a ten o’clock,
be here at ten o’clock, and meet until 12 o’clock, or whatever hour is necessary
in order to do a proper job with regard to the matters which come before us.

The CHAIRMAN: Might we have a formal motion that we ask the house for
permission to sit while the house is sitting?

Mr. FANE: I so move.

Mr. TArDIF: I second the motion.

Motion agreed to.

The CHAIRMAN: Now, we might have a motion, or discussion first, on the
subject of the times of our meetings. You have heard my comments and those
of Mr. Forbes.

Mr. FANE: I would like to move that we sit at 9.30 a.m. on Tuesdays and
Thursdays.

The CHAIRMAN: Would you suggest that be from 9.30 a.m. until 11 a.m.?
Mr. WincH: Yes.

Mr. SoutHAM: Mr. Chairman, there is considerable merit in what Mr.
Forbes has said, but owing to the fact that this year we find ourselves in the
position where members are sitting on both committees, I think we must com-
promise as you suggest. Possibly in the next session of parliament we might try
to arrange it so that the same members do not have to sit on two committees
on the same morning.

Mr. RYAN: In addition to having the meeting of the defence committee at
the same hour, there will be inconvenience to some of us who have French les-
sons between 9 a.m. and 10 a.m. on Tuesday and Thursday mornings. Ten
o’clock would be far more convenient, at least for a few of us.

The CHAIRMAN: Are there any further comments?
Mr. RINFRET: I second the motion.

The CHAIRMAN: The motion is that we sit from 9.30 a.m. until 11 a.m. on
Tuesday and Thursday mornings.

Mr. Ryan, since you were not here when I mentioned this, I might ex-
plain that following a direction from the committee at the last meeting, I had
a discussion with Mr. Hahn, the Chairman of the defence committee, 1n an
effort to arrange for a staggering of the times of these two committees. This is
the suggestion, and as I understand it, it has been approved by the defence
committee. I said I would put the suggestion before the public accounts commit-
tee today for its approval. This is a suggested compromise. Is there any further
discussion on this motion? Are you ready for the question?
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Motion agreed to.

The CHAIRMAN: Now, there is one more thing before I call on Mr. Hender-
son. It has been brought to my attention by Mr. Forbes that a circular letter
has been sent to members from the parliamentary secretary to the Minister of
Public Works to the effect that next Thursday at ten o’clock there is a tour
arranged by the National Capital Commission. I do not know whether or not
it is your view that you wish to pass up this committee meeting in order to
attend this tour, or whether you are prepared to carry on with our meeting. I
mention this now so that if anyone thinks this should be discussed, we can do so.

Mr. Tarpir: I suggest, Mr. Chairman, that those who have not taken that
tour before do so, and that the others attend our meeting.

The CHAIRMAN: I assure you that as much as I like to go on tours I will
be here.

Mr. WincH: I received this communication and I acknowledge it expressing
appreciation of the invitation but saying that I thought there would be a
meeting of the public accounts committee, and I declined the invitation.

Mr. FANE: I did the same thing.

Mr. Ryan: I did also.

The CHAIRMAN: I am glad to hear these expressions of loyalty to the
public accounts committee. Perhaps we might proceed on the basis that the
committee will be sitting on Thursday, and that we will have a quorum.

Gentlemen, Mr. Henderson and his officials are with us again. As you will
recall, we had proceeded to discuss with him his follow-up report on our report
the house last year, and had discussed the first item. We had got as far as
the item appearing on page 2 which deals with the form and content of the
estimates.

At this point I will call on Mr. Henderson to bring that matter up to date
and tell us what has happened and what has been done.

Mr. A. M. HENDERSON (Auditor General): Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Gentlemen, on page 2 of the follow-up report at the bottom of the page you
will find the next subject, namely the form and content of the estimates. If
you would turn over to page 3, in the comments section I advise you of the
action taken. You will recall a subcommittee was established for the purpose
of examining the form and content of the estimates, with particular reference
to looking over the proposed adoption of a revised vote pattern which the
treasury board had brought to the committee. These matters were discussed
in the subcommittee under the chairmanship of Mr. Wahn. I now report to
you that the major improvements I suggested to the subcommittee with
regard to this vote pattern were adopted by the treasury board in the presenta-
tion of the main estimates for 1964-65.

This adoption relates to your recommendation under (a). With regard to
(b), and (c), calling for supplementary financial information regarding crown
corporations and other public instrumentalities, and the presentation of addi-
tional information in the estimates concerning staff of government departments,
this information was not included in the main estimates for 1964/5.

I think Mr. Wahn will recall that the secretary of the treasury board
said it might not be practical to include these improvements in the main
estimates for 1964-65; but I remain with the understanding, and I believe that
would be your understanding, that the treasury board will be giving effect
to these in the 1965-66 estimates. At least, that was the basis of the discussion.
Is that your recollection, Mr. Wahn?

Mr. WaHN: Certainly the subcommittee recommended that. I cannot recall
whether or not there was any commitment given by Mr. Steele on behalf of
the treasury board, but certainly the subcommittee recommended that this
presentation be carried through immediately, and the others in the future.
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Mr. HENDERSON: Yes. There was a longer list of other changes which are
dependent on the introduction of the program budgeting project, but these
probably are not yet possible. In the meantime, the presentation of the sup-
porting financial information regarding crown corporations might be brought
in in some detail in the estimates. I am hoping treasury board will be able
to do something along these lines in the 1965-66 main estimates when they
bring them down.

The CHAIRMAN: Are there any questions on this particular item?

Mr. WincH: With regard to the comment by the Auditor General in respect
of the estimates, might I ask whether he has any authority to look into the
purchases made under the estimates, which are then declared surplus and
turned over to the crown corporation, without being used and sold, for about
10 per cent of their value? Does he have any check on that with regard to
expenditures which are made after estimates are approved.

Mr. HENDERSON: Are you referring to sale of property?

Mr. WincH: No, I am referring to the sale of any goods which have been
purchased if they are included in the estimates. My point is with regard to
estimates. If certain purchases are made and then the goods purchased are
turned over to the Crown Assets Disposal Corporation without having been used,
is the Auditor General able to check this?

Mr. HENDERSON: Where any instances of that nature come to our attention
we certainly check them in the course of our test work. I am not very clear
as to what you are referring to.

Mr. WincH: I am referring to purchases made by government which must
be authorized through estimates.

Mr. HENDERSON: That is right.

Mr. WincH: Whether this year or going back over the years, if purchases
are made on the authority of the house through the estimates, and if the
equipment is not used and is then turned over to the Crown Assets Disposal
Corporation unused and sold by Crown Assets Disposal Corporation, do you
have any check on the purchase price authorized through the estimates and
the selling price obtained by Crown Assets Disposal Corporation.

: Mr. HENDERSON: Where we find transactions of that nature we most cer-
tainly check them and follow them through. We would not have any control,
so to speak, over altering any of the bases of the transaction but we would
certainly take note of them and if a loss were incurred we would doubtless
draw attention to it. If there were cases in which material was not used we
would follow it through.

Mr. WincH: Perhaps I could put it in a different way. Does your auditing
branch che;ck sales of the Crown Assets Disposal Corporation on the purchase
of something authorized through estimates which is declared surplus?

) Mr. TArDIF: Is a check made by your department, for instance, of the
dlfferenqe between the cost of the material when purchased and the sale price
when disposed of? I think that is Mr. Winch’s point. Do you check to see
whether the sale price is reasonable? Is that it, Mr. Winch?

Mr. WincH: I am referring to materials authorized under the estimates.

Mr. HENDERSON: Yes, sir, we would check these. We would follow them
through. If we found a sizeable loss had been suffered under that procedure
we would ask questions about it.

Mr. HARKNESS: In transactions of that kind is the situation not that if the
goods to be disposed of have a value of anything more than a fairly small
amount they are put up for public tender?

Mr. HENDERSON: You mean by the Crown Assets Disposal Corporation?
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Mr. HARKNESS: Yes.

Mr. HENDERSON: Yes, they do that but we are certainly interested in the
source of all material that the Crown Assets Disposal Corporation is offering
to the public because we are the auditors of the Crown Assets Disposal Cor-
poration and, in going over their records, we are able to identify the material
and see where it comes from.

Mr. WincH: I am sorry if I have not made my point clear. This is rele-
vant to estimates. I am referring to estimates which have been carried as a
result of which purchases are made. Is there any follow up by you in regard to
the Crown Assets Disposal Corporation if those materials that were bought
under the authority of parliament are sold unused and brand new by the
Crown Assets Disposal Corporation?

This matter is particularly in my mind because in the last three or four
months I have been noting some of the sales by Crown Assets Disposal Corpora-
tion of goods which were bought under the authority of the estimates approved
by parliament. It has come to my attention—if I may give you an illustration—
that 32 pieces of laboratory equipment which were completely unused were
sold for 10 per cent of their value. They were completely unused.

I think Mr. Harkness knows my point. What check do you have on the
passage of estimates for the purchase of material which is sold when brand
new by Crown Assets Disposal Corporation?

Mr. HENDERSON: My supervisor, Mr. Smith, who is in charge of this
particular work is not here today; but with your permission I would like to
follow this up and give you a statement on it at the next meeting. Would
that be satisfactory? I see now precisely what you mean.

Mr. WincH: The point to which I am referring is that I have in the last
few months been reading a lot of the tenders sent out on material for sale.
I would say that I have personally read about 150 pages and I have found
brand new material being sold at sacrifice and junk prices. I am trying to tie
it in now with the estimates and any follow through that your department
might make. What is your follow through procedure between purchases made
under the estimates and the sale of new material by the Crown Assets Disposal
Corporation?

Mr. WAHN: Through you, Mr. Chairman, may I put a question to Mr.
Winch? You have emphasized that this is new equipment that is being sold by
the Crown Assets Disposal Corporation. Are you concerned that, or do you
wish to be assured that, the Crown Assets Disposal Corporation is following
proper procedures in selling assets turned over to it, or are you concerned
with the possibility that new equipment is being bought under the authoriza-
tion of the estimates, equipment which obviously was not required at all?
It is obvious that it was not required because it was turned over unused to
the Crown Assets Disposal Corporation. Is that your concern? In other words,
are you concerned about the procedures followed by the Crown Assets Disposal
Corporation generally in disposing of property, new or used, or are you con-
cerned about the possibility that under the authority of the estimates equip-
IglEI}ll'E’ is being bought which really is not needed? Or are you concerned about

oth?

Mr. WincH: I am concerned, Mr. Chairman, with what is before us; that
is, the position of the Auditor General of Canada. Does he follow through
purchases that have been made which were unnecessary or surplus—

Mr. HENDERSON: —or not required.

Mr. WincH: I am referring to new equipment that is sold at junk prices,

material that is sold at around 10 to 33 per cent of the price the Canadian
taxpayers paid, material which was unnecessary to begin with. I am speaking
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wholly and solely, sir, of the position of the Auditor General. Is there any
follow through on what he finds? Does he find that new equipment bought
by the government of Canada is being sold unused as surplus and that it has
been bought unnecessarily? It is the Auditor General’s point of view I am
discussing at the moment.

Mr. HENDERSON: I appreciate your bringing this up. The problem is of
direct interest to us as examination of such cases is my responsibility.

As a result of that I would like to discuss the matter with my supervisor,
who is responsible, and then to report back at the next meeting, if that will be
satisfactory to you.

The CHAIRMAN: May I make a suggestion, Mr. Winch? At the moment we
are really concerned with the form of the estimates rather than the detail
of them. During the course of the Auditor General’s report dealing with Crown
corporations we will be touching upon or at least we will have the opportunity
to touch upon the Crown Assets Disposal Corporation itself. That might be
the appropriate time for a more searching examination of this topic.

Mr. WincH: You see my point, Mr. Chairman?

Mr. HENDERSON: Yes, it starts with the estimates.

Mr. WINcH: My point is that unnecessary purchases are being made and
the goods purchased are then being sold through the Crown Assets Disposal
Corporation, unused.

Mr. HENDERSON: Yes.

The CHAIRMAN: You are filing a caveat now as to your intentions in this
matter?

Mr. WincH: I would be very happy to give examples if required.

The CrAIRMAN: I feel it might be appropriate to deal with this when we
are discussing this particular corporation among the other crown corporations.

Mr. HENDERSON: It perhaps goes a little further than that corporation, Mr.
Chairman. I am very grateful to Mr. Winch for raising this question because
it is just the sort of things we like to hear, and when we do hear of such things
we like to take a particularly close look at them. The opportunity to report
back will be very helpful.

Mr. HARKNESS: May I ask Mr. Henderson if this will be included among
the supplementary financial information regarding crown corporations which
were mentioned in his comments and which were not included in the main
estimates for 1964-65.

Mr. HENDERSON: Only in total figures, Mr. Harkness. That supplementary
financial information principally consists of the budgets which are prepared
by the crown corporations supporting their total request for money.

Mr. HARKNESS: A matter of this nature would not come into that?

Mr. HENDERSON: Their intention to purchase would be contained in the fig-
ures but the figures would of course be only total figures. This is solely for the
purpose of providing the members with some idea of what is behind the large
figures that are sought by the crown corporations from parliament. It was felt
that they could be usefully shown in the estimates detail in order that the
members might be better informed.

Mr. McLEAN (Charlotte): Will the Auditor General be interested in the
crown corporation if the crown corporation sells anything at public tender?
You would not be interested in that, would you?

Mr. HENDERSON: In cases in which we are the auditors for the crown
corporation we naturally carry out test checks to satisfy ourselves as to the
propriety of the transactions and the source of the material they are selling.
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Mr. FANE: Mr. Henderson, would you in your checking look to see why
such material became surplus, why it was sold as new material and why it was
over-bought in the first place?

Mr. HENDERSON: Yes, sir, we would do that through the medium of exam-
ining files and following the material back to source.

In the event that there was a case which I felt should be advised to the
House of Commons it would appear in my report.

Mr. FANE: Very good, thank you.

The CHAIRMAN: Are there any other questions on that?

Mr. WincH: If this is policy, then of course the Auditor General will so
inform me: I am referring to your last comment dealing with the main estimates
and then the second paragraph dealing with supplementaries.

Has any consideration been given to the possibility of a plan whereby pur-
chases should be considered by the Auditor General with regard to their
necessity before the House of Commons receives supplementaries and in cases
where the House of Commons has laid down a specific amount?

Mr. HENDERSON: If I understand your question correctly you are asking if
the treasury would submit such supplementary estimates to me for verification

and report back to them. The answer to that is no; I have never received such
requests.

Mr. WINcH: Because you only audit whatever has been spent?

Mr. HENDERSON: My audit is a post-audit.

The CHAIRMAN: Are there any other questions on that topic?

Mr. WincH: I think I have a good idea there, Mr. Chairman!

Mr. HENDERSON: You suggested that I perhaps should not comment on
policy, sir.

The CHAIRMAN: Are there any other questions on this item? May we pass
to the matter of second class mail. I believe Mr. Forbes was about to ask a
question.

Mr. ForBes: In view of your explanation I will leave it until we come to
the Post Office Department and will then ask for my information in more
detail.

Mr. HENDERSON: I shall be dealing with this in my next report to the
House of Commons, which is what the committee asked me to do. You will
recall that the deputy postmaster general was a witness before the committee
last December.

The CHAIRMAN: Are there any further questions on that?

Mr. HENDERSON: With regard to the prairie farmers emergency fund

. deficit you will note my comment at the top of page four which indicates that
action has been taken to implement my own recommendation and the com-
mittee’s recommendation in its last report. I think you would probably regard
this as a satisfactory solution of a subject that was rather long drawn out.

The CHAIRMAN: Members will recall that this was debated when the Minis-
ter of Agriculture brought down his supplementary estimates.

Are there any questions on this item?

Mr. WincH: Just one, Mr. Chairman. I am not quite certain whether this
is the correct time at which to introduce it. I would like, with your per-
mission, to ask the Auditor General whether he audits the books of the farm
fund relative to certain payments having been made which are now being
challenged. Does he audit the books of those farm payments in the prairies?

Does he audit those books and does he check whether or not the payments are
in order?



46 STANDING COMMITTEE

Mr. HENDERSON: Yes. The audit of that fund is my responsibility.

Mr. WincH: Do you check to find out whether the payments are in order?

Mr. HENDERSON: Yes, we make test checks of payments. We do not check
them all but we make test verifications to the extent to which we are able.

Mr. WINcH: May I ask through you, sir, what was the result of the spot
checks in the last two years of that fund?

Mr. HENDERSON: Mr. Winch, I do not have my supervisor, Mr. Stokes,
who is responsible for this work, here this morning. I should like to discuss
that with him before answering your question if I may.

Mr. WincH: I note there is no report on that phase of expenditure of
public funds. Do you anticipate that it will be in the next report? Is there a
reason why it is not in this report?

Mr. HENDERSON: Yes, I would have reports in my office of the extent to
which those checks have been carried out and results obtained.

Mr. WincH: Will they be available to this committee?

Mr. HENDERSON: With your permission I would like to make a statement
on this at the next meeting.

Mr. Muir (Lisgar): Mr. Chairman, I think it would be rather hard to
check. These payments are made after the recipient swears an affidavit to the
effect that what he has said is true. I do not think one would go into the field
and check these, would one?

Mr. HENDERSON: That would depend on the type of program that we carry
out, Mr. Muir. I will deal with that in the report that I propose to give to
Mr. Winch on this matter.

Mr. TarpIF: Under what title are these payments referred to?

Mr. Muir (Lisgar): Prairie farm assistance.

Mr. HENDERSON: Prairie farm assistance payments.

Mr. TARDIF: Are they acreage payments?

Mr. Muir (Lisgar): No.

Mzr. TARDIF: I do not know too much about prairie farming.

Mr. HENDERSON: The nature of the payments is fully described in both my
1962 and 1963 reports.

Mr. ForBes: How would the auditor determine the validity of the
payments?

Mr. WincH: That is a point in which I am interested because the Auditor
General is responsible to the House of Commons for the correct expenditure
of public funds which are authorized. That is the reason I asked whether he
had made the check or whether he had any report.

Mr. ForBEs: I am asking the Auditor General how he does it.

Mr. HENDERSON: That will be contained in the report I propose to give to
Mr. Winch after I have discussed it with the supervisor who is responsible for
this matter.

Mr. WincH: You appreciate that to members of the House of Commons
this is a most serious matter. We would appreciate having a report from the
Auditor General who is responsible to the House of Commons.

Mr. HENDERSON: Yes, sir.

The CHAIRMAN: Are there any further questions on this topic?

Mr. HENDERSON: Mr. Tardif may like to know that on page 16 of my 1962
report I give an outline of prairie farm fund operations.

Mr. Muir (Lisgar): For Mr. Tardif’s information, this is the prairie farm
assistance fund which is made up of one per cent of the sales of all the grain
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in western Canada that is delivered to the elevators. Any deficit is paid from
the treasury.

Mr. WincH: I want it clearly understood that I am not questioning the
act itself or its authority. Can the Auditor General tell us whether or not they
are being made in accordance with the act?

The CHAIRMAN: I think when we come to the Auditor General’s report we
will be dealing with 1962 and 1963.

Mr. HENDERSON: I propose to make a report in respect of Mr. Winch’s
question.

The CHAIRMAN: Are there any other questions on this item? May we pass
to the item reimbursement to servicemen for lease termination payments which
appears on page 4.

Mr. HENDERSON: Mr. Chairman, the members of the committee will recall
that this committee felt that possibly more detailed inquiries should be made
into this matter in the now current session. I received a letter from the deputy
minister of national defence on April 3, the text of which I quote in my
comment. This is a matter which I have brought forward since 1960, and the
committee has in the past expressed its views on this, particularly its recom-
mendation in 1961 that the maximum period be reduced in future to the equiv-
alent of one month’s rent. However, as you will observe, this has not yet been
adopted by the Department of National Defence.

Mr. WincH: Over the years since 1960 there always has been a definite
recommendation from this public accounts committee, and under the cir-
cumstances I feel we should ask a responsible person from the Department
of National Defence to appear before us to explain why since 1960 the
unanimous recommendation of this committee has not been adopted.

The CHAIRMAN: I would certainly think this should be done. There will
be this and other items that the Department of National Defence will be
interested in, and we would hope a responsible person from that department
will appear before us.

Mr. WincH: This is one of the most important committees of the House
of Commons, and surely when over the years a continuous recommendation
from this committee is not adopted, the committee is entitled to know the
reason therefor.

The CHAIRMAN: Are there any further questions on this item?

Mr. SouTHAM: I think Mr. Winch has a very valid suggestion. This topic
was under considerable discussion last year; I think I, myself, commented
on it. In the meantime I have discussed this with personnel of the armed
forces themselves in order to have their comment. I believe they are in
agreement that in peacetime there is no necessity to have this. They are in
a sort of frustrated position when, at the last minute, they have to move,
are transplanted and not given an opportunity to make plans in connection
with their family life, and so on. They feel that at least three months’
notice should be given to the members of the armed forces before a move
is made. This would give the Department of National Defence time to make
arrangements, and consequently the payment of two months’ rent would be
unnecessary. I think this is something which should be followed up.

The CHAIRMAN: Is there any further discussion on this point? Mr. Winch,
you are on the steering committee, and certainly we will take steps to
consider a suggestion to the main committee that at the appropriate time
we call someone from the department to appear here.

Mr. WincH: And that an explanation be given of why they defied the
authority of this committee.
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The CHAIRMAN: Shall we pass to the item advances to the exchange
fund account on page 57

Mr. HENDERSON: This paragraph, Mr. Chairman, had reference to the
statement made by the deputy minister of finance last December to the effect
that he was hopeful of being able to bring forward a report on this subject
by the minister during this now current session. From what he has told me,
I believe he is readying that report to bring it to the committee.

The CHAIRMAN: Are there any questions on this item? We will go on to
unemployment insurance fund.

Mr. HENDERSON: As you will see here, that although the act has not yet
been amended, I am proceeding to examine the annual financial statements
of the fund, and I am attaching my certificate to them and they are appearing
on that basis in the public accounts. All we are waiting for here is the
formalization of this as a part of the statute itself when the act is opened up
for amendment.

Mr. WincH: What kind of a check do you make on the unemployment
insurance fund in its application? In other words, what is the spot check
that you take of the hundreds of persons who draw from it in an effort
to ascertain whether or not it is being abused?

Mr. HENDERSON: I am glad to say I can give you an immediate answer
on this. I would like Mr. Douglas to speak on the matter.

Mr. JouN R. DougLAs (Audit Director, B Branch, Office of the Auditor
General): Mr. Chairman, every year we do a spot check on adjudication in
the various local offices that we examine to see that it is in line with the
provisions of the act and the regulations; but we do not approach recipients
to see whether they have given correct information, or whether they have
made fraudulent statements. We leave this to the investigators of the Unem-
ployment Insurance Commission.

Mr. WincH: About how many spot checks would you make in a year?

Mr. Doucras: Of the local offices?

Mr. WincH: Yes.

Mr. DoucLas: I do not have the information before me, but if I recollect
correctly, we covered some 65 or 66 offices in the last fiscal year. We have been
able to step up our coverage considerably in the last two or three years.

Mr. WincH: Your inspection of the Unemployment Insurance Commission
is based wholly on the legal aspects and perhaps not on the personal or welfare
reason they may have done something.

Mr. DoucrAas: Yes. We cover the system of internal control, payments, and
so on, as well as the legal aspects.

Mr. HENDERSON: I might add that at the conclusion of each spot check
a report is addressed to the chairman drawing his attention to all of the
points noted in the course of our work, and in practically all cases we ask
questions why this was done, why that was done, and he replies to each one.

Mr. WincH: Do I understand that although you make spot checks, you,
Mr, Auditor General, are responsible for the auditing of the books of the
Unemployment Insurance Commission?

Mr. HENDERSON: That is right.

Mr. WincH: Is it your responsibility in any way whatsoever when you
note a fluctuation or deficit in accounts to make any recommendation to the
government, or is your responsibility just in respect of the actual expenditure?

Mr. HENDERSON: There are two lengthy comments in both my 1962 and my
1963 report in respect of the Unemployment Insurance Commission; one which

PPN T
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is a lengthy two page comment dealing with its administration while the other
has to do with the fund itself. I would suggest that you might care to peruse
these and ask me your questions after that.

Mr. WincH: What I am driving at is, is there any responsibility on you
as Auditor General, if you find on your auditing a financial difficulty, to draw
this to the attention of the responsible government official or the treasury
board?

Mr. HENDERSON: We take this responsibility, yes, and I do that.

Mr. WincH: If as a result of your audit you find a financial difficulty, do
you have a responsibility to pass on any information or make a recommenda-
tion either to the minister or to the treasury board?

Mr. HENDERSON: That depends on the nature of the financial difficulty we
find. If it is merely the fact that the fund has run into a deficit position, the
government, namely the treasury board, is as fully aware of that as I am.
I also bring it to the attention of the House of Commons by giving a detailed
statement in my report. In fact each year, over the years, my reports have
included statements showing what has happened to this fund.

Mr. WincH: You have the authority to do that?

Mr. HENDERSON: Yes, sir.

Mr. WincH: And you do it?

Mr. HENDERSON: Yes, sir. On the other hand, if it were a financial dif-
ficulty, say, stemming from maladministration, or something of that kind, then
that immediately would be the subject of a special report from me—after
having discussed it with the chairman of the commission—to the Minister of
Finance and the Treasury Board asking for their reasons.

Mr. WincH: I have one more question which I think will clear the air a
great deal. Have you found it necessary in any way whatsoever to report to the
treasury board or the minister that you found any maladministration of the
Unemployment Insurance Act?

Mr. Doucras: I would say no, sir.

Mr. HENDERSON: I think not.

Mr. WincH: Thank you. I think that will clear the air a lot on this issue.

Mr. Muir (Lisgar): Is the same procedure used in respect of the admin-
istration of the Prairie Farm Assistance Act and the unemployment insurance
fund? It seems to me there is a parallel there and that what we are concerned
about is the fact that the fund in each case has been abused, or that there is a
possibility of this. How can we check through the audit whether or not either
one of these funds has been abused?

Mr. HENDERSON: As the auditor for both funds it is my responsibility to
bring any such cases to attention, and I have not hesitated to do so where 1
have found them. We have to bear in mind that my examination of necessity
is a test examination. As Mr. Douglas just explained in the case of the unem-
ployment insurance fund, he has been able to cover only 65 of the offices. How
many offices are there?

Mr. Doucras: Roughly about 200 odd local offices.

Mr. HENDERSON: Across Canada?

Mr. DoucLAs: Yes.

Mr. Muir (Lisgar): I do not think you will find maladministration. What
you are going to find is that the affidavits, and so on, are not correct. I think

this is well known throughout Canada, particularly in respect of the unemploy-
ment insurance fund.
20881—2
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Mr. HENDERSON: The unemployment insurance fund has its own inspectors
who deal with the public, and of course deal with any question with regard to
the validity of the statements made to them. In the course of our work we see
those statements. We have questions about those statements. We do not go
to the public recipients direct, but we discuss them with the officials of the
fund, and we ask many searching questions. In point of fact, as I explained
earlier, these questions are contained in our periodical reports on our examina-
tions of the different phases. We are punctilious in reporting on each phase of
our work, and in asking questions. In many cases this leads up to the officials
improving their approaches, taking greater care, and so on.

Mr. Muir (Lisgar): There is not too much you can do about collusion be-
tween the employee and the employer if they want to rifle the fund.

Mr. HENDERSON: We are only watchdogs; we are not detectives. If we see
a case where collusion appears to have taken place, and the officials confirm
that is their view or suspicion, then it becomes a matter for investigation pos-
sibly by the police.

Mr. DoucLAS: I might add that if we do in the course of examining the
files note any incomplete statements from employers with regard to the reason
for discharge, for example, that would have a bearing on drawing benefits,
then we will investigate, and we have done this on a number of instances.

Mr. WincH: Only on the legal aspect?

Mr. DoucrAs: In this instance it would go beyond the legal aspect, where
for example, we have found inconsistencies in information by examining the
files, or where we found that the employer had not given a satisfactory reason,
or had been vague in his reason for the discharge. We would follow this up,
and in some instances find that benefits have been improperly paid.

Mr. HENDERSON: I might direct your attention, Mr. Muir, to paragraph 72
in my 1962 report on the unemployment insurance administration at page 26.
If you would look over on page 27, you will see in the paragraph before the
last a full description of what we do. This perhaps is more in answer to Mr.
Winch. In paragraph 200 on page 137, there is given the full picture of the
out-turn of the fund and its general operation leading up to its financial
statement which I certify at the close of each year.

Mr. WAHN: Mr. Chairman, does the Auditor General feel that the tests
he is carrying out are adequate in view of the amount of criticism there has
been in recent years of people, both employees and employers, abusing the
fund; or does he feel that additional authority is required to enable him to
carry out a more searching inquiry?

Mr. HENDERSON: I would like to see us carry out more searching inquiries,
but I consider that the manner in which Mr. Douglas is handling this particular
work, in the light of our staff limitations, is the best that can be done under
the circumstances.

Mr. WincH: There is the difficulty that the defence committee is meeting
at 11 o’clock and, under a previous arrangement, certain questions which I
want to discuss are coming up. I hope I will not be breaking the quorum if
I leave.

The CHAIRMAN: We are doing all right so far. I hope at the next meeting
you will be able to attend the full meeting of both committees.

Mr. McLEaN (Charlotte): The trouble with the unemployment insurance
fund is that it is mixed up with social secuirty. Should not the unemployment
insurance fund be unemployment insurance, and the social security be divorced
from that; would this not be much easier?

Mr. HENDERSON: That is taking us into the realm of policy, and I do not
know to what extent the members might wish me to discuss that. Have you
any views on that, Mr. Chairman?
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The CHAIRMAN: I suppose, the policy having been determined, it is Mr.
Henderson’s duty then to audit and check based on the policy which has been
established by the government and parliament. As an indivic_lual. he ‘may haye
his own private views, but I think it would be difficult for him in his capacity
as Auditor General to express views with regard to government policy when
he is reporting to parliament. I am not stopping him from doing so, but I
would imagine this is the case.

Mr. TarprirF: I do not think it has even been publicly admitted that it is
being used for social security measures. I think everyone knows it has been
so used on many occasions but it is not publicly admitted.

Mr. McLeEaN (Charlotte): What is the point in our criticizing? I think
criticism from us at this stage is pointless.

Mr. HENDERSON: This committee dealt with this subject at great length
in 1961, at which time Mr. Murchison gave evidence. The committee brought
down strong recommendations which, I think it is fair to say, may have had
something to do with the employment of the Gill commission to examine these
abuses. Statements were made and facts were produced to show that the
practice was actuarially unsound, that they were going beyond the apparent
requirements of straight unemployment insurance. It was following that par-
ticular report of the committee that, I believe, the Gill commission was set up.
That is correct, is it not, Mr. Douglas?

Mr. J. R. DoucLas (Supervisor, Auditor General’s Office): That is correct,
sir, yes.

Mr. SoutHAM: I think the discussion we are getting into this morning is
expressive of the concern we, as members of parliament, feel in regard to the
administration of the fund and particularly in regard to the policy. Of course,
we indicated this concern when we set up the Gill commission to make a study
of the matter. We will be participating in legislation from the House of Com-
mons that will tighten up this act so it can be policed more efficiently.

I can appreciate Mr. Henderson’s point of view; he cannot be expected to
answer questions here this morning indicating what policy we should follow.
His chief function as I see it, and I think all members will agree, is to see there
is no maladministration so far as the practices themselves are concerned.

The prairie farmers assistance fund is another example of malpractice
which is due to the weakness of individuals in cases where they have had
opportunities to make false affidavits and so on and in cases in which they
have been able to stretch the procedure to take advantage of it. I think this
is the point at which, when the debate comes up in the house for amendments
to the act, we can make recommendations that will tighten the strings a little
so we do not find these discrepancies creeping into the administration itself
but casting no reflection upon the people who are administering the fund.

The CHAIRMAN: It is quite competent for the members of the committee
at the appropriate time to deal with this, and that will be when we come to
the Auditor General’s report and his detailed statement. If the committee then
feel they want to ask any of the officials of the Unemployment Insurance Com-
mission to appear before them they may do so. It has been done before with
useful results, as Mr. Henderson said. It will then be a matter for your own
decision at that time. I am sure those officials will be only too glad to appear
if you so desire.

Mr. HENDERSON: It is because of the importance of this whole program
and the attention that has been directed to it that, beginning in 1962, I inserted
a special section in my report dealing with the unemployment insurance ad-
ministration, as distinct from the operation of the fund. I gave Mr. Tardif
the numbers of the paragraphs. In my 1963 report that is up-dated and it

appears in paragraph 63 on page 33. There I have sought to bring out the
20881—2}
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size of the Unemployment Insurance Commission because I doubt that this is
generally known or realized. For example, its administrative expenses alone
amount to some $48 million a year. Those expenses went up to $48 million in
1962-63 from $45 million in the previous year. Its full time staff ranges around
9,000 people with about 1,900 casual employees. This is big business.

Mr. TarpirF: That itself should eliminate unemployment!

Mr. HENDERSON: I took the opportunity of going over this in my reports
in order to up-date the members on the proposals of the special committee of
inquiry. Whatever individual views there may be on these, they did seek to come
to grips with this whole business. I felt that this committee would be very
interested in it, and my feeling is re-enforced by the way you have been ex-
pressing yourselves now. I think the committee can take great credit from its
1961 detailed examination of this program. That stemmed from a comment
in my earlier report—the one the committee was examining at that time—which
showed the extent to which these abuses were creeping in, the very point that
Mr. Tardif raised a little earlier.

As the Chairman has said, however, we will come to these paragraphs in
the 1963 report and it might be that at that time you will feel it desirable to
call the chairman before the committee to question him on some of these points
and to ask him where the fund is going.

The CHAIRMAN: And where the cost of administration is going.

Mr. HENDERSON: I think the cost of administration is certainly high. It is
becoming a very high built-in cost.

Mr. TARDIF: You could practically use the term “staggering”.

Mr. WAHN: I am not quite certain that I understand the difference between
what this committee recommended and what is actually being done. The report
that we have in front of us states that in its 1963 report the committee ex-
pressed the hope that action would be taken to implement its earlier recom-
mendation that the preparation of annual financial statements for the Unem-
ployment insurance fund should be made a statutory responsibility of the
Unemployment Insurance Commission, and that the statements should be
reported upon by the Auditor General. The Auditor General comments that
no action has yet been taken for reasons given, but he says:

In the meantime and pending provision of such a statutory direction,
the annual financial statements of the fund, approved by the chief com-
missioner, are being presented by him to me for examination and
certification.

I find it very difficult to see what there is in addition to that that we can
want to be done.

Mr. HENDERSON: May I just explain this very briefly. The unemployment
insurance fund is a fund within the consolidated revenue fund, and in the
past the detailed statements have always appeared in the public accounts
prepared by the treasury showing the income and the outgo. Another schedule
showed the securities. It used to have a large portfolio of securities, as you
may recall.

One of the recommendations I had made back in 1960 was that there
should be proper, complete financial statements showing the entire operations
of the fund which, if prepared in the form of a balance sheet with the securities
and everything else tied in, I would be prepared to certify in the same way as
I certify the financial statements of the crown corporations. It was simply a
matter of tidying up the manner in which they had been reported, in the past.
This suggestion found favour, and in the case of the Unemployment Insurance
Commission they proceeded to revamp their accounting practices to prepare
formal orthodox statements. They presented them to me and I am now cer-




PUBLIC ACCOUNTS 53

tifying them. These appear in the public accounts. We think this is quite a step
forward.

However, it is necessary—and I-am sure you will agree—in all these cases
to have that made a requirement of the act in the same way as it is a require-
ment in many of our other statutes that financial statements will be certified
by the auditor and placed before the shareholders or parliament, as the case
may be.

This is awaiting discussicn in the House of Commons of the whole Gill
report. This is one of the recommendations of the Gill commission. The chair-
man saw the merits of this suggestion in the course of the committee hearings,
and it is contained in that report. )

We are getting on with the job here but we do not have the statutory
authority to do it yet.

Mr. WAHN: Mr. Chairman, then I gather that although there is no statutory
authority you are actually doing it.

Mr. HENDERSON: Yes, the officials of the Commission saw the merits of it
and immediately went ahead in quite a constructive way. We are examining
and certifying their financial statements each year now.

Mr. RyaN: Why would it be necessary to have legislation? Why could
the procedure not be just adopted?

Mr. HENDERSON: That is a good question, Mr. Ryan, except that if the
unemployment insurance act were to provide for the preparation of financial
statements consisting of—and spelling out those things of which they should
consist—revenue, expenditures and a balance sheet, and that these statements
shall be certified by the Auditor General and laid before the house—

Mr. Ryan: I think you would feel better if it was made a requirement.

Mr. HENDERSON: I think it makes for a more orderly and orthodox procedure
and is in line with what parliament has instructed the majority of its other
agencies to do.

; Mr. RyaN: When you say that no action has yet been taken, do you mean
b in respect of this feature only?

; Mr. HENDERSON: Yes, that is right.

The CHAIRMAN: Are there any other questions?

Mr. ForBeEs: Mr. Chairman, it seems to me that what the committee is
looking for is some sort of report upon the amount of payments that have been
made to people who are not justified in receiving these payments.

The Auditor General has referred to the commission having inspectors on
the job. However, this is a case where the inspector would have no report: I

~am referring to the number of prosecutions taking place of people collecting

unwarranted amounts. He would have no report on that, would he? This is
where the loss is incurred in connection with the unemployment insurance
fund; it is not at the administrative level that we find the loss but rather with
people collecting money who are not entitled to it. Is that not the case?

Mr HENDERSON: Yes, and you might be interested if I were just to read
an excerpt from page 34 of the 1963 report in which I say:

In appraising the wvalidity of benefit awards, no attempt is made
by the audit office to verify the accuracy or completeness of information
regarding claimants, contained in the records of the commission and
provided to it by claimants, employers or others, beyond questioning
apparent deficiencies in these records. This aspect of the verification of

claims is carried out by the commission’s own investigation enforcement
staff.
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Although operating at a slightly lower level of strength during
1962-63, this staff achieved a slight increase in the number of investiga-
tions completed over that of the preceding year.

Notwithstanding this increase, penalties imposed on claimants for
false or misleading statements were fewer in number, totalling 20,367
compared with 22,650 in 1961-62, a drop of 10 per cent.

This is the type of comment which I am making in respect of the adminis-
tration of the Unemployment Insurance Commission because I think it is
important to see how its administration is proceeding.

Mr. ForBes: I think that is where the problem lies.

Mr. McLEaN (Charlotte): I do not think the problem is there. The
company with which I am associated has quite a lot to do with the unemployed
people. We find the unemployment act works well and that they do cut people
off, and so on.

What is wrong with the act is that certain segments of our economy have
been put in there, segments which should not be in there. The trouble is not
with the little claims that come in and are turned down or passed; that is just
administration of the business and it will not affect the deficit in the unemploy-
ment insurance fund. The aspect of it that will affect the deficit is the addition of
segments of our economy which are not justifiably included in this act, you might
say, on an actuarial basis.

Mr. HENDERSON: That is what I brought out in my 1962 report. We sought
to show precisely where the abuses lay, and it was as a result of the committee’s
consideration that you called in the officers.

Mr. McLEAN (Charlotte): It seems to me that we should have figures show-
ing what is paying and what is not paying.

Take the workmen’s compensation, for example. In that case if there is a
segment of the economy that is not paying its way, up goes the rate. It has to
pay its way. The rates are all the same in this case and we have
part of our economy that is not paying its way. When we started out it was
apparently paying its way and we had a surplus in the fund, but we will never
have a surplus in the fund as long as we include segments of the economy
which do not pay their way. It seems to me we have to find out what it is and
put the fund on a sound financial basis. We must ensure that the government
gives grants to these other parts which do not pay, and then we will know
where we are.

Mr. ForBES: Would Mr. McLean care to name some of the segments to
which he refers who should not be benefited?

Mr. MCLEAN (Charlotte): I do not say they should not be benefited. We
have a situation in which this fund is not working on the basis on which it
start'ed out. Take fishing, for example; if we are going to include that industry
special grants should be given from the government rather than trying to
blame the unsound financial basis upon the unemployment insurance.

: Mr. SoutHAM: We saw the weaknesses in the act as presently set up, and
this is why the Gill commission was requested to investigate and bring in the
recommendations. I do not think we are serving any useful purpose by discuss-
ing all these aspects of this particular phase this morning because Mr. Henderson
cannot be expected to make comments on policy; this is our duty.

The CHAIRMAN: If it is the wish of the committee we will have someone
from .the Unemployment Insurance Commission before us and then, in our
capagty as members of the committee, we can direct questions to him. Having
recelveQ information in that way we can, as members of the House of Commons,
use the information we have obtained here to express our views as members of
the House of Commons when questions of policy come up in the house.
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Are there any more questions? I suggest the steering committee will take
note of the committee’s views with regard to calling someone from the Unem-
ployment Insurance Commission before us at the appropriate time.

If there are no more questions on this topic we may proceed to the next
item, which is concerned with departmental operating activities.

Mr. HENDERSON: This is a subject we discussed last December. You
approved of my objective and asked me to continue to keep the development of
the objective under close surveillance and to report to the committee. This I am
doing, and I propose dealing with it in my next report to the House of Commons.

The CHAIRMAN: The next item in the report is that of the board of grain
commissioners. We now go back to western Canada.

Mr. HENDERSON: As you will recall, your consideration of this stems from
the facts regarding the operation of the board of grain commissioners which
indicated that its expenditures were exceeding its revenues by more than $1
million. You asked me to keep this matter under review and to report to you
in due course.

I am now able to tell you that I have been advised by the deputy minister
of agriculture that it is intended to move on this matter. In point of fact, as
recently of April 20 last the department issued a circular stating that they
proposed to amend their regulations to increase inspection and weighing fees
by 50 per cent in order to enable the board to meet expenditures involved in
providing these services, but not to do so until August 1, 1965.

I was further informed that the board had in mind the revision of these fees
in the present crop year, but the deputy minister said that owing to the very
narrow margin on which the grain trade was operating on contracts under
present international agreements it was not considered equitable to announce
changes after those contracts had been entered into. Therefore we have a case
here where your recommendation is in fact going to be implemented, and I
believe we have here a copy of the circular which went out and which states
that the rates will go up because of what I have been saying in my reports.

Mr. ForBES: Mr. Chairman, you recall in 1961 we had a short crop year and
the charges of the board of grain commissioners were on a bushel basis. We had
a short crop that year, but let us compare this with the last year when they had
a heavy crop in western Canada. I fully expect the board of grain commissioners
will pay its own way and have a surplus this year.

Mr. HENDERSON: That could be so.

Mr. ForBEs: It is difficult to estimate from time to time what should be
charged. One does not know what kind of crop one will be handling.

The CHAIRMAN: Is there any more discussion? Are there any more questions
on this point? If not may we turn to the matter of subsidies, which appears at
the end of page 6?

Mr. HENDERSON: Mr. Chairman, I have to tell you I believe I was not
strictly correct in my comment here. Mr. Long and I checked this with the
office of the secretary of the treasury board only the other day, and we find that
the listing in question was actually updated before the committee rose in
December, and copies of this updating in fact, were made available to the
members on December 5. I apologize for having treated this as an outstanding
item. The extent to which the committee members may want to have it still
further updated is something else again. The secretary of the treasury board
most certainly carried out your requirement last December.

The CHAIRMAN: I do not know whether or not members will recall, but
there was a 49 page statement distributed which was broken down in detail
showing all the subsidies, grants and special payments made by the govern-
ment starting in 1959 which aggregated a total of $1,606,000,000, and by
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1963-64 $2,228,000,000. While we have no determination with regard to how
these are made and the purpose of them, we are interested in having before us,
at the request of the Auditor General, a fairly concrete and synopsised form,
in one document, all the payments by the Government to other individuals, and
so on, so that anyone interested could put his finger on these and see how these
figures are growing. The treasury board did bring this up to date. The members
may recall that at our last session we had some discussion with regard to
whether or not this could be put in a form more acceptable. I do not think
our discussion proceeded beyond that at that time.

Mr. MuIir (Lisgar): What is the cut-off date of that?

The CHAIRMAN: It is brought up to 1963-64 showing a total at that time of
$2,228,000,000 as an aggregate of all the grants.

Mr. SoutHAM: I would like to commend the departmental officials for
having prepared this. I think it is in a concise form and contains a good deal of
the information we require and would like to discuss.

Mr. Ryan: This is dated December 2, 1963, and is prepared by the staff
of the treasury board.

The CHAIRMAN: Yes. As I understand it it was not prepared under any
statutory requirement, but the treasury board have it for information purposes.
It was made available to us, and we have had an opportunity to review it. It
is purely for purposes of information. It is for the committee to decide whether
or not it wants to deal with it.

Mr. Muir (Lisgar) : Would it be possible to have this prepared on an annual
basis?

The CHAIRMAN: Does the treasury board keep this up to date each year?
Mr. HENDERSON: I believe so. I believe they could meet your request, if you
would like to have it on an annual basis.

Mr. Muir (Lisgar): You can find it in the estimates, but it would be easier
to have it in this form.

The CHAIRMAN: Is it the view of the committee that we should have this up
to date each year and presented in due course to the committee?
Agreed.

Mr. HENDERSON: The next is the Canada Council. This reference had to do
with the appearance of officers of the Canada Council at the last meeting, and
the members will recall they postponed further consideration of the problem
involved until the now current session. In the meantime, as my comment
indicates there has been no change in its approach to the handling of the
distribution of the accumulated profits and interest earned on the university
capital grants fund. I would suggest, Mr. Chairman, that you might care to defer
this item until the officers of the Canada Council appear before you in connection
with our review of the 1962-63 accounts, because you have this as a specific
reference to the committee.

The CHAIRMAN: Yes. I have been in touch with an official of the Canada
Council, and they have asked for the opportunity to appear so that we might
have a full discussion, not only of this item, but also of their 1962-63 financial
report, and the statements in the reports of the Auditor General. Are there
any other questions at this time on this point?

Mr. HENDERSON: On page 7, we now turn to the matters we covered in
my 1962 report. The first item followed the discussion of the summary, that
I have placed in my report to the house, of employees authorized for the
public service, by departments, crown corporations and other instrumentalities.
In accordance with your request, I am preparing a comparative list along
the lines discussed for inclusion as an appendix in my report to the house for
the year just ended.




PUBLIC ACCOUNTS 57

Internal financial control is a subject on which I have commented over
the past several years in my reports to the house, and again I am continuing
my examination into this area, and will be reporting to the house further
on the subject in my next report.

On the next item, government contributions not made to superannua-
tion accounts, you will recall the committee felt steps should be taken promptly
by the executive to remedy the situation I brought up and to urge the
Minister of Finance to give it his early attention. I indicate here that the
Minister of Finance dealt with this subject in his statement to the house on
March 6. He mentioned several adjustments being made in the accounts for
1963-64 with regard to accumulated actuarial deficiencies in the various
superannuation accounts.

Since submitting this follow-up report to you I have received a reply to
my letter to the deputy minister of finance. In point of fact, he sent it to me
on May 25, although it had been dated earlier. Therefore, at the moment I
have not been able to complete my study of it sufficiently to make any further
comment. However, as this matter will be coming up in your consideration of
my 1962 and 1963 report, it might be that you would wish we hold it over
until then.

The CHAIRMAN: There will be a number of items on which we will require
the appearance of the deputy minister of finance.

Mr. HENDERSON: Yes, I would think so. At that time you may have some
questions on this subject, because I deal with it quite early in my comments
in the 1963 report.

The errors in the public service superannuation account concerning pension
and contribution calculations is a subject that you studied last December. In
accordance with your request, I shall continue to keep you informed with
regard to the progress being made in remedying this situation. This was gone
into last December when Mr. Bryce appeared before the committee. I think you
would agree it probably is too soon to go into it again. However, I intend to do
so later.

The CHAIRMAN: I think Mr. Bryce indicated he was aware of these difficul-
ties, but that it would take some considerable time for them to be able to catch
up with them all.

Mr. HENDERSON: Yes, sir.

The CHAIRMAN: The next item is interest charges on loans to the National
Capital Commission.

Mr. HENDERSON: We had a lengthy discussion on this during Mr. Bryce’s
appearance before the committee, and it will be recalled that the committee
recommended steps be taken to review the present practice of the National
Capital Commission with a vew to placing its financing on a more realistic
basis. However, I do not have any further advice in respect of this, and I have
not been informed what steps have been taken to implement it.

The CHAIRMAN: Have you any indication from the deputy minister that he
feels the suggestion made by you to the committee should be carried out?

Mr. HENDERSON: I think he still retains definite views on the subject, Mr.
Chairman. It might be useful if, on the occasion of his next appearance before
the Committee, this subject could be discussed further.

The indirect compensation to chartered banks has to do with the point
made in my 1962 report concerning the interest paid to the government by
the chartered banks, because, as you will recall, balances up to a level of $100
million are interest free. I suggested that this represented indirect remuneration
which would be contrary to the Bank Act, and you agreed with me in this view,
and added that you felt consideration should be given to the most equitable
manner in which this could be done with statutory sanction being given by
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means of an appropriate amendment to the Bank Act, possibly at the time of
the decennial revision in 1964.

The only comment I have on this is the fact that this decennial revision,
apparently, is going to commence in the late fall of 1964, or in 1965 based on the
minister’s recent statement in the house. I shall follow this up.

The CHAIRMAN: On this next item, was anything done in respect of our
recommendation?

Mr. HENDERSON: I have not received any advice on this point from the
deputy minister of labour, although my officers were aware that the living allow-
ances continued to be paid. At the time of my original comment in my 1962
report, the living allowances were being paid at the rate of $60 a day. I felt that
this included an element of remuneration which would be contrary to sub-
section 1 of section 39 of the Judges Act. Folowing the discussion in this com-
mittee, you agreed with my view and made your recommendation that if addi-
tional remuneration is to be paid to judges appointed as conciliators or
arbitrators on boards established to deal with disputes affecting employers and
their employees, the approval of parliament for payment of the additional
remuneration should be sought. I have not received any advice from the deputy
minister of labour, but we have noted that under an order in council dated
May 7, 1964, the rate of $60 a day has been increased to $100 a day. That is the
only progress I have to report, Mr. Chairman.

The CHAIRMAN: So, not only did the department ignore what we recom-
mended, but rather they increased the amount by $40. Therefore, if they were
wrong at the amount of $60, they are $40 further wrong today.

Mr. Rock: And on top of this, they also receive travelling expenses.

Mr. HENDERSON: Yes, sir.

Mr. TArDpIF: And on top of that they reveive their regular salary?

Mr. HENDERSON: Yes.

Mr. TArDIF: You should not be an auditor; you should be a judge.

Mr. SoutHAaM: I think we should earmark this item for particular con-
sideration when we are discussing the 1963 report.

The CHAIRMAN: I am sure the committee would want to have some
representations, not only in view of the fact that our recommendation was
ignored, but that on the contrary action has been taken to increase the
amount. I think we should make sure we have before us an appropriate
official, and I think this would involve both the Department of Justice and the
Department of Labour.

Mr. DoucLAas: Officially it comes under the Department of Labour.

Mr. HENDERSON: The Department of Justice naturally is very interested
in it, and the deputy minister has spoken to me about it, more in the context
of one of my coments in respect of isolation allowances paid to judges in the
1962-63 fiscal year. He indicated to me he would be prepared to appear
before the committee to discuss that item when it is ealled. You will also
recall that at the last meeting the Minister of Justice himself addressed a
letter to the committee, making the case for the $60 a day being necessary for
the judges for a living allowance to cover their hotel room and meals. It is
quite possible that Mr. Driedger would wish to make some statement to you
on the subject. However, as Mr. Douglas says, this comes under the Department
of Labour officially, and it is the Department of Labour in whose name the
order in council of May 7th to which I have referred was passed.

Mr. ForBEs: Is this allowance exempt from income tax?

Mr. HENDERSON: I believe it is reported on T-4 slips.

Mr. DoucrAas: Yes.
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Mr. HENDERSON: Which means that a judge presumably would claim for
his actual expenses and presumably pay income tax on the net.

Mr. ForBES: What brings this to my mind is a case which came up before
the income tax department in Winnipeg a couple of weeks ago regarding a
man from Grandview, Manitoba, who went to another town to get a job and
the income tax department would not allow him to deduct the cost of his
board while he was away from home getting employment. This may be
compared with the $100 a day, because these fellows need to live at a hotel.

Mr. Ryan: Is there any surrender, by a federally appointed judge acting
as arbitrator or conciliator, of his regular stipend?

Mr. HENDERSON: I think not.

Mr. Rock: In this paragraph here it says “out of pocket expenses for
transportation, parlor and pullman car accommodation and taxicabs”. This
does not include hotel bills in the city; it does not include meals, and all that.
It is just during travelling that the expenses are paid on top of the $60, which
now is increased to $100 a day.

Mr. HENDERSON: The actual wording is that a per diem living allowance of
$100 and actual out of pocket transportation expenses, including parlor and
pullman car accommodation and taxicabs is to be received by the federal judge
in adition to his judicial salary while engaged as a member and chairman of
the said board for which the usual detailed accounts are to be submitted.

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. McLean.

Mr. McLeEAN (Charlotte): Would this $100 apply to arbitrators other than
judges?

Mr. HENDERSON: As Mr. Long was just saying to me, Mr. McLean, the point
here is that the judges act prohibits them from receiving additional remunera-
tion. So far as it might be applicable to others who might be appointed for this
work, they would be free to receive it.

Mr. McLEAN (Charlotte): I was wondering if additional remuneration was
paid to other arbitrators. If it was, then we would have to pay the judges the
same.

Mr. HENDERSON: If they want to have them serve they probably have to
make it attractive, but we are up against the wording of the Judges Act which,
in my opinion, is specific on this point.

The CHAIRMAN: What you have in mind is that $100 includes elements of
remuneration? You have in mind that the $100 would include more than just
the out of pocket expenses?

Mr. HENDERSON: The $100 in the context of the act as we read it is a

“living allowance to cover the cost of their hotel room and meals. The other

expenses are paid on the out of pocket basis. Therefore it becomes a matter of
opinion whether $100 per day covers those expenses. Suites and that type of
thing are expensive. I think this was the point made by Mr. Chevrier in his
letter to the Chairman last December.

Mr. Muir (Lisgar): This applies to legal counsel on commissions as well.
Over and above their remuneration they receive their $100 just the same as the
judges.

Mr. HENDERSON: The $100 rate is paid in other cases, as you know, to people
serving on boards and commissions. The directors of some of the crown corpora-
tions, I think, receive a per diem rate at this level, and they are taxable.

Mr. Forses: Is this not a maximum of $100? If it only costs $25 he would
not be putting in a bill for $100.
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Mr. HENDERSON: He would receive $100. If it cost him $25—and he
presumably files his hotel accounts with the income tax department—then he
would pay income tax on the remaining $75.

Mr. Rock: Your concern is not with the amount? You are concerned with
the legal implication?

Mr. HENDERSON: Yes. As I have stated, it is because of the fact that addi-
tional remuneration would be contrary to subsection 1 of section 39 of the
Judges Act, which prohibits it.

Mr. Rock: You have no facts available to show that the difference between
what the hotel costs and the balance of the fee has been recorded in their income
tax as additional income? You have no facts to prove they have included this
in their income tax reports as additional income?

Mr. HENDERSON: No, that would be a matter for each judge in his own
personal relationship with the income tax department. We see the T-4’s which
are issued by the Department of Labour and sent to the income tax depart-
ment showing the amount paid.

Mr. Rock: I believe if this is considered as a living allowance, as has
been stated, then they are not required to include it in their income tax report
at all, but only the salary itself.

Mr. HENDERSON: All I can say, Mr. Rock, is that we know that the T-4
slips as required by the Income Tax Act are issued by the Department of
Labour in respect of the amounts paid to each judge. The extent to which
each individual reports them to the department is something I have not
checked.

Mr. Tarpir: If a T-4 slip is issued, they do not have much choice but to
report it, do they?

Mr. HENDERSON: That is generally the case. Living allowances generally
are taxable, so that is why the department issues the slips.

Mr. Rock: I do not think any person working for any company or any
school commission or municipality, a person who is for example an alderman
or mayor or who holds any public post or is a functionnaire for any govern-
ment department, would ever report an additional living allowance obtained
from extra work and travel, in their income tax returns, because this is
strictly something additional for expenses. I believe in this case it is an
additional expense incurred by the person who receives it, and I believe it is
considered as such. I do not think it has anything to do with being included
in the income tax report. I think this is where our complication arises.

Mr. HENDERSON: If the cost of the hotel and meals equals $100, then
there is no remuneration, and thus no problem.

Mr. TARDIF: If it costs $100 a day to eat he has a very good appetite!

Mr. Rock: If they received $100 and it cost $60 are they obliged to hand
in a report of the hotel bill? If they are not obliged to hand in a report, can
we question this fact of their expenses other than the travelling expenses?

Mr. HENDERSON: Perhaps Mr. Long can answer that question.

Mr. G. R. LoNG (Supervisor, Auditor General’s Office): I think if you
checked the Income Tax Act you would find that living allowances are
taxable if they are non-accountable allowances. If a person were only re-
imbursed for his actual expenses, there would be no question of tax. However,
when he receives a living allowance he must include it in his income, but he
can offset against that the actual expenditures which he has incurred. I think
the department would be required to assess him on it unless he showed the
actual cost to be equal to the allowance.
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The CHAIRMAN: To refresh your memory, perhaps I might say that we
filed the letter written to me by Mr. Chevrier, then Minister of Justice, dated
July 9, 1963, and it appears at page 219 of the proceedings and evidence of the
standing committee last year.

Mr. Rock: This is a beautiful looking book. Can members of the com-
mittee obtain it?

The CHAIRMAN: I do not know. This came from the library.

Mr. HENDERSON: It is the minutes of the last committee.

Mr. Rock: We have it in cut up form only.

The CHAIRMAN: I am advised it is not on the free distribution list.

On page 219 at paragraph 4 you will see that Mr. Chevrier says this:

With regard to paragraph 71—

—which is paragraph 71 in Mr. Henderson’s report.

—commenting on living allowances to federally appointed judges, I
understand that allowances are taxable under the Income Tax Act.

This, I presume, is on the advice of members of his department.

Mr. McLEAN (Charlotte): Then, Mr. Chairman, what about members of
parliament?

Mr. Rock: Our concern is to make this additional income legal? We have
to have parliament make it legal?

The CHAIRMAN: That is what we recommended last year, Mr. Rock.

Mr. Rock: And we will come back to this again during our future meetings?

The CHAIRMAN: We hope to have someone available from the department,
and we can ask him what has been done.

Mr. Tarpir: I think we should be careful that the wording shall be
correct this year for fear they might increase it further!

The CHAIRMAN: If there is nothing more on that may we pass to the
next item? When we have completed that we will have completed Mr. Hen-

derson’s follow-up report and will be free to embark upon the balance of his
financial statement at the next meeting.
The last item appears at page 9 and concerns unemployment assistance.
Mr. HENDERSON: One of the committee’s witnesses at the last meeting,
you will recall, was the deputy minister of welfare who referred at some

length to the problems encountered in administering the unemployment as-
sistance act across Canada.

My comment at the top of page 10 was merely to update this situation
following a short talk that Mr. Douglas and I had with the department. Is
there anything you would wish to add to this, Mr. Douglas?

Mr. DoucLas: I do not think there is too much to add except to say that
meetings have been held and that the government is in the process of con-
sidering the problem, together with the provincial officials.

Mr. HENDERSON: Dr. Willard was very appreciative of his opportunity
to outline something of his problems to the committee, and you were good
enough to make some observations in your report. This explains why I gave
recognition to it here in the follow up report. I do not think I have anything
more to add to that, Mr. Chairman.

The CHAIRMAN: We can assume, probably, that what was said was reflected
in the discussions in the federal-provincial conference?

Mr. HENDERSON: Yes.

The CHAIRMAN: Are there any further discussions at this point?
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Gentlemen, this concludes our discussion of the Auditor General’s follow-
up report. We thank him very much for his appearance with his officials, and
we look forward to renewing our acquaintance with him when we start to
discuss the 1962 report which we did not conclude in our last meetings. If
you recall, gentlemen, we went some distance into that 1962 Auditor General’s
report but left some of it to be completed. It was for that reason that the
government, in its order of reference to this committee, included the 1962
report as well as the 1963 report. I hope when we send round the committee
notes I may be able to include the particular point at which the 1962 report
will be taken up next Tuesday.

Mr. HENDERSON: We will be comencing at paragraph 75 on page 29 of my
1962 report which deals with the Department of National Defence. There are
a number of comments that follow having to do with that department.

The CHAIRMAN: Thank you, gentlemen. If there is no further business
I would ask for a motion to adjourn.

Mr. TARrDIF: I move that we adjourn, Mr. Chairman.

The CHAIRMAN: It appears that that motion is unanimously adopted.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

THURSDAY, June 4, 1964.
(4)

The Standing Committee on Public Accounts met this day at 9.40 a.m. The
Chairman, Mr. G. W. Baldwin, presided.

Members present: Messrs. Baldwin, Coté (Chicoutimi), Fane, Forbes, Hales,
Harkness, Mandziuk, McLean (Charlotte), Pilon, Regan, Ryan, Southam, Tardif,
Winch.—(14).

In attendance: Mr. A. M. Henderson, Auditor General of Canada and Messrs.
Long, Millar, Laframboise, Laroche, Crowley, Chapman, Douglas, Sayers, Smith,
Harris, of the Auditor General’s Office.

The Auditor General made a statement in reply to a question by Mr. Winch

on June 2nd relating to the Prairie Farm Emergency Fund and was questioned
thereon.

Mr. Henderson also replied to a question by Mr. Winch on June 2nd relating
to surplus material and was questioned thereon, assisted by Mr. Millar. Mr.
Henderson undertook to supply a more detailed report at a later sitting, and
the Committee agreed to hear witnesses on this subject.

The Committee then proceeded to the consideration of the Report of the
Auditor General for the fiscal year ended March 31, 1962.

On paragraph 75, Education costs incurred by the Department of National
Defence, Mr. Henderson made a brief statement.

On paragraph 76, Loss of Aircraft due to negligence, the Chairman referred
to correspondence exchanged last year on this subject.

On paragraph 77, Mr. Henderson commented briefly and was questioned
thereon, assisted by Mr. Millar.

On paragraph 78, Renovation of remote transmitter Station, Halifax, after
questioning, Mr. Henderson suggested that witnesses be heard on this subject.

The questioning of Mr. Henderson still continuing, at 10.55 a.m., the
Committee adjourned until 9.30 a.m. on Tuesday, June 9, 1964.

M. Slack,
Clerk of the Committee.
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EVIDENCE
THURSDAY, June 4, 1964

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen I see a quorum. The meeting will come to
order.

While it was announced at the end of our last meeting that we would be
commencing with item 75 of the auditor’s report, Mr. Henderson has the
answers to two questions asked him and I going to ask him to give those
answers now.

Mr. A. M. Henderson (Auditor General of Canada): Mr. Chairman, at the
last meeting Mr. Winch put two questions to me but owing to the absence
of my directors in charge of the particular phases of the work I begged your
indulgence to speak to them today.

The first of these questions, you will recall, had to do with my respon-
sibility, authority and the scope of my work with regard to the audit of
payments made from the prairie farm emergency fund. You may recall I
‘explained that Mr. Stokes, my director in charge, was absent through illness
and asked that I be allowed to speak to the matter at today’s meeting.

A short answer to Mr. Winch’s question would be for me to repeat that I
regard it as part of my audit responsibilities to satisfy myself that all expendi-
tures made by the prairie farm emergency fund are in accordance with the
provisions of the Prairie Farm Assistance Act. However, as we discussed last
Tuesday, we in the audit office are not in a position to investigate by outside
inquiry statements made or information given by public applicants for
assistance. This is the responsibilty of the administration, whose procedures
require that such investigation be made by inspectors appointed under the
act. On the other hand, if information furnished by the applicants and seen
in the course of our work appears to us to be out of line or for example, to
suggest collusion between the inspector and applicant, we institute immediate
inquiries of the responsible officials and follow the points through.

I now come to the audit coverage that we have been able to give to the
fund’s expenditures over the past few years. I wish to be quite frank in saying
to the committee that this has, in my opinion, fallen considerably short of
what should have been undertaken. I am going to describe this to you in some
detail because the circumstances illustrate only too clearly what I have stated
in my last two reports to the House of Commons, namely, that owing to staff
shortages over the past several years in my office there have been too many
instances where we have been unable to carry out our test examinations with
sufficient frequency or in sufficient depth to achieve even the minimum standard
required by modern accepted auditing practice.

Verification of expenditures of this fund must be made in the offices of
the Prairie Farm Assistance Act administration in Regina and also in Edmonton.
Up until May, 1960, I had only one officer stationed at Winnipeg to handle
all of my federal government responsibilities in the two provinces of Manitoba
and Saskatchewan, while those in Alberta were handled by my Vancouver
representative working out of that point who had a staff of two assistants at
that time.

My Winnipeg representative had carried out a test examination of the
P.F.A.A. Regina office in 1957. Having finally obtained an assistant for him in
the spring of 1960, we made a further test check of Regina office expenditures
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in that year. Neither of these audits revealed evidence of any improper pay-
ments, although it is possible that if any existed they might have been
brought to light had we been able to carry out our work in greater depth.

Early in 1962 we were able to add another assistant to the Winnipeg
staff. It was then planned to devote 12 man-weeks to the audit of payments
under the P.F.A.A. and P.F.R.A. in the 1963-64 fiscal year. However, this
schedule could not be met and the time available for these two jobs was first
of all reduced to five man-weeks and then, because of the relatively much greater
expenditure under the P.F.R.A. including expenditures on the south Saskatche-
wan river dam, all of this time was devoted to this work, thus postponing
any test checks of the expenditures under the Prairie Farm Assistance Act
for that fiscal year. This is what happens when your staff is spread too thinly.

No test audits have been made of the prairie farm assistance payments
in the province of Alberta because my Vancouver representative was and
still is faced with insufficient manpower to do all the work that should have
been done in British Columbia and Alberta.

Last March my Winnipeg representative was unfortunately hospitalized.
In sending a senior man from Ottawa to take over his duties in his absence,
Mr. Stokes and I issued special instructions to him, as one of his first duties,
to make a detailed review in the Regina P.F.A.A. procedure relating to the
processing of claims for assistance under the act and the existence of internal
control measures so that with a full understanding of the situation plans could
be made for proper auditing on an effective cyclical basis.

Pursuant to these instructions he sent a detailed report to us at head
office early in April covering the P.F.A.A. administration in Regina, covering
operations of its board of review; the procedure for processing claim applica-
tions; the pre-auditing carried out by treasury representatives there; the proc-
essing of eligible claims; the final audit and payment by the treasury; con-
sideration of the ways in which fraud could be perpetrated; the extent to
which fraud could be detected in the audit, together with observations of
weaknesses we had found to exist in the system of internal control. As a
result of our consideration of this report, my Winnipeg representative is
hoping to assign sufficient time in his 1964-65 audit schedule to carry out a
comprehensive audit of the Regina office.

Similar work we hope can be undertaken for the province of Alberta in

Edmc?nton where we have recently established an officer. In fact we plan to
provide this officer with a trained assistant shortly.

In the same way I consider that the size of my responsibilities in the
province of Saskatchewan is sufficient to justify the permanent establishment
in Regina of at least one man, depending on the approval of my staff plans
for 1965-66 by treasury board. We thus propose to undertake an annual
examination in future of payments made under the Prairie Farm Assistance
Act and to carry it out in sufficient depth to ensure that irregular payments
can be detected unless they represent collusion of the type I have mentioned.

This completes my remarks on Mr. Winch’s first question, Mr. Chairman,

and I shall be glad to deal with any questions which members may have on
my statement.

The CHAIRMAN: Are there any questions?

Mr. HALES: I believe you have two representatives now in Winnipeg,
have you not?

Mr. HENDERSON: We have three now.

Mr. HAaLES: Do they have other audit work to do out of that office or do
they just do P.F.A. work?
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Mr. HENDERSON: They have auditing responsibilities on instructions from
head office here in respect of the operation of all federal government depart-
ment operations in the two provinces of Manitoba and Saskatchewan.

Mr. HALES: And how much money would be handled in those two
provinces by P.F.A., that is in Manitoba and Saskatchewan?

Mr. HENDERSON: Mr. Long has some figures here.
Mr. HALES: Just give me a rough figure.

Mr. G. R. Long (Acting Assistant Auditor General): In 1962-63 the estimated
expenditures were just over $11 million. I believe this was slightly below what
might normally be the expenditure. It was a good crop year.

Mr. HALES: So this government finds itself spending $11 million and we
do not seem to be able to afford one full time auditor to look after that much
money. We do not have a full time man to do this. I cannot conceive of any

business where the turnover of $11 million would not warrant a full time
auditor for the year round.

Mr. HENDERSON: As you recall, recruitment was the problem and still is.

Mr. HALES: I think it is just a matter of saying, “We have to have a man”,
and go out and get him. I think it is ridiculous that $11 million is involved and
we are not auditing it.

Mr. ForBES: It seems to me that if there were any irregularity in connection
with payments under the act, the auditor would not find it. This would take place
at the farm level where the inspector would make someone eligible for a pay-
ment who would otherwise not be eligible. The officials of the P.F.A. office are
very competent men.

Mr. HENDERSON: That is correct.

Mr. ForBES: I doubt whether you would find anything wrong with their
statements or accounts. The thing that Mr. Winch had in mind, and a great
many other people have in mind, is whether every farmer who is paid P.F.A.
is legally entitled to that payment. This is where any irregularity might take
place, and an auditor would not find it because you do not go out into the field
to reinspect what the inspector has found.

Mr. HENDERSON: We may see something in the reports which would cause
us to query them and thus institute enquiries which would disclose a situation
like that, but the prime responsibility for it must always rest with the admin-
istration.

I think I should add, Mr. Forbes, that I do not believe that the allegations
that have been made, have been proved yet; I think they are being studied by a
commissioner. Is that not correct, Mr. Harris?

Mr. A. Harris (Auditor General’s Office): It is.

Mr. ForBEs: There is a latitude under the P.F.A.A. I received P.F.A. and I
was not entitled to it but I just happened to be in that block. Of course, nobody
would turn down a government grant. Another fellow, living across the line,
did not get it and he was entitled to it.

Mr. TArDIF: You should have given him your payment.
The CHAIRMAN: We extend parliamentary immunity to Mr. Forbes.

Mr. McLeaN (Charlotte): Mr. Chairman, would not the inspectors be more

or less classed as auditors in a way, and do they not check what is being paid out
as well as its legality, and so forth?

Mr. HENDERSON: The administration has extensive procedures which it
applies to these applications, beginning with, I think, the cultivation acreage
report which is looked over by the inspector who checks the farmer, and pre-
sumably the inspector has some farming education and is able to express an
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opinion on it. The papers then are examined by the treasury office representa-
tives in Regina, and so forth, right up to the time of payment. However, I doubt
whether you could classify the inspectors as auditors in the orthodox sense.

Mr. McLEAN (Charlotte): I know that in business you have an internal audit
and an outside audit.

Mr. HENDERSON: That is the treasury check. Perhaps Mr. Long could say
something about this from our reports.

Mr. LonGg: The comptroller of the treasury office in Regina does check these
payments before they are made as an internal audit or a pre-audit measure, but
their difficulty, of course—if there happens to have been any collusion in the field
and an inspector did not do his job right—is to find it. The only way of doing this
is if they slipped up somewhere and there was some glaring inaccuracy in the
information on the return which would alert you to it.

Mr. McLEAN (Charlotte): But you might say that yours is not the only
audit.

Mr. LonG: There is a pre-audit. The comptroller makes these payments and
he does check them before they are made.

Mr. McLeAaN (Charlotte): And you check the comptroller?
Mr. LoNG: That is right.

Mr. TARDIF: It is evident that the major problem there is that you should
get sufficient staff. Even if you do not get permission to have your staff, then
pressure should be brought to bear to get the civil service to find the necessary
staff. Eighteen months is more than sufficient time to complete the filling of all
the vacancies in your department.

I do not disagree with what has been said about a $11 million corporation,
and the fact that there should be a permanent auditor. I would say it would even
be an improvement if there were an auditor for two months, and then another
auditor for another period. I do not say that the inspectors are dishonest, but
it is possible for them to make mistakes. It should not be the farmers’ opinions
which decide what payment is to be made. If the inspector is not as efficient
as he might be, there are times when an auditor will find conditions which
exist; not necessarily conditions of dishonesty, but perhaps a lack of efficiency
or an improper method of assessment in respect of the money which is to be
spent.

I believe this committee should insist that this staff should be filled to the
capacity necessary. I do not think there is any excuse for this not having been
done in the past 18 months. Eighteen months is a sufficient period of time for
the Civil Service Commission to find an auditor. While auditors may not be in
great quantity, I am sure sufficient auditors could be found for the purposes of
the Auditor General’s office.

Mr. WincH: Mr. Chairman, I think the last speaker basically has said what
I was going to say. First of all, may I express my thanks for the detailed manner
in which the Auditor General has answered the question I asked last Tuesday.
May I also add that I think the Auditor General is to be commended, because,
if I interpret his statement correctly, he is admitting that a job which should
have been done by his office is not being done. It is understandable; if we go
over the staff which he has outlined from Winnipeg to Vancouver—even to the
extent of almost one year in Alberta—we will find that no spot check has
taken place because his man is stationed in Vancouver and has not been able
to do it.

I believe the answer to the question we have just been given by the

Auditor General is so important and so significant with his explanation that
when we reach the point of drafting our report we should make a special note
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of the information now given to us and emphasize the need for action in respect
of the staff in the Auditor General’s office.

The CHAIRMAN: Thank you, Mr. Winch.

Mr. HALES: It would appear that the inspectors in the field are the key
men in this whole situation. Has the audit department called in the inspectors
to give them any course of instruction with regard to what they should do and
watch for, and brief them? Would your representative in Winnipeg call in
these inspectors in a group before they go out and lay down some rules and
regulations?

Mr. HENDERSON: No, sir. That would be the responsibility of the P.F.A.A.
administration because that administration employs the inspectors. These
cultivation acreage reports, as I believe they are called, first are looked over
by the inspectors in the field, so to speak, and then they are processed right
up the line towards payment. Mr. Long has a detailed summation on this.

Mr. LonNG: I do not spot it in this report. I think one difficulty here is that
this is more or less seasonal work. These inspectors cannot be employed the
full year, if I am correct. This means you have new people, and naturally they
are going to vary.

Mr. FANE: Mr. Chairman, I am wondering, since Mr. Long does not have
all the details about how the prairie farm assistance works in a province,
whether you would like somebody to tell you. I believe that at least the
Edmonton office of the P.F.A.A. is operated very efficiently. Also, I believe that
if one office had to be left out from the inspections, it very well could be that
office. I have had a very great deal to do with that office, and have found
they are very meticulous in their work. They do slip up sometimes because
the inspectors have a lot of difficulty getting reports. The whole thing
is that the inspectors are in the field and they receive their instructions.
Usually these inspectors are farmers themselves; they receive instructions about
what they have to do, and they have no part in the making of the decisions
concerning what happens; that is done by arrangement in the local office
and the head office of the Prairie Farm Assistance Act in Regina.

Every payment that is made under the Prairie Farm Assistance Act, at
least in the province of Alberta, has to be authorized by the treasury depart-
ment of the P.F.A.A. in Regina. No money can be paid without a submission
to and approval by that office. I think there have been cases where mistakes
have been made, but most often the mistakes are mistakes of omission because
certain land has been left out of a block that perhaps should have been paid.
However, according to the rules of the Prairie Farm Assistance Act, an area
which can be paid must consist of at least 12 connected sections in a rectangular
block. This makes it very difficult for people, such as Mr. Forbes’ friend who

*is just across the road, to get paid sometimes. I have been in the same position
as Mr. Forbes was at times but I also did not send back the cheque.

I think that concludes what I have to say at the moment, but I do
commend the Auditor General for his comprehensive report in respect of this
matter.

Mr. ForBes: I just want to clear up one point in Mr. Hales’ question.
There are two supervisors in the province of Manitoba. These are men who
have had years of experience in P.F.A.A. work. I might say that the individuals,
as Mr. Fane has suggested, are hired as casual inspectors and they are called
together in a school, as Mr. Hales has stated, where they are given instruc-
tion. I have attended these schools myself.

The thing that' creates some suspicion in respect of the P.F.A.A. is the
method which requires that these payments be made within blocks.

Mr. HENDERSON: Yes, I understand.
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Mr. ForBES: Payment is based on units of zero to four, four to eight and
eight to twelve. There could be a farmer in that block with 30,000 bushels
to the acre but in view of the fact he is in that block he may get paid as well
as the farmers who have low yields. I think this has been worked out as best
it can be worked out according to the act under which it operates.

Mr. SoutHAM: Mr. Fane and Mr. Forbes have almost covered what I
intended to refer to, but in one answer to Mr. Hales question I thought there
was some confusion.

The point I wanted to make is that we do have schools to instruct these
inspectors. As someone mentioned, this inspection involves casual work and
is only done on a seasonal basis particularly when there is a crop failure. In
Saskatchewan we have seven supervision districts I believe, because in the
whole province we have a greater wheat acreage generally than in Manitoba.
Mr. Hales indicated that there were two supervision districts in Manitoba.

The supervisors call in their appointed inspectors perhaps in the fall before
the survey has taken place, to instruct them in the specifics of making these
checks on yields.

The reason some problem arises as far as payments are concerned is that
the people who are appointed as inspectors, as Mr. Forbes has mentioned, are
farmers who go out to the farm to inspect the grain under specific instructions
to go out and measure the bins. They are provided with charts which indicate as
a result of the number of feet of grain in a bin approximately how many bushels
they contain. Quite often these inspectors inspect the same farms year after
yvear and eventually take the farmer’s word rather than moving away from the
kitchen tables where they are filling out forms, into the field to look into the
bins. There is a human tendency on the part of anyone to become a little care-
less, and I think this is where some of the difficulty lies.

Mr. HENDERSON: These points have been brought out by Mr. Harris of my
staff, who is here today, in his very detailed report on the situation which we

have and which will be the basis of the work which, as I explained, we intend
to carry out.

I should just like to say one word about the staff matter which Mr. Tardif
touched upon and of which Mr. Winch spoke. It is to say that the recruitment
situation at the present time is better. We are still short, I think the figure was
18, at the end of April. We discussed this situation at the opening of the meet-
ings. We are doing everything in our power to bring the establishment up to
its proper level.

I thought perhaps if it was agreeable to the committee, Mr. Chairman,
that at one of our later meetings when we move to a consideration of the 1963
report we could have a short discussion on this phase because in view of the
qualification I have made as to the scope of my work it will come up again for
the same reason I gave today. Would that be satisfactory?

The CHAIRMAN: Yes. I believe Mr. Winch has a question.

Mr. WincH: I do not know whether this could be termed a question or a
statement in clarification of a situation which I feel exists.

As a member of the public accounts committee I am not interested in the
act, the regulations, the administration, the experience or otherwise of
inspectors. I am only interested in one thing and that is, the report of the
Auditor General which indicates to us that in one year he was not able to do
the audit work he felt it was his duty to do in respect of one $11 million
expenditure. It is the audit with which I am concerned. I appreciate, as I have
said before, the fact that at a lower level there was an $11 million expenditure
made in respect of which on behalf of the citizens of Canada and the authority
of parliament the Auditor General has not been able to do the job of auditing
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which he feels is essential. That is the only thing with which I am concerned,
Mr. Chairman.

Mr. TarpIr: Mr. Chairman, now that it has been admitted that very often
the farmer’s word is taken for the calculation I think there is ample indication
that an audit of that particular branch is very important.

Mr. WincH: It is more important than ever before.

Mr. TArpir: I think the Canadian government is very lucky in that the
western farmers are 100 per cent honest.

The CHAIRMAN: Before we leave this point and move on may I make this
suggestion as Chairman. Last year we waited until the end of our deliberations
before bringing in a report covering a great deal of matters. It has been my
hope that we may bring in one or two earlier interim reports rather than
wait to the end of our considerations, assuming that this session run through
its allotted course.

Mr. WincH: That is an excellent proposal.

The CHAIRMAN: You are a member of the steering committee, as are others
here, and probably at some time before the conclusion of our deliberations we
can consider with Mr. Henderson the idea of bringing in a third report which
might, depending on the circumstances which exist at that time, pay some
attention to that particular subject matter.

I think we might now move on to the other question which was asked and
which Mr. Henderson has prepared himself to answer dealing with the Crown
Assets Disposal Corporation.

Mr. HENDERSON: This matter related to Mr. Winch’s question to me on
Tuesday in regard to the method followed by departments declaring surplus
material which might subsequently be sold at substantially less than its original
cost as provided for in the estimates.

One of the requirements of the Financial Administration Act, as you know,
is that the Auditor General examine in such manner as he may deem necessary
the accounts relating to public property and to ascertain whether in his opinion
essential records are maintained and the rules and procedures applied are
sufficient to safeguard and control public property.

Public property, in the context of Mr. Winch’s question, consists of public
stores and materials purchased by government departments with funds provided
for by parliament under departmental appropriations or through the medium
of revolving funds. It will be appreciated that this embraces a very wide array
of material ranging from minor supplies on one hand to the vast quantities of
equipment purchased in the defence and related fields.

In the discharge of our responsibility we take as our starting point the
internal control procedures maintained by the various departments with respect
to procurement, receipt, custody, issue and control of the material. We make
periodic examinations of these procedures both at headquarters and at field
depots for the purpose of satisfying ourselves in respect of the effectiveness of
the procedures in effect. In the course of our work the quantities of material
purchased are noted in relation to departmental need based on the responsibili-
ties and policies of each department. The extent to which such materials might
prove to be in excess of needs is evident from the extent to which they remain
unused in the inventory. In reporting to departmental managements on our test
examinations of stores, we bring to attention our findings in this regard for the
purpose of satisfying ourselves that commodities are likely to be used ultimately
for the purposes for which they were acquired or will be disposed of by transfer
for use elsewhere in the department, or declared surplus.

To the extent that such supplies prove surplus; that is, in the opinion of the
department they are no longer needed and are declared surplus, declaration of
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such surplus is made to Crown Assets Disposal Corporation. While this is fre-
quently the case with the Department of National Defence, it may interest you
to note that no unused material, for instance, was declared surplus at all during
the year 1963-64 by two of our major procuring departments, namely, the
departments of public works and transport. On the other hand, in the year
1962-63 the Department of National Defence reported as surplus unused or
usable materials having a cost of approximately $394 million. These declarations,
numbering about 2,600 together with others relating to scrap and material in
need of repair which were not priced, accounted for approximately 8,500
separate declarations made by the department during the year. It may interest
you to know that the Crown Assets Disposal Corporation in its annual report
for that same year stated that they had under review during the year some
12,000 reports of surplus. That is, they had received 12,000 declarations of sur-
plus, so these 8,500 from the Department of National Defence represent a large
chunk of the total. The declarations here in the 8,500 indicated the condition of
the surplus materials, that is, unused, scrap, etc. Changes in defence policy,
technological improvements, initial overprocurements, and residues of con-
struction materials, were contributing causes to declarations of unused and
usable material. Our examination of the 8,500 declarations in this fiscal year
was limited to a test check covering approximately 800 declarations. That is to
say, something less than 10 per cent.

The function of Crown Assets Disposal Corporation primarily in dealing
with such surplus declarations is to obtain the best price it can in the market
and it is not to inquire of the departments the reasons underlying the declara-
tion of large surpluses. That remains a departmental responsibility.

From time to time in our reports we bring up instances where cases like
this have occurred. I will be frank in admitting there are not many, but, for
example in my 1961 report which, incidentally, was not examined by this
committee, in paragraph 86 subparagraph 11 at page 41, I deal with the
Pigeon River houses. I might say they have since been declared surplus during
the now current fiscal year. These were houses built by I think the Depart-
ment of National Revenue for customs officers at Pigeon River.

In my more recent 1963 report which you will be examining, I have a
paragraph, number 84 at page 52, having to do with radar equipment acquired
but not put into service. This was not declared surplus but I mention this by
way of citing instances of the use of public property which I feel should be
brought to the attention of the House of Commons.

The CHAIRMAN: Thank you Mr. Henderson.

Mr. Winch, do you have a question?

Mr. WincH: This is hardly a question, sir, but I think it is rather astound-
ing information which has just been given to us by the Auditor General and
perhaps indicates the reason for my question last Tuesday. What was the
figure in respect of material declared surplus by the Department of National
Defence for one year?

Mr. HENDERSON: The figure is $39,500,000 represented by 8,500 declarations.

Mr. WincH: There was $39,500,000 worth of materials declared surplus
in one year.

I have been making a study within the past three months of this matter
and this is the reason I feel this situation should be brought to the attention
of the members of this committee, with the hope that perhaps Mr. Henderson
will be able to give us some explanation of the authority he has in respect of
investigations. May I say very briefly that I have studied hundreds and
hundreds of bids reviewed by the Crown Assets Disposal Corporation from only
one depot and find that there are 32 pieces ofy brand new lavatory articles and
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on the bid it states “New and unused”. I find there is a brand new unused
marine engine. I found brand new and unused pieces of electrical welding
equipment. I found thousands upond thousands of dollars worth of electrical
fixtures new and unused. I found not thousands but perhaps hundreds of
thousands approaching millions of expensive brass screws. I might point out
that on the bid if there are 47 and 47 brass screws of a certain type and size
the bid says 47. If there are 400,069 brass screws then the bid says 400,069
brass screws.

Whether these have been surplus from the last war or not I do not know.
If they are surplus from the last war I should like to know why it took 20
years before declaring them surplus. If they are not surplus from the last war
but have only been held for three months, for example, before being declared
surplus I should like to know the reason for the purchase of these articles.

I think we are now preforming a very important function in inquiring
into this situation and I should like Mr. Henderson to indicate whether his
authority and responsibility allow or require him to make a check to find out
why these things were held before being declared surplus or why they were
purchased in the first place, as well as to look into the circumstances generally
in respect of the articles being turned over to the Crown Assets Disposal
Corporation.

Does the Auditor General also have the authority and responsibility to
make a check of the prices received for these surplus articles, whether they
are ten per cent, 33 per cent or 50 per cent of the original cost of the new
and unused materials? If the Auditor General’s authority does allow him to go
that far, then I should like to ask again whether this situation is being con-
sidered seriously by the Auditor General and his staff and whether there is
a possibility of some of his staff being delegated to make a thorough study of
purchases being made which are at some later stage declared surplus.

Mr. HENDERSON: In answer to your question and proposal, Mr. Winch, I
have no hesitation in saying to you that my authority does extend that far and
indeed it is my responsibility to do this. My work is carried out on a test
examination basis and as we have discussed earlier in the case of the prairie
farm matter, it is too frequently that the extent of the work to be done has
to be determined by the staff available. However in light of what you have
said I most definitely wish to make an examination along the lines that you
have suggested and then report back to this committee at its pleasure.

Mr. WincH: I have just one further question, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Henderson,
when it was drawn to your attention, as it must have been, that billions of
dollars worth of material was declared surplus by one department, did you
undertake any special investigation to find the reason for that extraordinary
situation?

Mr. HENDERSON: No, sir. As I explained before, of the 8,500 declarations,
we examined approximately 10 per cent as a test check without having found
anything there which we felt necessary to bring to the attention of the House of
Commons. That perhaps explains why no reference was made in my report.

Mr. WincH: Were you flabbergasted when you received that information?

Mr. HENDERSON: The figures generally are of such a size in the course of my
work. I was certainly very surprised.

Mr. Manpzruk: Mr. Chairman, I do not think we can blame the Auditor
General for not going into the question when the surpluses arose. I think, as
has already been stated, that the reason for it might have been a change of
policy or some technological changes which have arisen. The amount of any
material that is purchased is the responsibility of each department.
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I take it that the $39% million surplus which the auditor has just mentioned
is the original cost of these surpluses. My question is: What percentage of this
is salvaged by disposal of it by Crown Assets Disposal Corporation, because the
general impression in the country is that these surpluses are practically given
away for next to nothing? Have you any tabulation or any figures on how much
of this $39% million surplus would be realized when disposed of by Crown
Assets Disposal Corporation? If we almost get our money back, then there is no
harm done.

Mr. HENDERSON: That is quite right. I think I am correct in saying that we
do not have that figure. However, it would be obtainable and should be
obtainable.

Mr. ManpzIiuk: It would be very interesting to the country.

Mr. HENDERSON: I would like to see it, and it should and could be obtained
in answer to the request that Mr. Winch has made that this be undertaken.
It will take some time, and it will have to be conditioned by the staff I have
available. That would be the core of following through on the disposition of the
$39% million worth of equipment in that fiscal year.

Mr. ManpzIiuk: Publicity should be given to that, and we would then realize
that best efforts were made to salvage what can be got out of the equipment
or out of the supplies that cannot be used, probably through no fault of any
department or any minister or anyone down the line.

Mr. WincH: I hope that that will be done because that is my very point. I
mentioned these thousands of dollars worth of electrical equipment. I followed
that through until it was sold, and the price they received was eight per cent
of the purchase tax. I know of others where they get 60 per cent, but the
whole question should be studied.

Mr. REcaN: I have two or three questions arising out of this discussion.
First of all, I presume that this example of $39% million in the national defence
department for 1962-63 is an extreme example. You chose this as an extreme
example of the worst year.

Mr. HENDERSON: That happens to have been the year we looked at in
examining this question yesterday in response to Mr. Winch’s question the day
before.

Mr. REcaN: I see. The fiscal year 1962-63 would begin and end on what
dates?

Mr. HENDERSON: Beginning on April 1, 1962 and ending on March 31, 1963.

Mr. REGAN: Mr. Henderson, while in national defence there would be every
reason for higher figures on equipment which became obsolete because of
technological change, would there be any reason why there should be greater
amounts of initial over procurement in national defence than there would be in
other departments?

Mr. HenpErsoN: I would suggest, that you have rather answered the
question yourself because the sheer size of national defence buying, the rapid
technological changes, and the difficulties in estimating, so far ahead on what
they are going to need, and the possible changes midstream are factors which
must make procurement a very difficult proposition in this department. It is
possible that Mr. Harkness could elaborate on that point, but that would be
my assessment of it. They have perhaps the most difficult job of any of the
government departments.

Mr. HargNESS: I think this particular sum, or at least a proportion of the
amount you mentioned, is really a disposal consequent upon the Glassco com-
mission’s report which, as you may remember, reported surpluses of a great
deal of underwear which had been bought during the second world war and
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which had been held in store since that time, and quite a lot of other things
along that line. It was then decided to get rid of that stuff. I would suggest, in
connection with this, that perhaps the deputy minister of national defence
should be asked to give evidence in connection with what these things were.
We could perhaps get at it more rapidly than if Mr. Henderson and his staff
were to go into it and bring it back to us.

Mr. REcan: I have not quite completed my questions. I should like to ask
whether your test check of 800, of the 8,500 declarations, indicated what per-
centage of the equipment was unused, what percentage was equipment which
had been in use for some period of time and which was no longer needed by
the department. I think these figures would be of some importance because
while we put a label of $39% million on the initial cost, if some of the equip-
ment was used for quite some period of time, then obviously the country re-
ceived some value in return for the use of this defence equipment over that
period. Again I think this ties in with the point that Mr. Mandziuk made to
the effect that the amount that was obtained by Crown Assets Disposal Cor-
poration on sale is another factor to be considered. When one considers the
amount of usage that was obtained from the item and one adds to this the
question of the disposal of value, then we are able to see what you might call
the net loss to the public—it would not be $39% million but something con-
siderably less.

Mr. HENDERSON: That is right. That would be the way to do it, to carry
out the work the way Mr. Winch proposed, and with which I agreed.

Mr. WincH: Particularly on unused equipment.

Mr. HENDERSON: In the end result we would also have the computations
you suggest. However, I am attracted by the suggestion of Mr. Harkness that
perhaps when the deputy minister of national defence does appear before us,
as I think it is planned on some of the items, he be asked to give a rundown
on the type of thing that is occurring and the reasons for it.

The CHAIRMAN: We could probably conduct a more intelligent and search-
ing examination at that time. The deputy minister and an official from his
department are going to be before us with respect to a number of other matters,
and if it is your wish I will have the Clerk send him a copy of the transcript
of today’s proceedings, and we might also deal with both aspects. Later on,
when we deal with the Auditor General’s report, we will have to deal with
his report in connection with the Crown Assets Disposal Corporation, and it
might be considered that we should have an official from his department at
the same time, so you will have both ends of the picture, This is something
which we will take up with the steering committee and at an appropriate time
try to have one, or possibly both, officials here at the same time.

Mr. Ryan: I have a couple of short questions, Mr. Chairman. I would like
to be clear on one point: Is this form of declaration standard in all the depart-
ments of government?

Mr. MrLAr: I do not know whether they are standard for all departments
but I think so.

Mr. Ryan: Is it standard in all the departments you inspected? Do you get
a good history of the article or the goods, and do you get the date of the original
purchase?

Mr. MiLLAR: The reason for the procurement is unknown. We find that on
many declarations.

Mr. RyaN: Sometimes you find it is merely a certificate that it is surplus
but no other explanation.

Mr. MiLLAR: That is about it, on many of them.
20883—2



78 STANDING COMMITTEE

Mr. Ryan: We should check these declarations, particularly in respect of
unused articles. I might suggest that the steering committee consider that a
subcommittee be set up to check this matter.

Mr. WinNcH: May I suggest that you consider asking for a supply, of a
general nature, of bids as sent out by Crown Assets Disposal Corporation. In
particular I would like to get those which I saw in the last two or three months,
because it would really open the eyes of the members of this committee.

Mr. MANDZIUK: My question is: who signs these declarations and who
countersigns them, what official in any particular department? Do they ever
reach the deputy minister or his deputy?

Mr. MILLAR: It is usually signed by authorized officers, as far as national
defence is concerned, and then it is reviewed by the deputy minister’s office.
It is then approved by the deputy minister’s office before it goes to Crown Assets
Disposal Corporation.

Mr. TARDIF: Are there no regulations which force officers responsible to
declare why this has become surplus?

Mr. MILLAR: There are explanations given where it is possible to do so,
but in many cases their material is so old that the history of it has disappeared.

Mr. TArpIF: If they had a $39 million surplus to dispose of, this may have
been an unusual year, as Mr. Harkness stated.

Mr. HARKNESS: I am sorry I was not here earlier but I had a dental appoint-
ment this morning. Is the $39 million all equipment or is part of that land?

Mr. HENDERSON: The Department of National Defence made 8,500 declara-
tions of surplus to Crown Assets Disposal Corporation, the dollar value of which
was $39% million during the year 1962-63.

Mr. HARKNESS: Part of that could be land?
Mr. HENDERSON: Yes.
Mr. MILLAR: Yes.

Mr. HARKNESS: Because in that period, again consequent upon the Glassco
commission’s report, they considered that the Department of National Defence
had quite a bit of land which was really surplus to their requirements.

Mr. WincH: In 1962-63?

Mr. HARKNESS: There was some disposal of this which entered into it, as
well as old equipment which had been sitting there ever since the second world
war, immediately following the Korean war period. That is why I think the best
way to get at this is if the deputy minister and officials in his department outlined
what these things were.

Mr. WincH: I am a bit worried. I understand Mr. Harkness has just come
from a dental appointment—would that make him more biting than ever?

Mr. HARKNESS: Less at the moment, I would think.

The CHAIRMAN: We are being very reasonable, I think. In addition to what
I said before, if we had an official from Crown Assets Disposal Corporation here,
then the question which you raised, Mr. Tardif, might be taken up by them.

Mr. TarpIr: Idid not finish my questions. I guess Mr. Harkness’ contribution
was more important and I was listening to it. Would it not be a good idea for
this committee to recommend that a standard form be used in all departments
for this purpose, and that we emphasize the necessity of giving a reason for the
surplus? If they are going to buy $39 million worth of equipment—if this is a
standard year, and I do not think it is—if there is going to be that kind of
surplus every year, then the history should be put on the article when it is
bought because eventually some of it will become surplus.
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The CHAIRMAN: That is one way we might make our contribution in con-
nection with this report.

Mr. TarpiF: And a standard form should certainly be used by all
departments.

The CHAIRMAN: Are there any more questions on this? We are not
through with it but it is being stood over until we can get the officials here.

Mr. MaNDZIUK: Mr. Chairman, while we are on this subject and it is
fresh in our minds, could we have the deputy minister or officials of Crown
Assets Disposal Corporation come here within a short period of time, or are
you going to ask them to come when we reach a certain stage in our
deliberations?

The CHAIRMAN: This is a matter for the committee to decide. = The steer-
ing committee will consider it and bring its recommendations back. You will
find, I think, that the Department of National Defence is interested in several
matters which we will be approaching in the not too distant future, and some
time, from the point of continuity and so as to try to arrange the presence of
departmental officials who can be here to cover all these items, we will try
to get them all together. However, if the committee wishes to have the
officials of these two departments present, we can arrange it, but I think
possibly the matter should be brought to their attention and we should prob-
ably have other matters dealt with in the meantime. I assure you the steer-
ing committee will consider it and will report back.

Mr. HENDERSON: May I make one suggestion if members feel it would
help? My suggestion is that I and my staff make a special effort to produce
a quick but more detailed report covering these points which we could discuss
with the officials and bring to the committee no later than three weeks from
now so that you could study it. It is a report to which they perhaps would
subscribe also so that you would have the facts in front of you on such things
as the liquidation of the $39% million figure. After checking the records of
Crown Assets Disposal Corporation we might have a tabulation to show that.
It might not be completely accurate but it would be sufficient for you to see
this matter in focus.

Mr. WincH: I understand that you are going to ask the officials of Crown
Assets Disposal Corporation to come before the committee.

The CHAIRMAN: If it is the wish of the committee. They might be present
at the same time as the Minister of National Defence.

Mr. WincH: Would you, in your communication, ask for a detailed
explanation of administrative costs and procedure because I am a bit dis-
turbed on that also when I see, as I have seen, let us say approximately one
million brass screws being offered for sale on bids and each size being
outlined. If we have staff for counting 47 of this, 98 of that and 100,000 of
that, then I am afraid the amount we get back is going to be far overcome
by the cost of doing it. I would like to have an explanation of this.

The CHAIRMAN: It is the wish of the committee that this be not done until
Mr. Henderson has produced his memorandum which will be useful to us?

Mr. HENDERSON: I would propose producing this memorandum in co-
operation with officials of both the Department of National Defence and Crown
Assets Disposal Corporation in order to pinpoint the subject matter of this
discussion. It could be a memorandum to which they would subscribe, and you
would then have the facts and be able to direct better questions.

The CHAIRMAN: We will then move on to where we indicated we would
commence our review of the Auditor General’s report for the year ended March
31, 1962, which is at page 29, item No. 75, which reads:

20833—2}
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75. Education costs incurred by Department of National Defence.
The department, under executive authority, provides educational facili-
ties for children of personnel of the regular forces and entitled civilians
residing in public quarters by (a) the establishment and operation of
departmental schools, and (b) the utilization of nearby civilian school
facilities. As of December 31, 1961 the department was operating 75
schools at 48 different locations in Canada to accommodate about 28,750
children, where suitable educational facilities were not available within a
reasonable distance, while some 9,750 children were attending civilian
schools. In Europe the department operated 22 schools at 13 locations with
7,850 pupils in attendance.

The cost of this function for the fiscal year is not reflected as such
in the public accounts; however, financial statements prepared by the
department on a memorandum basis for the calendar year ended Decem-
ber 31, 1961 show costs (including $1,390,000 for outlays for new
construction and $1,876,000 for non-resident fees paid to civilian school
boards) totalling $15,100,000, offset by provincial school grants of $2,400,-
000—a net cost of $12,700,000.

The largest item of gross expenditure was $6,525,000 for the salaries
of the 1,295 teachers employed to staff the schools in Canada. In the
course of our examination it was observed that the over-all pupil-
teacher ratio in the departmental elementary schools was about 22 to
1, which is considerably below the average ratio for such schools in
Canada, generally. Moreover, at about 75 per cent of the schools, the
ratio was less than 25 to 1 and at 13 of these it was less than 15 to 1.
On the situation being brought to the attention of the department, it
undertook to make enquiries into the pupil-teacher ratios at schools
where the ratio is less than 25 to 1.

Mr. HENDERSON: With your permission, Mr. Chairman, I will speak to
these and perhaps we can move through some of them fairly rapidly depending
upon the questions which you may have to ask.

Paragraph 75, on page 29 of my 1962 report, has to do with the education
costs incurred by Department of National Defence. This comment is, in
principle, informational for the house because it did not seem to me that
it was generally realized the extent to which the Department of National
Defence operated schools. You will note there is nearly 100 of them in
Canada and Europe, and you will note their cost. We also drew attention to the
pupil-teacher ratio here which, in about 75 per cent of the schools, seemed
to be on the low side although I suppose that is what one might expect in an
establishment of this kind.

The CHAIRMAN: Are there any questions on this item or can we move on
to paragraph 76 which reads:

76. Loss of aircraft due to negligence. Normally the Auditor Gen-
eral’s annual reports do not include comments on losses of defence
property and equipment resulting from the ordinary hazards of military
operations, even when substantial amounts are involved. However, the
following case is noted for the reason that the circumstances surround-
ing an accident involving R.C.A.F. equipment indicated that there had
been undue negligence not only by the pilot but also by the adminis-
trative officers concerned.

A reserve pilot serving with a Toronto auxiliary squadron was
authorized to fly a service aircraft for local proficiency practice. In
violation of regulations, the aircraft was landed at an airfield other
than the one of departure. During an attempted take-off from this
airfield a strong cross wind, which exceeded the specified limitation for




PUBLIC ACCOUNTS 81

the operation of the aircraft, rendered it uncontrollable and it crashed
through a fence striking five automobiles parked on a road bordering the
airfield. The pilot suffered only minor injuries but the aircraft, valued
at $125,000, was a total loss (less salvage of $22,000) and damage claims
totalling $1,962 were paid to the owners of the automobiles.

Following an official inquiry which brought out that there had been
a lack of supervision in monitoring the pilot’s training, action was taken
to insure a greater degree of supervision over local flying by the
reserve air force.

Mr. HENDERSON: Paragraph 76 is a report on the loss of aircraft owing to
negligence.

Mr. FANE: Mr. Chairman, is this in the latest report?

Mr. HENDERSON: It is in the report of 1962, at page 30.

The CHAIRMAN: We are carrying on where we left off last year.
Mr. TArpIF: What page?

The CHAIRMAN: Page 30, item 76.

Mr. HENDERSON: Paragraph 76 deals with the circumstances whereby an
aircraft, valued at $125,000, was lost owing to lack of supervision and monitoring
the pilot’s training.

The CHAIRMAN: Might I just say on that particuler item that there was a
letter addressed to me as Chairman of the committee last year from the pilot
who was involved in this particular incident, following a letter from a Toronto
solicitor who was his counsel. At that time he asked if it would be permissible
for him to appear before this committee. I followed this correspondence up,
not knowing if we would reach this item last year, but it appears the reason he
wished to appear before the committee was that he felt he had not been given
what he considered was a fair opportunity to answer the allegations against him.
I believe he had completely misconceived the role of this committee which
simply is to inquire into Mr. Henderson’s report, and the recommendations he
makes. I explained to him by correspondence that anyone who wished to appear
with relation to a relevant matter was entitled to do so; but I explained to him
that our role was not one in which we could inquire into the question of whether
or not there was negligence, and that we were not a court of appeal from the
court of inquiry. However, I advised him that if he had any other observations
he wished to make which were relevant to our function, he was at liberty to
appear; but I heard nothing further from him. I thought I should bring this to
your attention.

Mr. REGAN: Is this the same matter we discussed last year?

The CrARMAN: I do not believe it was discussed in the main committee.
It was discussed at a meeting of the steering committee in the expectation that
we might reach this particular item in the main committee which did not
happen.

Mr. HARNESS: I remember this case very well indeed. The pilot concerned
was released from the reserve forces. He entered an address of grievance as a
result of this. He felt very strongly that he had been discriminated against. In
other words, the department took disciplinary action so far as he was concerned,
to which he strongly objected, by instituting an address of grievance. Finally,
the matter went to the chief of the air staff; he appealed further to me, and then
appealed my decision to the Governor General. This case went as far as it could
go under our procedures.

The CrAIRMAN: I, in fact, indicated that we did not constitute ourselves
as a court of appeal from the Governor General.
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Mr. HARgNESS: The point I would like to make is that there was this loss
of an aircraft owing to negligence, and the department did take the only action
which was open to it.

Mr. REGAN: Mr. Chairman, I could not say in stronger terms that it would
be an extremely poor public policy to go after a man such as this pilot for the
cost of an aircraft which was lost owing to negligence. The nature of mankind
is such that all of us at one time or another are negligent to some degree. If
we are going to be in a position to attract persons to operate our aircraft, our
ships, or other equipment in the armed forces, then, certainly, we would make
it very difficult for a person to be willing to undertake such a career if he had
the feeling that through some momentary negligence and the loss of government
equipment in his day-to-day occupation he could become involved in a debt
in the amount of some hundreds of thousands of dollars. Perhaps there should
be some form of insurance carried against the possibility of such negligence.
However, in the absence of having carried such insurance over the years, no
doubt we have saved a great deal by bearing the expense ourselves.

I believe it would be poor public policy to hold an individual in the armed
forces responsible for the loss of government equipment which loss resulted
from negligence. Mind you, if it were purposeful destruction of equipment
done with malicious intent, this would be a very different matter. Everyone
operating a motor vehicle at some time is negligent to some degree if circum-
stances occur which bring it to light. By the same token, persons who
operate ships, or airplanes day by day must run into situations where, the
human factor being present, they would be negligent. I believe we should take
a strong stand to see that they do not go after this man, or any other man
in similar circumstances, for such a vast sum of money.

Mr. TARDIF: I do not think there has been any such recommendation.

The CHAIRMAN: I think what prompted Mr. Henderson to refer to this
matter is that he felt there may have been some lack of supervision in the
monitoring of the pilot’s training. Since then action has been taken to supervise
a greater control over local flying by the reserve air force.

Mr. REGAN: Am I not correct in understanding there was a suggestion by
you, Mr. Henderson, that the pilot should be billed for this?

Mr. HENDERSON: No. I have pointed out that this case was noted for the
reason that the circumstances surrounding the accident indicated there had
been undue negligence, not only by the pilot but also by the administrative
officers concerned. You will note that following an official inquiry it was
brought out that there had been lack of supervision in monitoring the pilot’s
training. The fact that he was discharged from the air force is the type of
action that was taken under the regulations of the Department of National
Defence. g

Mr. HARKRNESS: I might say this was a very tangled case. The individual
concerned still strongly feels he has a grievance, to the extent that I believe
he has engaged a lawyer in an effort to continue to fight this case.

Mr. WincH: Where can he go after the Governor General?

Mr. HARKNESS: There is nowhere he can go, but I believe he did ask for
permission to institute legal action against somebody. As I remember it, this
permission was not granted. As I say, this was a very tangled case, and one
in which I do not believe this committee has any change of trying to adjudicate.
This is the type of thing we are not set up to go into.

: Mr. REeGaN: Did the correspondence which you had, Mr. Chairman,
indicate a misapprehension on his part that he thought he would be billed
for the cost of the aircraft?
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The CHAIRMAN: I think what he was more concerned about was that he
felt his reputation had been tarnished, and he wanted an opportunity to
ventilate his case and bring the fact forward. In reply, I pointed out that
our function was specifically limited to what the Auditor General had reported
. to us. I also replied to his counsel that while we were not prohibiting him
from appearing, I did not see how the sort of thing that he wanted to open
up properly could be opened up in this committee. He wanted rather to form
a court before which he could place his facts.

Mr. HARRNESS: He brought in information concerning the strength of the
crosswind, and so on. He claimed he had certain witnesses who could sub-
stantiate this. This is the same situation as that which would arise in a civil
dispute in which one side claims one thing and the other side claims another
thing.

The CHAIRMAN: May we move on to item 77, which reads:

77. Acceptance of inferior coal without adjustment. While heating
equipment can be designed to burn coal having a specified sulphur con-
tent, heavier maintenance costs can arise if coal with a substantially
higher sulphur content is used. Although contracts for coal for the
Department of National Defence state the maximum acceptable sulphur
content, no financial penalties are provided for in the event that tests of
coal delivered reveal that the maximum has been exceeded.

To illustrate, contracts with the same supplier for the supply of coal
to an army camp during the period from 1959 to 1962, amounting in all
to $576,000, specified a maximum acceptable sulphur content of 5.7 per
cent, but laboratory analyses of the coal delivered indicated that this
specification had not been met; in fact, the analyses demonstrated that
the sulphur content had varied between 6 per cent and 15.7 per cent.
During the three year period abatements amounting to some $17,900
were made from the supplier’s billings to compensate for -calorific
deficiency and unsuitable sizing of the coal delivered. We were informed
that excess sulphur contributed in some degree to the calorific deficiency
referred to; however, no specific adjustments, financial or otherwise,
were sought or made with the supplier to compensate for the excessive
sulphur content in the 59,500 tons received, and the contract was allowed
to run its course.

The advisability of including a provision for financial adjustment in
respect of excess sulphur content in the general specifications applicable
to all coal contracts is now under consideration by the department and
the Canadian government specifications board.

I would point out, gentlemen, that we will have to make way in five
minutes for our successor in this room, the defence committee.

Mr. HENDERSON: Paragraph 77 refers to failure on the part of the Depart-
ment of National Defence to include provision for financial adjustment in
respect of sulphur content in excess of that specified in coal contracts. Although
some abatement was made, no specific adjustments had been made by the
department for the supplier to compensate for excess of sulphur content in
the coal received, and the contract for 59,500 tons was allowed to run its course.
I understand that the Department of National Defence contracts now include
a sulphur content adjustment clause.

Mr. WincH: In other words, your recommendation has been accepted?

Mr. HENDERSON: Yes, sir.

Mr. Tarpir: Does this excess of sulphur content deteriorate the equipment?

Mr. HENDERSON: I believe that is one of the results.

Mr. TARDIF: Is that taken into consideration in the new specification?
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Mr. HENDERSON: That is my understanding.

Mr. B. A. Millar (Audit Director, Officer of the Auditor General): Unless the
equipment is designed especially to burn coal having a high sulphur content,
it may become damaged. Before a contract is let for coal with a sulphur
content, they make sure the equipment can take it.

Mr. TARpIF: If it damages the equipment is the amount of the damage
taken into consideration when the adjustment is made?

Mr. MiLLAR: The adjustment now is quite specific. There is a one per cent
tolerance over and above the specification, and then there is an adjustment if
it goes above the one per cent.

Mr. TARDIF: And the possible damage to the equipment is figured in this
adjustment price?
Mr. MiLLAR: That was a factor in determining it.

Mr. WincH: I notice in this report that it deals with 59,500 tons. For
information, may I ask how often are tests made on coal deliveries in respect
of sulphur content? Here we have 59,500 tons, and I do not imagine a laboratory
test is made of each ton.

Mr. MiLLAR: At the beginning of each year, the service establishes a test
program. They do not test all deliveries of coal, but they make selections.
We consider what they have done is quite satisfactory so far as testing is
concerned.

Mr. WincH: Thank you.
The CHAIRMAN: Paragraph 78 reads:

78. Renovation of remote transmitter station, Halifax. In January
1961 a contract for $229,330 was awarded by the Department of Defence
Production for renovation of antennae and transmission lines at an air
force station near Halifax. The site test drawings indicated the bedrock
to be from two to 14 feet below the surface. However, during excavation
the contractor discovered that the bedrock was from 18 to 25 feet below
the surface in many places. In order to achieve the specified firm bearing
of solid rock on which to place the antennae masts and guy anchors,
it was necessary to extend the foundations as much as 13 feet below the
elevation indicated on the drawings. In order to do this, a complete rede-
signing of both the layout of foundations and their method of construc-
tion was required, and the contract was amended to provide for the
additional costs of $287,326 which resulted.

Attention is drawn to this expenditure because the contract was
amended to an amount more than double that originally called for.

Mr. HENDERSON: Paragraph 78 deals with renovation of a remote transmit-
ter station in Halifax, and you will note that the circumstances outlined show
how the contract awarded for renovation of this transmitter station was
amended to an amount more than double the original cost.

Mr. WincH: Have you made any investigation with regard to the basis of
the engineering on which the contract was let without proper information,
resulting in a double cost, and did you receive any satisfactory explanation
of that?

Mr. MiLLAR: No. We had no satisfactory information with regard to why
the original information did not disclose the condition of the subsoil.

Mr. TAarDIF: Were test borings made before the contract was given out?

Mr. MILLAR: Test borings were made, but whether or not they were satis-
factory is a matter which I do not know.

Mr. WincH: Were any inquiries made by the department in an effort to
try to recover anything in the way of a monetary return from the engineering
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firm because of a mistake in engineering which resulted in a double cost to
the department and to the taxpayers of this country?

Mr. MiLLAR: I think the engineering was done by the air force.

Mr. HENDERSON: I had this matter noted as one on which you may care to
refer to the deputy minister when he is before the committee.

Mr. REGAN: Assume that it is accepted there was an error in the engineer-
ing regarding where the bedrock was, do you feel this was sufficient to cause
the contract to be increased to the extent it was?

Mr. MiLrar: I would think so, from the action taken in amending the
contract.

Mr. Ryan: Could there have been a simple mistake in measurement; is
there anything to point out how or what caused the mistake?

f Mr. MiLLAR: I do not think so.
The CHAIRMAN: Paragraph 79 reads:

79. Benefit paid under the Canadian Forces Superannuation Act
to a “divorced” wife. An air force officer with less than five years service
died of natural causes while serving in the United States. Shortly before
his death his wife had obtained a divorce in that country and had remar-
ried. As this divorce was not recognized as legal in Canada the woman,
as the “widow” of the deceased officer, was paid a cash termination
allowance of $3,428 and, in addition, the supplementary death benefit of
$5,000. From the legal point of view, these payments are not questioned
but they appear to be unrealistic in that they were made to a person
who was no longer, in the accepted sense, the wife of the serviceman
at the time of his death.

The Canadian Forces Superannuation Act only permits executive
discretion in witholding an award from a widow if it appears that for
a number of years immediately prior to the serviceman’s death she had
been living apart from him. Consideration might be given to amending
the act to provide for the enlargement of the executive discretion, to deal
with unusual cases such as that referred to above.

Mr. HENDERSON: Paragraph 79 describes—

The CHAIRMAN: It is five minutes to 11. I see the other committee members
are arriving. We will adjourn now until 9.30 on Tuesday morning.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

TUESDAY, June 9, 1964.
()

The Standing Committee on Public Accounts met this day at 9.40 a.m. The
Chairman, Mr. G. W. Baldwin, presided.

Members present: Messrs. Baldwin, Cameron (High Park), Cameron (Na-
naimo-Cowichan-The Islands), Coté (Chicoutimi), Crouse, Forbes, Frenette,
Gray, Harkness, Mandziuk, McLean (Charlotte), McMillan, Pilon, Rock, Ryan,
Southam, Stefanson, Tardif, Tucker, Wahn, Winch—(21).

In attendance: Mr. A. M. Henderson, Auditor General of Canada and Messrs.
Long, Millar, Smith, Douglas, Crowley and Laroche of the Auditor General’s
Office.

The Committee resumed its consideration of the Auditor General’s Report
for the year ended March 31, 1962.

On paragraphs 79 and 80: Mr. Henderson made brief comments and was
questioned thereon.

On paragraph 81: After a brief comment by the Auditor General, this para-
graph was allowed to stand until the Deputy Minister of National Defence
appears before the Committee.

On paragraph 82: Mr. Henderson made a short statement and was ques-
tioned thereon. The Auditor General undertook to supply the Committee with
copies of claims regulations of the Department of National Defence and the
general regulations respecting claims.

On paragraphs 83 to 89 inclusive: The Auditor General supplied additional
information and was questioned thereon, assisted by Messrs. Long, Millar and
Douglas.

The questioning of Mr. Henderson still continuing, at 11.00 a.m., the Com-
mittee adjourned until 9.30 a.m. on Thursday, June 11, 1964.

M. Slack,
Clerk of the Committee.
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The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, I see a quorum. I would ask the meeting to
come to order.

At the end of our last meeting we were about to start paragraph number
79 of the Auditor General’s report, 1962, which appears on page 31 of the
report.

4 I would like to ask Mr. Henderson to comment on this particular item.

Mr. A. M. HENDERSON (Auditor General of Canada): We are going through
the numbered comments which I will refer to briefly as we reach each one
allowing time for discussion and questions. Perhaps on that basis, sir, we
could move along at a greater speed.

Paragraph 79 on page 31 of the 1962 report explains the circumstances
under which the wife of a deceased air force officer, having obtained a divorce
in the United States before his death, remarried and thus became eligible for
a cash termination allowance paid by the Department of National Defence,
which amounted to $3,428, and also a supplementary death benefit of $5,000,
the reason being that her divorce was not recognized under Canadian law.
As I say in the note, these settlements are not questioned from any legal
point of view but I cited the case by way of suggesting that consideration
might be given to amending the Canadian Forces Superannuation Act in order
to provide for the enlargement of the executive discretion in dealing with
unusual cases of this character. We understand that the Department of Na-
tional Revenue and the treasury board since have agreed to suggest such a
revision to this act as or when it might next come up for consideration by
parliament.

Consequently, I suppose you might say this is on track toward remedial
action.

Mr. Millar, do you have any further information on this point?

Mr. B. A. MiLLArR (Audit Director, Auditor General’s Office): No. Mr.
Henderson; that is as much as we know. There is the intention of amending
the act in due course.

Mr. MANDZIUK: Mr. Chairman, this might seem like an idle question but
who decides the validity or otherwise of this woman’s divorce, and did that
come into your sphere of interest?

Mr. HENDERSON: No, that would not come into mine, Mr. Mandziuk, but
the divorce that the lady obtained was not recognized in Canada and, pre-
sumably, the Department of National Defence would have realized that.

Mr. Manpziuk: To follow this line of questioning up, that matter was
pursued after these moneys were paid out. Am I correct in my understanding
of this situation?

Mr. HENDERSON: Well, we noticed the payment going out and the cir-
cumstances under which it went out and because it seemed a very unusual
case we inquired into it, thereby giving rise to this note.

Mr. ManpzIUK: Would it be unusual for the department to pay out moneys
in spite of the doubt which someone might have had in respect of the validity
of such a case?

89
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Mr. HENDERSON: Provided their regulations permit it, yes. This is what
happened here; this was not a divorce within their recognition and, accord-
ingly, she was as eligible as the next person to this settlement.

Mr. McMiLLAN: Did this lady apply for the supplementary benefit or was
it paid out automatically?

Mr. HENDERSON: Would you care to answer that question, Mr. Millar?

Mr. MiLLAr: It was paid out automatically. It was due to her or the
estate, but in this case as she was the wife it was paid to her.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Mr. Chairman, I recall
during the war provisions were made for paying allowances to common law
wives in many instances. I, myself, have been asked to inquire into such cases
and I recall that the position taken at that time was that if it was a permanent,
stable, relationship the woman was regarded as the man’s wife. Would that
apply in a case such as this?

Mr. HENDERSON: I suppose you might say this is the reverse situation
because there really was no relationship.

Mr. CamEeERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Although there would
appear to be a link between the two you are saying that the legality of the
relationship is the question in point.

The CHAIRMAN: There was an amendment to one of the pensions acts not
so long ago which permitted payments to a common law wife, but they did not
apply here; it was restricted to that particular pensions act.

Gentlemen, are there any further questions?

Mr. McM1LLAN: According to this, the executive has the discretion to refuse
payment to a wife who is living apart for a number of years. Is there
anything definite in respect of the number of years?

Mr. HENDERSON: That is true. Could you comment on this, Mr. Millar?

Mr. MiLLAR: The act just says a number of years immediately prior to
his death. But, that is the only discretion they have.

Mr. McMiLLaN: How long had this lady had a divorce?
Mr. MiLLAR: Just a short time.

Mr. HENDERSON: Yes, it was just a short time.

I think if we might follow up the steps which the department and the
treasury board intend to take toward revising this act we then might report
back to the committee if, in fact, nothing is done when the act is opened up
for amendment. It would seem to me to be the point you would like me to
follow up.

The CHAIRMAN: Possibly we could discuss this further when we are deal-
ing with the 1963 report and, in particular, some matters in respect of national
defence or this particular act.

Mr. HEnDERSON: We will have the deputy minister before us at some time
in the future and at that time we can make reference to it, if that is your wish.

The CHAIRMAN: Yes, that would be fine.
Paragraph 80 follows:

80. Aircraft and equipment received under Canada-United States
defence agreement. During the year under review an agreement was
entered into between the Canadian and United States governments where-
by, among other things, Canada acquired 66 F-101 (Voodoo) aircraft and
appropriate support equipment in return for an undertaking to operate
and maintain certain Pine Tree radar line stations until 1968 (at a total
estimated cost of $170 million). This agreement was announced in the
House of Commons (debates, 1960-61, pp. 6179-80).
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The aircraft and equipment were recorded, quantitatively, as addi-
tions to air force inventories in accordance with normal departmental
practice. However, the value of the items was not recorded in the gov-
ernment’s central accounts and consequently is not included in national
defence expenditures for the year. Neither is there any explanatory
reference thereto in the public accounts.

Mr. HENDERSON: Paragraph 80 recites the circumstances under which air-
craft and equipment was received by Canada under the Canada-United States
defence agreement. Perhaps you will recall this agreement was discussed in
some detail in committee of supply in the House of Commons during considera-
tion of the air force estimates in 1961-62.

I have drawn attention to this in my report to show how aircraft and
equipment valued at approximately $170 million was not recorded. However,
the value of the items was not recorded in the government’s central accounts
or included in national defence expenditures for the year. Now, it is my opinion
that a transaction such as this should have been referred to in the public
accounts, if only by a parenthetical note or a reference by the Department
of National Defence because it has a bearing on the activities or expenditures
of that department, and unless recognition is given to the principle of recording
transactions of this character in this way you will appreciate, I think, that the
system of internal financial control tends to be weakened.

I do not know whether or not members have any questions on this matter.
That was the observation I made at the time, which I considered to be a valid
one in the circumstances. I would like to have seen it referred to in the public
accounts because I think it had a place there.

The CHAIRMAN: Are there any questions on this particular item?

Mr. WasN: How would this expenditure be authorized in fact, if it was
an expenditure of $176 million for 66 aircraft and paid for by the services?
Would this not have to come under some general item in the estimates and
receive some parliamentary approval?

Mr. HENDERSON: Well, Canada for its part, as explained in the note, under-
took to operate and maintain certain Pine Tree radar stations until 1968, at
a total estimated cost of $170 million. That aspect of the expenditures was of
course explained in the estimates, and in fact was adopted and passed. I have
made reference to which. We received 66 101 Voodoo aircraft and appropriate
support equipment. My point is that I think the members should have been
advised from the public accounts, which should have reflected the fact that
that was what Canada received in return for the $170 million that you voted.

Mr. Tarpir: Would it not have eliminated both by setting forth what we
did pay in fact of what we had to pay?

Mr. HEnDERSON: That is true; but the nature of the transaction was a
swap between Canada and the United States. A parenthetical note of some
description is the way I would like to have seen this recorded in the public
accounts; otherwise it is lost track of and any system with internal outlays
tends to be weakened.

Mr. Manpziuk: Would the Auditor General question the authority to
spend this $170 million?

Mr. HENDERSON: Well, the $170 million was set out in the estimates and
passed by parliament.

Mr. Manpziuk: Oh, yes.

Mr. HENDERSON: We accepted aircraft in payment from the United States.

Mr. CAMEROI?I (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): It seems to me that we
spent the $170 million for the upkeep of the Pine Tree line.

Mr. HENDERSON: And in return we accepted the aircraft.
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Mr. HARKNESS: In actual fact some of these Pine Tree line stations have
been closed, so actually the cost would have been less than this amount.

Mr. HENDERSON: The agreement was explained in detail in the house.

Mr. HARKNESS: And in addition there was another very considerable com-
plex deal which also involved the joint purchase and manufacture at Canadair
of approximately 150 104 aircraft for mutual aid in Europe.

Mr. HENDERSON: Yes.
Mr. HARKNESS: That was part of the same deal.

The CHAIRMAN: Would it not be correct to ask if in each year that the
moneys were spent for the maintenance of the Pine Tree line there would be
an item in the estimates covering that particular amount?

Mr. HENDERSON: That is right.

The CHAIRMAN: But your point is that at the beginning of the whole trans-
action a note would have been desirable to explain the basis of it.

Mr. HENDERSON: Well, my comment or criticism here is purely on the
method of recording this transaction and on no other aspect. It seems to me—
and I know business concern who enter into a transaction of this type would
realize that it becomes a matter of some importance that it be clearly recorded
—that the same principle should be recognized in government. I would like to
know if you gentlemen would not agree with me on that point.

Agreed.

Mr. MaNDzIUK: In the final analysis Canada was not money out.
Mr. HENDERSON: Oh, no, sir, not at all.
Mr. ManDpzIUK: It was just a matter of bookkeeping, wat it not?

Mr. HENDERSON: Well, I did not employ those words, but I think it would
be more in keeping with standard accounting practice were such a transaction
recorded in the manner which I described.

The CHAIRMAN: Are there any further questions? Shall we move on to
paragraph 81.

81. Financial assistance to the Town of Oromocto. Vote 247 provided
for grants to the town of Oromocto for municipal services and to pro-
mote the development of the town, and grants of $1,529,400 were paid
under this authority during the year under review.

In 1955 the approval of the governor in council was obtained by
the Department of National Defence to develop the proposed town,
which was in due course incorporated in 1956 by an act of the province
of New Brunswick. The main purpose of the development was to pro-
vide municipal facilities to serve personnel stationed at Camp Gagetown,
while, at the same time, avoiding the growth of a purely military com-
munity. It is administered by a board of seven commissioners, four
appointed by the federal government and three by the province.

In order that the town would not start under a heavy burden of debt
the department turned over to it, without charge, the roads and services
already installed in the service housing area, together with certain parcels
of crown-owned land. This assistance was augmented by capital grants
totalling $1,500,000 and an arrangement was made whereby capital
assistance loans, to be secured by the town’s debentures, could be made.
As the town did not have the usual type of municipal tax structure, it
was also arranged that until it had developed to a point where it could
operate normally the federal government would pay annual operating
grants, representing the difference between the town’s operating expenses
and its revenues. In this connection it was proposed that the initial
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operating grant should be $100,000 for 1955-56 with annual increments
of approximately $25,000 during the next five years, the actual amount
of each increase to be approved by the treasury board. While it was antic-
ipated that the assistance by the department during these first few years
would suffice until the town could operate normally with the aid of
grants under the Municipal Grants Act, this has not turned out to be the
case and federal grants towards operating expenses of the town have
continued at a very high level. The following table summarizes the out-
lays of public funds since the town was established:

Capital
Capital assistance Operating
Year grants loans grants
1955-56 .... $ 750,000 — $ 50,000
1956-56-"110 750,000 - 50,000
1957-58 . ... -— $ 1,500,000 350,000
1958-59 .... — 1,500,000 960,000
1959-60 .... — 1,000,000 1,656,000
1960-61 .... —— 450,000 1,600,000
1961-62 .... — — 1,529,000

$ 1,500,000 $ 4,450,000 $ 6,195,000

Repayments received in respect of the capital assistance loans totalled
$423,000 to March 31, 1962, together with interest amounts totalling
$692,000.

The town’s operating costs for the calendar year 1961 amounted to
$1,602,000 while its revenues totalled only $81,000, including tax revenues
of $27,000 and provincial governments grants and subsidies of $9,000.
The Department of National Defence owns 1,900 housing units in the
town, representing about 909 of the value of all town property.

Attention is drawn to the foregoing because, in addition to the
extensive grants and loans made for capital purposes, the operating
grants that were required to be made since 1956-57 have greatly exceeded
original expectations and there seems little likelihood of the town being
able to operate normally in the foreseeable future (see also para-
graph 142).

Mr. HENDERSON: Paragraph 81 describes how grants and loans were made
to the town of Oromocto, New Brunswick, and the extent to which they have
exceeded expectations, with little likelihood that the town can operate normally
in the foreseeable future. It might be better if we should withhold discussion of
this item perhaps until you have the deputy minister of national defence pres-
ent who might care to speak on this particular case. However, we can deal with
any question that you might have.

Mr. McMiLLaN: I notice that the government owns 90 per cent of the
property and that somebody else owns the other 10 per cent, I take it. Do they
have a definite tax structure in that town?

Mr. HENDERSON: I believe so, Dr. McMillan. Perhaps Mr. Millar could speak
to this.

Mr. M1LLAR: There seems to be a definite tax structure because they received
certain amounts by way of taxes.

Mr. HARKNESS: Yes, there is a definite tax structure. The whole thing is

that the amount of land that is privately owned and subject to tax it is very
small. Practically the whole town is D N D housing and associated utilities. The
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shopping centre, which is the chief business end of the town, is owned by a
crown corporation, but the title of it is under the Department of National
Defence also. Therefore you have nothing to tax in the normal sense except this
very small amount of privately owned property. And this grant which has been
made was made as being the equivalent to what would be granted, let us say, to
the city of Ottawa or to any other city where D N D property exists, in lieu of
taxes.

Mr. McMiLLAN: In other words, the government pays no other tax than
these grants.

Mr. HARKNESS: They make these grants in lieu of taxes under the Depart-
ment of National Defence; whereas in most cases it is made by the Department
of Finance. For example, I do not know how many millions a year go to the city
government of Ottawa in lieu of taxes.

The CHAIRMAN: Does the committee feel it would like to stand this item in
case any further information is requested when the deputy minister is here at
a later date?

Agreed.

Paragraph 82.

82. Unauthorized use of crown-owned vehicles. From time to time
cases have been observed in the audit where accidents which have been
costly to the crown have occurred during the unauthorized use of National
Defence vehicles. For example, in the year under review a payment of
$14,500 was made to a woman who suffered injuries when struck by a
departmental vehicle that had been used without authority in England
in 1958. The driver of the vehicle was reprimended and undertook to
reimburse the crown $250, a sum equivalent to the maximum recovery
permissible under the regulations applicable when vehicles are driven,
with authority, on official business.

The Department of National Defence Act provides for imprisonment
of up to two years “or to less punishment” for the unauthorized use of
departmental vehicles; however, there is no regulation that allows any
amount to be recovered from a serviceman where a loss to the crown is
involved in such cases.

The treasury board recently called the attention of all departments
and agencies to a directive that had previously been issued for the pur-
pose of controlling the non-official use of crown-owned vehicles and urged
the tightening up of procedures in view of the increasing number of acci-
dents to vehicles being driven by employees while not on duty.

Important as this is, we believe it would serve as a more effective de-
terrent to the unauthorized use of crown-owned vehicles were more
severe penalties assessed against the offenders.

Mr. HENDERSON: This note describes the damages required to be paid to a
civilian, to the extent of $14,500 where a national defence vehicle was being
driven without authority. As the note explains the driver of the vehicle was
reprimanded and had to reimburse $250 to the crown, this being the maximum
amount recoverable under existing regulations in cases where vehicles are
driven without authority on official business. Where vehicles are driven with-
out authority the Department of National Defence Act does provide for im-
prisonment of up to two years or “to less punishment”. However, there is no
regulation indicating what is to be recovered from the serviceman when the
crown incurs a loss in such cases. In view of what I have said here, we should
appreciate having the views of the committee on a matter such as this, because
as we see it, it would surely be a more effective deterrent to the unauthorized
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use of crown-owned vehicles if more compulsory financial penalties were
provided for. In fact it seems to us to be about the only way to stop such a
practice.

Mr. Waun: I would have thought that where a serviceman who is an
employee of the Department of National Defence used a vehicle in an un-
authorized manner and got involved in an accident in which he presumably
was to blame, that otherwise the crown would not be penalized by damages,
and that the crown would have a right of action over against that serviceman
under the general principle of the law, unless there was something in the
National Defence Act which would prevent it. Was the Auditor General in-
formed whether or not the legal opinion had been obtained that the department
had no right in regard to this particular serviceman I would have thought it
would have had such a right.

Mr. HENDERSON: It is our understanding that the law officers of the Depart-
ment of National Defence did not feel—and I will be corrected if I am wrong—
that the department had that recourse because the National Defence Act itself
only seems to provide for imprisonment up to two years or “to less punishment”.

Mr. WauN: I would be very surprised at that. The mere fact that a penalty
of imprisonment is provided should not do away with the ordinary right of
any employer to recover from any employee for negligent conduct.

Mr. HEnDERSON: I would have thought so.
Mr. WaHN: It would deserve inquiry.

Mr. HENDERSON: We took this up with the treasury board and, as you will
notice from the top of page 34, the action they instituted was to call the at-
tention of all departments and agencies to a directive they gave before tighten-
ing up on the use of crown-owned vehicles because of the number of accidents
that were developing while vehicles were being driven by employees who were
not on duty.

Mr. WaHN: My suggestion would be to ascertain from the responsible
authorities whether or not, under the law as it stands at present, the crown
has a right to recover from such an employee because, if it has, perhaps no
further legislative action is required. All that would be required would be
effective action to be taken, because the paragraph does not indicate that this
usual right has been in any way lost as a result of special legislation.

Mr. HENDERSON: I might mention here—and I should perhaps have men-
tioned it earlier—that we updated this matter in our 1963 report. It says:

The Department of National Defence considered the matter at length
following our drawing the above-mentioned case to its attention. A
departmental memorandum in August 1963 reporting on the result of
this consideration put forward the view that since payments in respect
of claims by third parties are made on an ex gratia basis in cases where
accidents occur during the unauthorized use of departmental vehicles,
regulations for recovery in such cases would not be justified, it being
stated that “in view of the extremely limited applications for recovery
by the crown it does appear that there would be difficulty in justifying
a departure from the common law position that the person who makes an
ex gratia payment where there is no legal liability on him to do so gains
no right of action for recovery from the person whose actions gave rise
to the claim”. The position of the Department of National Defence there-
fore remains that while the National Defence Act provides for disciplinary
action in such cases, there is no provision for all or any part of expendi-
ture by the crown to be recovered from servicemen involved, except
on a voluntary basis.
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Mr. WAHN: This indicates that this is not a payment the department was
required to make; it was an ex gratia payment made voluntarily without any
legal obligation.

Mr. HARKNESS: This has always been a difficult area. When a case of this
kind has taken place it has generally been felt that there was a moral obligation
on the department to reimburse the civilian who happened to be injured and
so forth, although there was no strict legal obligation. It has therefore always
been a matter of judgment whether or not, an ex gratia payment should be
made. If the circumstances have seemed to be hard, an ex gratic payment has
generally been made.

Mr. HENDERSON: While we are discussing this, Mr. Chairman, we might
consider this as disposing also of our 1963 note since that report is coming up.

What I would like to ask the committee is whether they do not agree with
our view in the audit office that further consideration should be given to this
matter to the end that there may be uniformity in the penalties imposed in like
circumstances on all persons using crown-owned vehicles without authority.
Should they not be uniform across the board?

The CHAIRMAN: Would this be the case, that where the serviceman takes
the vehicle without authority it immediately raises a doubt whether any legal
liability falls upon the department by law? Consequently, when they make a
settlement it is made ex gratia, and this raises a doutb whether under common
law principles there is any real right to indemnity, as Mr. Wahn says, against
the serviceman. I suppose your suggestion is that the committee should consider
making this a statutory requirement.

Mr. HENDERSON: If the committee would recommend the proposition that
consideration should be given to the matter so there is uniformity, then our
hands will be strengthened towards pursuing it.

On page 39 of the 1963 report you will note that I say that during the year
1962-63 three instances of accidents involving crown-owned vehicles driven
by employees of the Department of Transport—and that is another department
involved—while not acting within the scope of their duties, came to attention.
In each case the treasury board directed that the employee concerned reimburse
the crown to the same extent as is provided by the Claims Regulations in a
case where an employee is considered as having been on duty at the time of
the accident and to have been negligent to other than a minor extent, the
result being that there were assessments of one-third in two cases and
one-fifth in the third, of the cost to the crown. When giving its ruling in the
third case the treasury board agreed to deal with it on the same basis as in
the two earlier cases, but it—the treasury board—expressed deep concern in
the matter and directed the department that in like cases in the future full
recovery is to be made from the employees involved.

That was the experience in 1962-63, and that supports our view, I feel,
that consideration should be given to the matter to the end that there may
be uniformity in the penalties imposed in like circumstances on all persons
using crown-owned vehicles without authority.

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Rock, and then Mr. Mandziuk.

Mr. Rock: Mr. Henderson, your concern is not with the person who is
injured and who sues the government for his injury but rather with the person
who uses the vehicle without authorization?

Mr. HENDERSON: That is right.
Mr. Rock: This is clear in your report here but some questions have

been asked along the lines of whether the government should pay for the
injuries or not, and I do not think that should fit into the picture at all.
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Mr. HENDERSON: In the case mentioned in my 1962 report the Department
of National Defence had to pay out $14,500 to the woman—

Mr. HARKNESS: They did not have to pay it.
Mr. HENDERSON: —who was struck in England.
Mr. HARKNESS: It was an ex gratia payment.

Mr. HENDERSON: That is correct. Of course, the recovery from the man
who was responsible was much less than that amount. In the case of the
Department of Transport in 1963 the treasury board assessed those employees
in a considerable proportion. They based their assessment on the circumstances
of the case into which they examined at quite some length.

Mr. Rock: I feel the committee should agree in its recommendations that
the people who are unauthorized should pay for the damages. I do not see
anyone speaking to the contrary, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. ManDzIUK: While I agree with Mr. Rock that the employee using the
vehicle when not in the course of his duties should be made to repay whatever
is the cost to the crown to settle the claim, I feel the department should have
some discretion, if for no other reason than that in some cases the employee
may have no money and the crown would just make the best deal it could
with him.

Do you suggest that arrangements should be made for a follow-up
procedure in this connection in order to recover the whole amount?

Mr. HENDERSON: I would agree with that because the department, just
as in the case of the Department of Transport here, submitted their case to the
treasury board and in their joint wisdom they saw fit to make the best deal they
could under the circumstances.

Mr. ManpzIUK: You feel that he should be made to pay as much as he
can and if you cannot get the whole loaf half a loaf is better than none.

Mr. HENDERSON: That is the very point. I am asking only that you support
a consideration of this.

Mr. HARKNESS: Mr. Chairman, my point is along the same line. Whilst
theoretically perhaps it is desirable to have the penalties imposed, particularly
the financial ones, uniformly, in actual cases it would be impossible because
in the case of the Department of National Defence those who generally do this
sort of thing are privates with a very small income, to start with, and with
no assets whatsoever. They are people who are not too responsible so there
is no practical means really of recovering very much from them, particularly
in view of the regulations which state that every soldier has to receive a certain
amount of his pay no matter what penalties have been imposed upon him or
what fines he is subject to and so forth. That is essential in order that you
do not end up with a lot of people without any money whatever as a result of
impossible situations.

Mr. McMiLran: I was- just wondering if the crown carries any insurance
or if they have an insurance fund set up for the operation of crown vehicles?

Mr. HENDERSON: No, they do not carry insurance, Dr. McMillan. But, of
course the additional point I made here was that when the $250 was reimbursed
by the driver to the crown in the 1962 case this amount was reimbursed only
because the chap who had been guilty of driving this vehicle agreed to
reimburse them. That is the way the regulation is written.

Mr. McMrLLAN: There must be a number of these incidents occurring all
the time. Is that correct?

Mr. HENDERSON: Yes. And, in answer to Mr. Harkness I certainly have a
full appreciation of the position of privates driving vehicles without authority

but I do think irresponsible types elsewhere in departments are equally
culpable.
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Mr. HARKNESS: My whole point is that while in theory a uniform regula-
tion in this regard might be desirable, in practice it could not be made uniform.

Mr. HENDERSON: I would leave that to the department and treasury board
to work out; so long as the principle can be endorsed by the committee I think
they are competent to make the best deal they can in each case.

The CHAIRMAN: Did you have a question, Mr. Rock?

Mr. Rock: No, Mr. Chairman. I was going to mention something along the
lines of Mr. Harkness’ point, namely, the difference between national defence
and the other departments. The fact this exists in the Department of National
Defence, where we have a lot of people, such as privates, some of whom are not
responsible people, does not mean we actually have the same in every other
department.

Mr. HARKNESS: It is not a matter of not being responsible; it is a matter of
them having a small income and no assets.

Mr. Rock: So, we are using different words. We could say financial responsi-
bilities.

Mr. ForBEs: Mr. Chairman, I always understood that army personnel were
under very strict discipline and I would imagine that anyone who took a
vehicle unauthorized would be severly reprimanded or perhaps made to pay
for any damages that were created as a result of his using a vehicle. I am some-
what a a loss to understand how someone could get away in a situation such
as this.

Mr. CaMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Mr. Chairman, I gather
that Mr. Henderson’s point is not so much the hope of recovering whatever
damage the crown has to pay but so that it would act as a uniform deterrent.

Mr. HENDERSON: That is exactly right.

Mr. WaHN: As I understand it, from what Mr. Henderson has said, if a
serviceman gets involved in an accident when he is on official business and
if there has been negligence, then he is obliged to repay the crown a certain
amount under the claims regulations, but this is not so when he takes a vehicle
without any authorization at all. I gather what Mr. Henderson is recommending
is that at the very least he should be under the same obligation when he takes a
vehicle without authorization as he is under when he takes a vehicle on official
duties. I think this is certainly very reasonable.

The only other question I have is this. Under what authority are these
ex gratia payments made? I agree that in some cases, even though the crown
may not be under any legal liability, it is proper an ex gratia payment should
be made. But, under what authority is it made?

Mr. HENDERSON: Well, the crown is making a number of ex gratia payments
all the time. The treasury board are passing them in respect of situations of
this type.

Mr. WaAHN: But under what authority or what head in the estimates?

Mr. HARKNESS: Under the authority of a treasury board minute.

Mr. HENDERSON: Yes, that is correct, in every case after a full examination
into the circumstances and an exhaustive examination, as in the case of
the three accidents which occurred to the Department of Transport vehicles
which were being driven without authority.

My point is expressed in the last paragraph in my 1963 report. I was hoping
that you might support me when I ask that further consideration should be
given to this matter with a view to there being uniformity in the penalties
imposed in like circumstances on all persons using crown owned vehicles
without authority because this matter has been cropping up for some years
now. In fact, I think I recall several similar cases quite some years ago when we
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had the subject before this committee. It would be very helpful to have you
support this proposition in order to see what further results we might be able
to achieve toward this uniformity.

The CHAIRMAN: Are there any further questions on this subject.

I wonder if before we consider this further it would be possible to have
a minute in respect of the claims regulations and the application of them, and
how they might differ. Are these claims regulations very voluminous?

Mr. HENDERSON: Can you speak to that, Mr. Millar? Are the claims regula-
tions very voluminous and would it be possible to distribute copies of them for
study of members of this committee?

The CHAIRMAN: It would be helpful to have at least a minute presented
to the committee describing the effect or synopsizing it.

Mr. HENDERSON: I think you were speaking of the Department of National
Defence ones as distinct from the Department of Transport.

Mr. D. A. SmitH (Audit Director, Auditor General’s Office) : There are what
is known as the claims regulations, which relate to government departments
generally; these are not too voluminous and we could have these prepared for
presentation to members of the committee.

The CHAIRMAN: I think this would be very helpful when we are making our
decisions in this matter. I think it would help us to have these so that we will
know how they relate to the Department of National Defence and how they
correspond to the other departments. Is that not correct?

Mr. HENDERSON: Yes. In order that I may have this right, do you also want
the claims regulations of the Department of National Defence as well as those
relating to claims generally?

The CHAIRMAN: Yes, both.

Mr. HENDERSON: If we furnished these to the clerk they could be appended
to the minutes of the next meeting.

The CHAIRMAN: That would be fine. Gentlemen, may we now proceed to
the next paragraph, which reads:

83. Indirect contribution towards provincial taxes. In last year’s
report (paragraph 73) attention was drawn to an anomaly in the opera-
tion of the Hospital Insurance and Diagnostic Services Act in that the
federal government, in effect, contributes towards provincial taxes, there
being no provision in the Hospital Insurance and Diagnostic Services Act
or regulations for the exclusion of these taxes from hospital operating
costs shareable under the hospital insurance scheme and claimed by the
provinces.

There has been no change in the situation during the past year
and our observation therefore still applies. No estimate is available of
the amount of provincial tax payments which the federal government
may have shared in this manner. This anomaly also exists to some
extent in the operation of the Unemployment Assistance Act, 1956, c.26.

Mr. HENDERSON: Paragraph 83 of my 1962 report describes how the
federal government, in effect, contributes toward provincial taxes because
there is no provision in the Hospital Insurance and diagnostic Services Act or
regulations providing for the exclusion of such taxes from hospital operating
expenses which arg shared under the hospital insurance scheme and claimed by
the province. I might say, of course, that this problem is related to the whole
field of federal-provincial fiscal arrangements. You might feel it desirable to
divert consideration of this question at this time. But, it was a matter I felt
should be brought to your attention.
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Mr. McMiILLAN: To what provincial taxes do you refer? Are you referring
mainly to the provincial sales tax?

Mr. HENDERSON: Yes, that is correct, Dr. McMillan.

The CHAIRMAN: Are there any further questions on this paragraph?
If not, we will proceed to paragraph 84, which is as follows:

84. Unemployment Assistance. In paragraph 74 of last year’s report,
the Audit Office opinion was restated that the Unemployment Assistance
Act, administered by the Department of National Health and Welfare,
includes ambiguities which have resulted in varying interpretations, and
that the text merits further consideration. Our examinations during
the year under review have served to confirm this opinion. It is under-
stood, however, that possible changes in the legislation and the use of

regulations are currently under study by the department.

OVERPAYMENTS TO CERTAIN PROVINCES.—Of the several overpayments
reported last year, the amount owed by the Province of Nova Scotia
was determined to be $52,000 and final adjustment was made during the
year. Also recovered was the remaining $45,000 owed by British Colum-
bia.

In Quebec the final adjustment in respect of discrepancies referred
to in last year’s report and which related to the period from July 1,
1958 to September 30, 1959, is still under consideration; meanwhile,
$731,000 has been recovered. Overpayments for the period October 1,
1959 to March 31, 1960 are estimated at $338,000. The bulk of the over-
payments was caused by confusion in interpreting the sections of the
Act and Agreement dealing with homes for special care, either the
homes or the inmates not being eligible for a variety of reasons.

A preliminary review of the claims from the Province of Quebec for
the period April 1, 1960 to December 31, 1961 indicates that there has
been a substantial overpayment, $127,000 of which was recovered in
October 1962. In addition to actual disbursements, the province in-
cluded in monthly claims amounts to cover assistance provided by homes
for special care and welfare agencies not yet included by these bodies
in their claims to the province. This practice appears to circumvent the
provisions of section 13 (a) of the agreement under which reimburse-
ment claims from the province are disqualified if made later than six
months following the last day of the month to which they relate. Also,
under this procedure it would not be possible to comply with section 5 of
the agreement which requires each claim to indicate the total number of
persons assisted during the month to which the claim relates and the total
amounts paid on behalf of such persons.

The arrangement noted last year whereby the audit services division
of the office of the comptroller of the treasury has been assisting the
provincial auditor of Quebec continues. The practice followed in other
provinces whereby the provincial auditors’ examinations of claims and
certifications in accordance with the agreements precede separate exami-
nations made on behalf of the federal government will, we understand,
be implemented once the joint audit has been completed to Dcember 31,
1961.

HOMES FOR SPECIAL CARE.—With regard to the cost of maintaining
needy persons in provincial or municipal homes for special care, there
continues to be a wide variation from province to province in the ele-
ments of cost entering into the calculation of monthly accommodation
rates. Also, it has been difficult to determine and apply the limitation on
accommodation rates for homes for special care imposed by section 7(a)
(iv) of the agreement; that is, payments claimed are not to exceed what
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an individual might reasonably be expected to pay for accommodation of
a comparable kind and quality in the same location. For example, in
Quebec considerable confusion has arisen because, under the province’s
distinctive financial arrangements with homes for special care, it is ex-
tremely difficult to determine what a person might reasonably be ex-
expected to pay. With respect to provincial or municipal homes falling
into the category of homes for special care, this limitation is usually
replaced by the inmate-day-cost basis. In one Prince Edward Island
institution a monthly rate calculated on this basis and shared by Canada
was $118; yet until January 1, 1962 when it was raised to $120, the
monthly board rate for this institution approved by provincial order in
council was $90. The rate shareable by Canada is open to question as it
could be contended that the amount a person might reasonably be ex-
pected to pay pursuant to section 7(a) (iv) of the agreement, and there-
fore shareable by Canada, is the approved board rate.

Another provision of the act and agreement relating to homes for
special care is that unemployment assistance costs may not include pay-
ments to or on behalf of inmates of homes for special care who would
normally be cared for in certain institutions, and among those listed are
chronic hospitals, mental institutions and institutions for incurables. No
satisfactory criteria have yet been developed to distinguish clearly be-
tween patients who would normally be cared for in such institutions on
the one hand, and in homes for special care on the other. Indeed in the
administration of this Act it appears doubtful that the term “institutions
for incurables” has any precise meaning, and it is not defined.

WORK FOR RELIEF.—In last year’s report reference was made to claims
by some Ontario municipalities where recipients had been required to
work in return for assistance given them. The department concurred in
our opinion that such assistance was not shareable under the agreement
and during 1962 recovered $32,300 from the province in respect of this
assistance. However, after discussions with the province, the depart-
ment believes that the practice is not widespread and has decided that
attempts to determine its extent in some 900 other municipalities through-
out the province would not be practicable in view of the expense and in-
convenience the province feels would be involved.

SUPPLEMENTAL ALLOWANCES.—In last year’s report (paragraph 74)
we commented that the department had agreed that supplemental allow-
ances normally excluded under section 4(2) of the act could be regarded
as additional relief payments in accordance with section 4(3) (b) of
the act and section 8 of the agreement when they are based on an indi-
vidual budgetary assessment of need in which basic expenditures as well
as income are considered. We also expressed doubt about the way in
which the assessments had been made in British Columbia. Our doubts
were confirmed by our review of the accounts for the period from
September 1, 1960 to July 31, 1961 and by the findings of the audit
services division of the office of the comptroller of the treasury. Their
interim report disclosed overpayments estimated at $111,400 which were
recovered during the year.

In addition, we noted two different scales of maximum basic assist-
ance being applied, the more generous one being for those eligible for
supplemental allowances. Although need may vary to some extent from
person to person or from region to region, it would seem that a person’s
needs should not be considered automatically to increase after eligibility
for supplemental allowance has been established. Also, if these allow-

ances are permitted to be claimed as unemployment assistance, the pro-
20960—2
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priety of maintaining the three year residence requirement for former
residents of other provinces is open to question, because section 4 of the
unemployment assistance agreement specifically excludes length of resi-
dence as a condition for receipt of assistance by these applicants. It
would seem that uniform standards of assistance should be applied if
supplemental allowances are to be considered shareable under the Unem-
ployment Assistance Act.

MOTHERS’ ALLOWANCES.—The TUnemployment Assistance Act
provides for the exclusion of recipients of mothers’ allowances, a pro-
vincial scheme to assist mothers whose families have been deprived of
the wage earner. As it was envisaged that such cases would be shifted
from the mothers’ allowance program to general welfare and claimed
under unemployment assistance, as indeed has happened, provision was
made in the agreement for an amount to be deducted from the provinces’
unemployment assistance claims to compensate the federal government
for sharing in the cost of what was provided formerly through the
provincial mothers’ allowance program. However, there is a time lag
built into the formula for calculating the deduction which results in the
sharing of the equivalent of full costs of the mothers’ allowances for a
year before the deduction becomes fully effective. While the financial
consequences may be insignificant if a few mothers’ allowance cases
are included in the general social assistance caseload, what may not
have been contemplated was the effect that would be produced were
the entire mother’s allowance caseload merged with the general social
assistance caseload within a short period, as has occurred in some
provinces. If the remaining provinces follow this pattern, unemployment
assistance costs will increase very substantially in the year or so before
the deduction becomes fully effective.

It has also been observed that in some instances the merger of the
two caseloads is artificial in that the mothers’ allowance type of case is
preserved within the framework of general social assistance and some-
times singled out for special treatment. It is doubtful if this was
intended by the legislation.

STRENGTHENING ADMINISTRATIVE CONTROL.—Ambiguities in the act
and resulting varying interpretations at the federal, provincial and
municipal levels make the department’s administration of the unem-
ployment assistance program unnecessarily difficult. Following consulta-
tion with officials of the department, we have suggested that the act
could be more effiectively administered were the department to as-
semble its own internal audit group to take responsibility for the
verification of unemployment assistance costs claimed by the provinces.
Such a group, experienced not only in auditing techniques but in the
special requirements of this legislation, should be able to provide the
day to day liaison with the provincial and municipal governments that
the department requires to anticipate and prevent, or resolve, difficulties
in administering the program so that substantial overpayments do not
arise. This suggestion is in line with the general proposal advanced
in paragraph 18 of this report regarding greater use of internal auditing
staffs by departments.

Mr. HENDERSON: This paragraph in respect of unemployment assistance,
as members may recall, was the subject of extensive discussion by the com-
mittee in its meeting on December 9 last, at which time Dr. Willard, the
deputy minister of welfare, appeared as a witness. I referred to this when we
were considering the follow-up report, so perhaps you might wish to pass
it over at this time.
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The CHAIRMAN: The matter is still under consideration at the federal-
provincial level.

Mr. HENDERSON: Yes.

The CHAIRMAN: Paragraph 85 is next;

85. Hospital construction grants. Grants to each province and ter-
ritory are provided by an annual parliamentary appropriation and are
subject to the terms and conditions set out in the estimates details and
in the health grants rules approved by the governor in council. The
grants thus provided consist of the annual allocations, plus additional
funds to cover the cost of completing projects begun in prior years but
which has not been completed as planned.

Proposals for individual hospital construction projects are submitted
by the provinces and, following approval by the Minister of National
Health and Welfare, the relative grants are payable in four instalments
as construction progresses.

Vote 260, as supplemented, provided $19 million for the fiscal year
1961-62, the text also including *. . . authority, notwithstanding section
30 of the Financial Administration Act, to make commitments for the
current year not to exceed a total amount of $29,660,152”. However, it
is inherent in this program that commitments be entered into not
only for the current fiscal year but also for future years, to the extent
that hospital construction plans require. It therefore follows that if
there is to be effective parliamentary control a limit should be imposed
on commitments that may be entered into for future years as well as
the current fiscal year. Actually, at March 31, 1962 such commitments
outstanding amounted to approximately $40 million.

Although an annual appropriation is intended to provide sufficient
funds to discharge all commitments coming in course of payment during
the year, it was noted that at the year-end, after the appropriation had
been fully expended, unpaid claims for approved grants in respect of
completed construction work were outstanding to a total of $6,000,000.
Of this amount, $4,000,000 due the province of Quebec could not have
been paid even if sufficient funds had been available in the ap-
propriation because the allocation to this province for the 1961-62
fiscal year had already been fully expended. This situation was the
outcome of the practice of approving projects involving instalment
payments in excess of the federal government’s annual allocation of the
grant.

Mr. HENDERSON: This paragraph refers to hospital construction grants.
The point made here is that this entire program is one based on a five year
period of planning for the purpose of better administration and more effective
parliamentary control. It has seemed to me the commitment limits should
be for the full five year period rather than attempting to keep it on an
annual basis. We in the audit office would like to see the figure for the five
year period spelled out clearly in the vote wording. I might say that the
Glassco commission dealt with this particular point also in their recent re-
ports and their recommendation was that the present reporting and account-
ing requirements for health grants be reviewed and simplified and considera-
tion be given to placing health grants programs on a period of years basis.

It would be of assistance to us if we could have the views of the members
of the committee on this subject.

The CHAIRMAN: Are there any questions on this paragraph? If not, might
we pass on to paragraph 86, which reads:

86. Irregular employment of doctors and dentists—Indian and

Northern Health Services. For some years the civil service commission,
20960—23
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on behalf of the medical services directorate of the Department of Na-
tional Health and Welfare, has been unable to recruit sufficient num-
bers of doctors and dentists to completely staff the Indian and northern
health services’ hospitals and smaller establishments, which provide
medical care to Indians and Eskimos. To fill the gap, unlicensed prac-
titioners, frequently new Canadians, have been used by the depart-
ment on the understanding that they would seek to become licensed
as soon as possible. Not being licensed to practice, these persons do
not qualify for the positions of “medical officer” and “dental officer”
and the civil service commission will not appoint them to fill vacant
positions in the department’s establishment. Accordingly the depart-
ment pays these unlicensed practitioners for their services on a fee
basis at regular monthly rates, the payments being charged as “pro-
fessional and special services”. Although not having the legal status
of employees, they are treated as such.

Attention was drawn to the need for corrective action in the 1956
report (paragraph 75). However, a review in 1860 revealed that the
department was still employing twelve unlicensed practitioners in the
manner described above. In June 1961 the Department, the civil service
commission and the treasury board agreed that professionally qualified
doctors and dentists who were not yet licensed but whom the depart-
ment desired to employ would be certified as technical officers by the
commission on the understanding that they would attain licensed status
within a reasonable time and would be subject to replacement by fully
licensed medical officers whenever these were available. This solution
was never put into operation, and we observed that the services of six
doctors and seven dentists, none of whom was appointed by the civil
service commission, were used and paid for on a monthly stipend basis
as a charge to “professional and special services” during the year under
review.

Mr. HENDERSON: I might say we referred to this matter also in paragraph
72 on page 45 of my 1963 report and perhaps we could have a word about
it again at that time when it will come forward.

The CHAIRMAN: Is that paragraph 85?

Mr. HENDERSON: Paragraph 85 in the 1962 report and paragraph 73 in
the 1963 report. It will come up again.

Paragraph 86 has to do with the irregular employment of doctors and
dentists in Indian and northern health services.

Under this note we draw to attention the fact that the Department of
National Health and Welfare continues to employ unlicensed practitioners.
In fact, it has been doing so ever since 1956 when we first drew this matter
to your attention.

Now, while this continues to be the case, as the note describes, the fact
remains that the need of the services of practitioners, unlicensed or not, is
urgent, and the problem is being met, although not in the orthodox manner.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Are these unlicensed
persons people who have medical qualifications from other countries and are
unable to be licensed by the appropriate medical association here?

Mr. HEnNDERSON: That is my understanding.

Under note 86 I explain that to fill the gap unlicensed practitioners, fre-
quently new Canadians, have been used by the department on the under-
standing they would seek to become licensed and, by that, I presume is meant
the provincial authority. A

Mr. CaMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): It does not imply that
they necessarily are unqualified.
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Mr. HENDERSON: No sir, I think not.

Mr. J. R. DoucLAs (Audit Director, Auditor General’s Office): No, it does
not. They are qualified in other countries.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): But they are not legally
licensed in this country?
Mr. DoucLas: No.

Mr. Tarpir: Well, so long as they are trained personnel and qualified in
another country I do not see any great harm in that, especially if they are
merely putting in the time so that they can be qualified in Canada.

Mr. HENDERSON: There is no doubt about that. But, this is the type of
situation we have to bring to your attention because it is not in accordance
with the requirements of legislation. But, I presumed you might not regard
it as an overly serious point.

Mr. Tarpir: I do not imagine there are any cases where someone is un-
trained or unqualified and is serving in that capacity. I presume they are all
holding diplomas from some university.

Mr. HENDERSON: Also they are required to be appointed by the civil service
commission. But, they are not so appointed because the civil service commis-
sion is obliged to appoint only licensed persons. Is that not correct?

Mr. Doucras: Yes, and, accordingly, these people are not employed by the
commission.

Mr. PiLon: Could you give us some idea of how many of these are qualified
to practice?

Mr. HENDERSON: Can you speak to that, Mr. Douglas?

Mr. DoucLAs: Yes. Of the 11 that we speak of in this note all of them have
eith er left or now have qualified. This is ceasing to be the problem it was when
this note was introduced.

The CHAIRMAN: Are there any other questions on this point? If not, let us
proceed to paragraph 87:

87. Health grants. Vote 259 authorizes general health grants to the
provinces “upon the terms and in the amounts detailed in the estimates
and under terms and conditions approved by the governor in council”,
and the estimates details provide for ‘“general public health grant to
assist in extending and improving health services”. Section 10 of the
health grants rules, 1961, approved by the governor in council, dealing
with this grant further provides that “from time to time a province
may, as part of a satisfactory plan or program for the strengthening of
health services, both provincial and local within such province, includ-
ing the training of personnel and the conduct of surveys and studies,
submit to the minister a project together with a budget therefor”.

Lack of precise definition of the terms “general public health” and
“health services” has created a problem in the audit of payments charged
to the general public health grant. The Department of National Health
and Welfare has placed a broad interpretation on these terms and feels
that “there are few restrictions in the scope of a program intended to pro-
vide assistance to the provinces to deal with the health of the people
of Canada”. In accordance with this attitude, the department has in
recent years approved a number of projects whose purpose is the
assistance of research programs at universities through the provision of
scientific and technical equipment and furnishings. These research pro-
grams may result in advances in the general body of medical knowledge
and thus assist in ultimately improving the health of the population
generally or of individuals afflicted with specific illnesses, but there is



106 STANDING COMMITTEE

some doubt that they constitute an extension or improvement of pro-
vincial or local health services. The following ‘“projects” will serve to
point up the problem:

Project 609-9-112—Research equipment and fittings for the
medical science buildings, University of British Columbia: During
1960-61 a total of $104,862 was authorized and spent on research
equipment and fittings for the medical science buildings at the
university and an additional $41,866 was expended during 1961-62
for the same purpose. The equipment and fittings purchased with
general public health grant funds are used in research projects
financed by the university and other interested bodies but were
not procured specifically to carry out general health grants projects.

Project 605-9-213—Electron microscopes fo rthe University of
Toronto. Two electron microscopes were purchased and installed
in the Banting and Best institutes, one in 1959-60 at a cost of
$28,785 and the other in 1961-62 for $31,979. These microscopes
are available to research staffs of the faculty of medicine housed
in the two institutes and used only to a limited extent in connection
with specific general health grants projects undertaken at the
university.

Attention is drawn to the matter because parliament may not
have intended the general public health grant to have been given such
wide application.

Mr. HENDERSON: Paragraph 87 on health grants shows you the type of
projects which are being carried out under the general health grants authorized
for this purpose. There are two examples given on page 39 and you will see
how far afield the concept of these health grant projects has gone. We would
appreciate the opinion of members of the committee on this point because this
is typical of questions with which we are often faced. Did parliament intend
that general public health grants should have been given such a wide applica-
tion? You will see the type of projects which are being approved by parliament.
The placement of equipment and so on in universities raises quite an interesting
point.

The CHAIRMAN: Are there any questions on this paragraph?

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): I take it that the Auditor
General is questioning the propriety of these grants.

Mr. HENDERSON: Well, sir, as I have explained in note 87, it is the lack of a
precise definition of terms employed by the governor in council. The general
public health, and the health services are left open, and the problem arises
about the payments charged to general public health grants. The Department
of Health and Welfare has placed a broad interpretation on these terms, and
it feels that there are a few restrictions in the scope and program indicated to
provide assistance to the provinces, and to deal with the health of the people
of Canada. In accordance wih this attitude, the department has in recent years
approved a number of projects whose purpose is the assistance of research
programs at universities through the provision of scientific and technical equip-
ment and furnishings. These research programs may result in advances in the
general body of medical knowledge and thus assist in ultimately improving the
health of the population generally or of individuals afflicted with specific illness,
but there is some doubt that they constitute an extension or improvement of
provincial or local health services.

I cited two projects in order to show you what is being charged up to
these votes. I have to be governed by section 10 of the health grant rules, 1961,
as approved by the governor in council, which does not appear to me to be as
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wide in range as the type of thing they are putting in. On the other hand,
parliament may feel—and I think an expression of opinion from this committee
would be of inestimable help to us—that it is placing a pretty broad interpreta-
tion on this, when it comes to putting equipment of this nature into hospitals.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): These two projects which
you cite here are quite definitely limited to the provision and training of
personnel and they are attached to faculties of medicine at universities, and
surely personnel must include medical personnel.

Mr. HENDERSON: I would like to ask Mr. Douglas who has made a study of
this vote, to answer your questions.

The CHAIRMAN: I wonder if you would mind standing up, Mr. Douglas.
I have been informed that there is difficulty in your voice carrying to the
microphones. If you stood up it would be a little better.

Mr. Rock: We have no difficulty down here.

The CHAIRMAN: No, I was not referring to you, I was referring to the
microphone system.

Mr. DoucLAs: The point here is that there are a number of grants under
health grant rules which are tied into parliamentary appropriations. There is,
for example a public health research grant, and there is a general health grant,
and the difficulty is that normally the general health grant has been used
actually to improve provincial and municipal health services. For example,
there is assistance in municipal health units, assistance to public health
laboratories, and there is the training of personnel. Then there are grants
charged to this in connection with mobile dental clinics, assistance in training
sanitary inspectors, and so on, which are normally left out of public health.
In this instance we have a case where equipment is simply given to a university
with no strings attached, and the question is how broad or how narrow is the
interpretation of general public health to be?

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): You say it has been given
with no strings attached. Actually there is an implied string, that it is a specific
project for the faculty of medicine at the respective university which is con-
cerned with the training of medical personnel.

Mr. DougLas: Yes, in that broad sense, yes; but the point is it is not specif-
ically related to provincial and municipal health services. It is in a very broad
sense true general public health, quite possibly.

Mr. CamMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): You realize that there
must be adequately trained personnel for the health services.

Mr. Doucras: Yes, quite.

Mr. HARKNESS: It is given to these universities to provide scientific equip-
ment under certain items.

Mr. HENDERSON: That is an excellent way to put it. That has been our feel-
ing. Your discussion I think is of considerable help to us.

Mr. HARgNESS: It would seem to me to be parallel to a case where the
Department of Transport might use money voted to improve canals to build
docks.

Mr. HENDERSON: I suppose so.

Mr. WAHN: It seems to me that probaly more flexibility is not only desirable
but absolutely necessary. Certainly it strikes me that these two examples given
are very useful ones.

Mr. HENDERSON: We are not questioning them at all.

Mr. WaHN: It is my understanding that insufficient funds have been provi-
ded in Canada for medical research, and that Canada has been dependant on
grants from the United States and other countries. Certainly I would have
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thought that if there is to be more research in medicine, then equipment is of
course essential for that purpose, and that this perhaps would be the most
beneficial way in which the money could be spent to improve general public
health. Flexibility is needed because parliament cannot be expected at the time it
approves the estimates to determine the best possible manner to extend these
funds. I think a reasonable discretion has to be given to those responsible. It is
important of course that the money should be spent on wothwhile projects.

Mr. HENDERSON: We are not questioning the projects as such. It is because
of the difficulty we encounter in our work in interpreting parliament’s intentions.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): How about equipment
for treatment purposes such as the X-ray bomb and so on. Do they come under
this?

Mr. HEnNDERSON: I think Mr. Douglas who has just been speaking about it
should answer. Dr. McMillan raises the question about the X-ray bomb and
things like that to provide hospitals under this vote.

Mr. Doucras: I think that would come under general public health grants,
and under the particular grant we are speaking of.

Mr. Rock: Could the gentleman who just spoke give us an idea of what
type of grant the government usually gives to universities and to help hospitals
when they are constructed, and to provide beds? What procedure does the
government take to grant these amounts of money for such equipment in the
hospitals? Personnally I think it is more or less a backdoor sort of thing. I think
Mr. Henderson is to be commended for the fact that he has found how this
should be done. I think it is irregular too, in the sense that it evidently is not
aid at all in the over-all health program of the area in treatment and all that.
It is for training in universities, for which possibly grants should have been
given from other sources.

Mr. DoucLAs: Normally assistance to hospitals is given through the hospital
construction grant, where I believe it is to be the lesser of two, that is, $2,000
per bed or bed equivalent, and $750 for a bed for living quarters, or one third
of the cost, whichever is the less. This is the general principle under which the
federal government gives assistance.

Mr. Rock: What about the universities? Are they not given grants by
the federal government?

Mr. DoucLAas: The hospital grant would not cover universities.

Mr. Rock: I am thinking of grants given when there is an extension to a
university? I believe that sometimes the federal government gives a grant, and
the provincial government allows it.

Mr. DoucLas: I am not sure, but I do not believe there is any direct as-
sistance given from the federal government. I believe it would come through
the provincial government, but I am not certain of the details.

Mr. TAarDIF: The same thing applies to the payment of grants by the federal
government. It is only given when matched by the province.

Mr. Rock: I have just found the backdoor.

Mr. TarpIF: Is the grant given by the federal government as a per bed
grant and given only when it is matched by the province?

Mr. Doucras: That is one of the conditions, yes.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): Is there an appropriate

item under which the federal government could make grants for these things
which are directed specifically to medical training.

Mr. Doucras: I am not sure about that, but I would say there are some.
For example, in the medical research council which, is an autonomous body
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within the program of the national research council, money is granted to
scientists to purchase major items of research equipment and facilities for
training research workers and so on. That is one source that I know of.

Mr. CAMERON (Nanaimo-Cowichan-The Islands): That is a very broad
general category. It is not specifically related to public health or to the de-
velopment of health services, or medical services.

Mr. DoucLAs: No, it is not specific.

Mr. SoutHAM: I think the problem here concerning the Auditor General
is well stated in the second paragraph which reads as follows:

Lack of precise definition of the terms “general public health’” and
“health services” has created a problem in the audit of payments
charged to the general public health grant.

Now, with reference to the comments made by Mr. Rock, I think it is pos-
sible that these grants are beneficial and should be considered. I am referring
now to the two citations here, the two examples. I know, for example, that at
the university hospital at Saskatoon, which is a university centre, they have a
school of nursing where they train a lot of nurses, and they go out into the
province to help with the health programs carried on in that province. I feel
that if we could come to some agreement to help Mr. Henderson to determine
the question more specifically under this particular vote, and to clarify the
definition of public health service, it might help to solve his problem. I can
see how he is a little concerned, because it is certainly somewhat of a fringe
area. I would go along with it.

Mr. HENDERSON: The opinions thus far in this discussion are most helpful to
us. It is my general impression that your consensus of view is that it is in
accordance with parliament’s intention. You have a case here where they
have left the carrying out of it to the department of Health and Welfare to
interpret in their administration, but we are not criticizing their administration
sir.

Mr. SoutHAM: Mr. Chairman, if this definition could be redefined in a
little broader scope it would be very helpful, I think, to Mr. Henderson.

Mr. HENDERSON: Possibly a few more details would be helpful with re-
gard to the intentions in the details of the estimates.

Mr. Gray: Mr. Chairman, if the vote permits the grants to be made on
the terms and in the amounts detailed in the estimates and the terms and
conditions approved by the governor in council—and the governor in council
has used very broad phrasing—I ask with the utmost respect that the Auditor
General should try to find a clear definition of these terms.

Mr. HENDERSON: I think it is because we are concerned at all times, and
must be, with what parliament intended.

Mr. Gray: You are not suggesting that at the conclusion of certain studies
dealing with specific health grants and projects, for example, if the equip-
ment is not completely used up or amortized in some way there is something
wrong with having it provided in the first place?

Mr. HENDERSON: No, sir, that is not our point.

Mr. HARKNESS: Your point really is the control of parliament over expend-
itures.

Mr. HENDERSON: Exactly, and discussions such as this are of great help
to us in studying these matters, as we do year after year.

The CHAIRMAN: Are there any further questions?

Mr. HARKNESS: It would seem to me that the desirability of medical re- .
search should not be injected here as, we will say, an excuse for money
which has been voted for some other purpose being used for that particular
purpose. I would agree with Mr. Henderson that there should be a more pre-
cise definition of what is meant by public health grants in this case.
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Mr. HENDERSON: If I might just answer that, Mr. Chairman, would Mr.
Harkness not perhaps subscribe to the proposition that the vote text might
usefully be enlarged in this instance to make it abundantly clear? If the
members would subscribe to that it would be a very useful recommendation
for us to have.

Mr. HARKNESS: In other words, if the purposes of this grant were put
down in more precise terms, as I said, then your difficulty would disappear?

Mr. HENDERSON: Exactly. Thank you very much for this discussion, gentle-
men.

The CHAIRMAN: May we pass to item 88.

88. Doubtful title to property in Newfoundland. In paragraph 76
of last year’s report reference was made to three crown-owned resi-
dences in Newfoundland which were taken over by the provincial gov-
ernment when they were vacated temporarily by customs and excise
officers in January 1957 and October 1958. As previously mentioned,
the Department of National Revenue was of the opinion that these
residences were the property of Canada in accordance with sections
33 and 34 of the terms of union, but the province did not agree. The
houses are still occupied by provincial officers.

Mr. HENDERSON: If I might be permitted, I should like to ask Mr. Long
to speak to the next two or three items because of his close familiarity with
the circumstances, beginning with paragraph 88 which deals with doubtful
title to property.

Mr. LonG: This paragraph refers to three houses out of a group of four
in Newfoundland that were used for customs officials at the time of con-
federation.

A question has arisen as to the ownership of these houses, and it seems
reasonable that this question should be settled in accordance with sections 33
and 34. If the houses are to be kept by Newfoundland, perhaps there should
be some settlement made with respect to the expenditures which Canada has
incurred during a brief period in which Canadian officials occupied them.

The ownership of these houses is not agreed at the present time. In 1963,
when the treasury board was having rental rates set for houses, these were
included and rental rates were set for them. In fact, they are being occupied
by employees of the government of Newfoundland and, of course, no revenue
is coming to the crown. It may be that the Department of National Revenue
would like to make some comment on that.

The CHAIRMAN: Are there any questions on this particular paragraph,
gentlemen?

Mr. MANDZIUK: Is the situation still the same?

Mr. Long: It is still the same. This note refers to three houses of four.
The fourth house in the group is occupied by an employee of Canada and these
three houses are occupied by or are in the possession of the province of
Newfoundland.

Mr. HARKRNESS: Is this not a case, actually, in which the matter can only be
settled by agreement between Canada and Newfoundland? Some arrangement
should be made. In other words, this is a very small illustration of exactly
what happened so far as the United States military base in Newfoundland was
concerned, which was claimed by both Canada and Newfoundland. The dispute
went on for years. Eventually a deal was made and it was divided. This is
a very small example of the same problem.

Mr. LonGg: Yes.
The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Ryan.
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Mr. Ryan: I was going to ask why the title was doubtful, but I think
Mr. Harkness’s question has cleared it up.

Mr. LonGg: Under the terms of union it would appear that the houses
should have belonged to Canada. This was the interpretation of the Depart-
ment of National Revenue. The view was held to the extent that at one time
they did evict an employee of the province of Newfoundland but, subsequently,
when the houses became vacant, Newfoundland took possession. Mr. Harkness’s
suggestion is certainly one that should be carried out. We have not been able to
make any progress in this.

Mr. Tarpir: Was there any evaluation made of these properties, Mr.
Chairman?

Mr. LonGg: I do not think this has been a factor. Under the terms of union
the ownership was determined by the use to which buildings were being put
at the time of union. If they were being used by personnel occupied with
services taken over by Canada, they were to go to Canada. If the services
were retained by the province, then the houses were to stay with the province.

Mr. TaArpir: I think Mr. Harkness is right, and this should not appear
again; it is not such a large item.

The CHAIRMAN: Are there any further questions on this, gentlemen?

Mr. Rock: I do not know in which manner we are proceeding, Mr. Chair-
man, and it may be that I missed a meeting. We appear to be considering the
report item by item, and I notice that after the members of the committee
have spoken or have asked questions we proceed to other items. Do you not
think we should more or less come to some agreement immediately on the
recommendations of the Auditor General and then, instead of coming back to
these matters again, make a general report? Do you think in this case, for
instance, we should state what we immediately recommend at this moment
rather than coming back to these items and wasting all that time?

The CHAIRMAN: This is a matter for the committee. Many of these matters
are carried on in the 1963 report of the Auditor General. A large number are
also reflected in the follow-up report.

Mr. Rock: Then, with the 1963 report, how are we to proceed? Are we
to make a recommendation immediately or agree with the recommendation of
the Auditor General as soon as it is discussed and finished with?

I am just trying to find a short cut in order to save time, Mr. Chairman.

The CHAIRMAN: May we hear from you, Mr. Henderson?

Mr. HENDERSON: My impression has been, Mr. Rock, that as we go along
the members have been making some very useful suggestions, such as those
resulting from our discussion on the health grants. In this particular case I
rather felt that both Mr. Harkness and Mr. Tardif summed up this problem
by stating it was a small matter; but small or not they have expressed the
hope that it would be speedily resolved. Perhaps, as a result of this discussion
in the committee that will be the case. We will be watching it, and I certainly
hope the department will be able to resolve it very shortly.

Mr. Tarpir: In many of these items we do not have the power to finalize,
in any event. We only have power to make the recommendation, and the
authorities will finalize it eventually.

Mr. Rock: I think the committee itself should, somewhere along the line,
make a direct decision. In other words, we should recommend this or that, or
just not recommend anything on certain items.

Mr. WincH: Our procedure over the years, I think, has worked out very
effectively. There has been consideration of each item and a notation made
through our transcripts of the views of the members. However, a decision
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now has to be by way of recommendation and report. After we have gone
through the report—according to our past procedure—Mr. Henderson, the
Chairman and the steering committee will make a study of all the transcripts
and, from the expression of opinion, they will draft a report so that all the
ideas and recommendations can go forward to the House of Commons and,
through the House of Commons, to the various departments, expressing the
thinking of the committee,

As soon as that is done by the steering committee, then it is brought back
to a general committee. At that stage there can be agreement or non-agreement
or perhaps a certain member may think something has been left out during
the work done by the steering committee, and then he may bring it up.

That has been the procedure over the years and I think it has worked very
efficiently.

Mr. Rock: I think there should be a consensus of opinion at the time the
item is discussed. Some people ask questions in one way and then they do not
feel the same when they have heard the answer, so I believe that as soon as
the item is finished with there should be some sort of consensus; and a decision
should be taken at that moment so the steering committee can embody the
decision in the report.

The CHAIRMAN: Generally, Mr. Rock, we do take the consensus as it goes
along. If matters are controversial, I think the usual practice—although it is
not sanctified in any way—is for final committee deliberations to be held in
camera, at which meetings these are discussed and a resolve is made.

May I also point out that in some of these cases, while we may be passing
through them rapidly now—and I think Mr. Winch and other members will
agree that this has been the practice followed in the past—we will call
departmental officials or give them an opportunity to be heard so we may
hear both sides before a final decision is made.

In an item such as this, on which there is a fairly clear indication of the
committee’s view, this would not be a problem and it would come in the
final report.

If we were—and I say this with some diffidence—to pause and take a
vote on each item we would in some cases be premature by not giving an oppor-
tunity to the members to hear evidence on other aspects of the matter, and we
would not be following the usual committee procedure, which is to hold our
deliberations in camera.

However, this is something which the steering committee can discuss when
it next meets.

Is there any further discussion on this item, gentlemen?

Paragraph 89 follows:

89. Release of goods under Customs Collector’s permission. Subsec-
tion (1) of section 22 of the Customs Act, R.S., .58, reads as follows:

Unless the goods are to be warehoused in the manner by this
Act provided, the importer shall, at the time of entry pay down, or
cause to be so paid, all duties upon all goods entered inwards;
and the collector or other proper officer shall, immediately thereupon,
grant his warrant for the unlading of such goods, and grant a permit
for the conveyance of such goods further into Canada, if so required
by the importer.

In addition, section 79 of the act reads:

No person shall make, nor shall any officer accept, any bond,
note or other document for the purpose of avoiding or deferring the
actual payment of duties legally accruing on goods imported into
Canada, or arrange for deferring payment of such duties in any way,
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unless such goods are entered for warehouse, and duly deposited
therein according to the laws and regulations governing the ware-
housing of such goods.

Notwithstanding these statutory directions, it has been the practice
of the department for many years to release perishable goods prior to
the passing of a customs entry and payment of duty, providing the im-
porter has posted a bond or security as a guarantee of payment of duty.
The term “perishable goods” has gradually been extended and now
includes a wide range of goods.

There seems little doubt that the practice being followed facilitates
the clearing of goods through customs, and benefits both the department
and the importer. However, sections 22 and 79 of the act quoted above
appear specifically to prohibit what is being done and the act should be
amended if the practice is to be continued.

Mr. LonG: Paragraph 89 refers to the release of goods under customs
collectors’ permission. The situation described in this paragraph is designed to
show that although the practice facilitates the clearance of goods through
customs and benefits both the department and the importer, it is contrary to
sections 22 and 79 of the Customs Act. Accordingly, it would appear that the
act should be amended if the practice is to be continued.

The views of the members of the committee on this point of principle
would be appreciated.

The CHAIRMAN: Is there any discussion or are there any questions on this
particular point?

Mr. GrAY: I think the solution is already contained in the Auditor General’s
recommendation.

Mr. TARDIF: Except, Mr. Chairman, that I would like to know who decides
what is classified as perishable goods—the importer or an officer of the
department?

Mr. LoNG: The department gives rulings on what is perishable, but the
word “perishable” now involves almost everything at some ports I think. Even
coal is classified as perishable. This is done in order to get the imports moving.

Mr. Tarprr: I would agree that if it catches on fire it is perishable.

The CHAIRMAN: Any further discussion, gentlemen?

Mr. TaArpIF: Before we leave this item may I suggest that this word
“perishable” be redefined. If, as you say, coal is considered to be perishable on
some occasions, I would suggest that it requires redefinition. This may be a far
fetched example you are giving to me, and I hope it is. I could not possibly
agree that coal is perishable.

Mr. LonGg: Coal is one of the earlier commodities that were so defined. It
has been extended beyond that since coal was decided to be perishable. It is
purely a device for obtaining clearance without waiting for papers and, with
responsible importers, it has led to no problems.

Mr. TARDIF: It could lead to abuse.

Mr. HENDERSON: That is possible.

Mr. LonG: The Customs Act rules out the possibility of this leading to the
non-payment of duties.

Mr. Tarprr: On what do they base their opinion that coal is perishable?

Mr. LonG: Perhaps the phrase is ‘“urgently required”. It is to avoid delay.

Mr. Tarpir: Based on the season? If it is winter time it is perishable?

¢ Mr. Gray: It may be considered perishable from the market point of
view.
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Mr. HARKNESS: The main thing is that the procedures that have been
followed have greatly expedited the import of goods. This has been found
much more practicable than would have been the case if the officials had stayed
within the regulations. Your recommendation now is that the act be amended
in order to provide for this, and that seems to me to be reasonable. We should
accept that.

Mr. Tarpir: Without adding the term “perishable”.

Mr. HARKNESS: One would get away from the term “perishable” alto-
gether if the regulations were amended. One would be doing directly what one
is now doing indirectly.

Mr. Tarpir: I have no objection to that, of course.

The CHAIRMAN: It is eleven o’clock, gentlemen, we will adjourn until
9.30 on Thursday morning.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

THURSDAY, June 11, 1964

(6)

The Standing Committee on Public Accounts met this day at 9.40 a.m. The
Chairman, Mr. G. W. Baldwin, presided.

Members present: Messrs. Baldwin, Berger, Cameron (High Park), Cardiff,
Coété (Chicoutimi), Forbes, Hales, Mandziuk, McMillan, Pilon, Regan, Rock,
Ryan, Scott, Southam, Stefanson, Tardif, Winch—(18).

In attendance: Mr. A. M. Henderson, Auditor General of Canada; Mr. Louis
Richard, President and General Manager, Crown Assets Disposal Corporation;
and Messrs. Long, Laroche, Crowley, Chapman, Douglas, Smith, Millar and
Laframboise of the Auditor General’s Office.

The Chairman tabled two sets of Regulations respecting damage claims
referred to in discussion of June 9 on paragraph 82 of the Auditor General’s
Report for 1962. (Identified as Exhibit No. 1)

Mr. Baldwin referred to previous discussions relating to surplus materials
and invited Mr. Henderson to make a statement thereon.

Mr. Henderson referred to his undertaking to provide the Committee with
a detailed report on surplus materials and the administrative difficulty in
securing this information from Crown Assets Disposal Corporation.

The Chairman then called Mr. Richard, President of Crown Assets Disposal
Corporation, who made a statement in connection with the information
requested by Mr. Henderson and was questioned thereon.

After discussion, Mr. Richard agreed to provide Mr. Henderson with infor-
mation required by the Auditor General to make a detailed report to the
Committee.

It was agreed that Mr. Richard supply the Committee with a blank declara-
tion form and specimen copies of tenders.

The questioning of Mr. Richard being concluded, the witness was permitted
to retire.

. The Committee resumed its consideration of the Auditor General’s Report
for the year ended March 31, 1962,

On paragraphs 90 to 96 inclusive: Messrs. Long and Henderson commented
briefly and were questioned thereon.

On paragraph 92: On the suggestion of Mr. Winch, this paragraph was
allowed to stand and the Committee agreed to hear witnesses later from the
Department of National Revenue, Customs and Excise Branch.

The questioning of Messrs. Henderson and Long still continuing, at 11.00
a.m., the Committee adjourned until 9.30 a.m. on Tuesday, June 16, 1964.

M. Slack,
Clerk of the Committee.
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The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen I see a quorum. We will now convene this
meeting.

Before we do anything else, I should like to advise the committee that I
have here tabled, as requested at our last meeting, two sets of the regulations
in connection with damage claims and methods of proceeding where public
property has been damaged through the unauthorized use of vehicles. I think
all that is necessary is to table these, making them available to the members
of this committee. They are fairly voluminous and I hope that we will be
content to have them tabled and available so that they will be used, if neces-
sary, before we proceed with this matter.

Gentlemen, there is one other matter we should deal with before we carry
on. You may recall that at our second meeting Mr. Winch raised a question
in respect of Crown Assets Disposal Corporation and its relationship to the
estimates. At that time it was suggested that Mr. Henderson might come back
at the next meeting and make a statement in answer to questions, to the
extent that he had information available. This was done. This committee then
made the suggestion, which I consider was in effect a request to Mr. Henderson,
that he prepare a more detailed statement to bring to this committee and
when this had been done we would then arrange for the presence of Mr.
Richard, or other officials from Crown Assets Disposal Corporation and the
Department of National Defence, in order that we might fully go into this
question.

Mr. Henderson indicated to me recently that he was not in a position to
obtain that information. I have asked him to make a statement to this commit-
tee now in regard to his reasons for this inability. Mr. Richard, the president
and general manager of the Crown Assets Disposal Corporation, is also present
and when Mr. Henderson has completed his statement I am going to ask Mr.
Richard also to comment on this particular issue.

Mr. WincH: Mr. Chairman, I gather from what you have said just now
in respect of my request through you to Mr. Henderson that the Auditor

General is not able to obtain that information. I hope he will give us some
detail in that regard.

Mr. A. M. HENDERSON, (Auditor General of Canada): Yes, indeed.

The CHAIRMAN: I believe that is the basis of Mr. Hendreson’s statement
at this time.

Mr. HENDERSON: Mr. Chairman, I might remind the members that at last
week’s meeting Mr. Winch inquired as to the extent to which the audit office
follows through purchase of equipment and stores originating in departmental
estimates to their ultimate use. He was particularly interested as to the extent
to which such public stores and materials might be declared as surplus and
turned over to Crown Assets Disposal Corporation for sale. In considering this
question, members of the committee expressed interest in noting the reasons why
public stores and materials of this character would be declared surplus and to
know how much in fact would have been realized on disposal of such surplus
as compared to the original cost of the material.

117
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In my statement to the committee last Thursday, I referred to the Auditor
General’s responsibility in examining accounts relating to public property and
how the audit office discharges that responsibility. I took the fiscal year 1962-63
and by reference to the annual report of Crown Assets Disposal Corporation
cited the corporation’s reference on page 6 that during that fiscal year 12,061
reports of surplus were received. I explained that of this number, some 8,500
separate declarations of surplus material had been made by the Department
of National Defence. Of this number, approximately 2,600 declarations covered
new or otherwise usable materials having an aggregate cost to the Department
of National Defence of $39,500,000.

The committee asked me to undertake a spec1a1 examination of these 2,600
declarations for the purpose of determining the nature of the material, date and
amount of its original cost, the reasons for its declaration as surplus by the
department to Crown Assets Disposal Corporation, and how much the corpora-
tion collected from its disposal. I agreed to undertake this special study esti-
mating that it could be completed within three weeks or by June 30, with the
assistance of senior officers and staff both from the Department of National
Defence and Crown Assets Disposal Corporation.

The work must be started from the records of Crown Assets Disposal
Corporation because it is only from these records that we can identify the
declarations making up the 2,600 national defence ones we are seeking and
thus determine how much the corporation realized on disposal. However, it
appears we are faced with administrative difficulties in extracting this infroma-
tion from the records of the corporation under the timetable I gave to the
committee last week. It is for this reason that Mr. Louis Richard president of
Crown Assets Disposal Corporation, wishes to discuss the matter with you
this morning.

Thank you.

The CHAIRMAN: Thank you Mr. Henderson. I am not sure that Mr.
Richard, the president and general manager of Crown Assets Disposal Corpora-
tion, is known to all the members of this committee. He has appeared at my
request after a discussion, not to deal with the main issue which will be
referred to later but with what I might call a preliminary problem which has
now arisen and which I think has been accentuated by what Mr. Henderson
has said today.

Mr. Richard, would you mind discussing this problem with the committee?

Mr. L. RicHARD (President and General Manager—Crown Assets Disposal
Corporation): Mr. Chairman, Mr. Henderson has approached us recently to
ascertain to what extent we can carry out such a study, and I assured him
that we would be pleased to co-operate and provide all the information we
could from our records, but that the difficulties which arose were primarily
those of time and staff. We are particularly pressed at this time of the year
and it would be quite a strain to undertake a detailed study. However, if
something else must suffer we will do so.

What I should like to point out is that although we state in our report
we have received so many thousand declarations in one year, that is our
figure. This figure of 8,500 in respect of national defence declarations, and
2,600 for new material, are not taken from our records. Apparently the idea
is to match our records with those 2,600 declarations which appear in the
Department of National Defence records. The difficulty in this regard lies in an
effort to match up these 2,600 with those which appear in our records, and that
is where the time would be consumed.

I have suggested that in view of the figures which have been produced
by Mr. Henderson, perhaps we could approach the problem from a study of the
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declarations which are in our records. We will produce the number, the original
cost which is covered by these declarations, and they should be substantially
the same as the others. However, we will not have to match up all these
declarations of the Department of National Defence with our records. Under
these circumstances the work would be much more simplified and would pro-
duce substantially the same information, or the same type of information, if
the members of this committee and Mr. Henderson are agreeable.

The CHAIRMAN: Thank you Mr. Richard. Are there any questions?

Mr. ForBes: I should like to ask one question for clarification. What does
Mr. Richard mean by ‘“declarations”? Does he mean invoices in respect of the
material? What does a declaration consist of in this case?

Mr. RicHARD: A declaration represents the first step. It is the receipt of
the surplus from the Department of National Defence. After that it goes through
all our different processes and ends up with an invoice to the customer.

Mr. ForBes: The declaration then has nothing to do with the quantity of
material?

Mr. RicHARD: Yes.
Mr. ForBEs: It is an invoice then?

Mr. RicHARD: Both the declaration and the invoice include the quantity of
material involved.

Mr. WincH: In order to pinpoint this a little bit, Mr. Chairman, because I
realize the difficulty involved in going through 2,600 declarations, could Mr.
Richard give us some general indication in respect of the sale of this new
equipment and the amount received as compared with the original cost? I
understand you show that information also on the declarations?

Mr. RicHARD: You are asking us if we can cite the average percentage of
recovery we make?

Mr. WincH: Yes, in respect of the equipment turned over to you.

Mr. RicHARD: We do not compute information of that kind, Mr. Chairman,
and the prices vary to such an extent the information would mean nothing
in any event if we did compute it.

Mr. WincH: I am sorry, did you say that if you had approximate informa-
tion regarding the amount received in respect of new equipment compared with
the original price that information would not mean anything?

Mr. RicHARD: That information would be based on so many thousand
declarations that even if it was 10, 20, 40 or 50 per cent it would not mean
anything.

Mr. WincH: I am sorry, I do not wish to put Mr. Richard on the spot but
I cannot understand what he means when he suggests that information in
respect of a comparative figure regarding the cost and recovery price of hun-
dreds of thousands of dollars worth of equipment would not mean anything.

Mr. RicHarD: That information certainly would mean something to the
taxpayer but it would not indicate anything to us.

Mr. Manpziuk: Mr. Chairman I am also interested in Mr. Richard’s answer
to my colleague. Perhaps if Mr. Richard cannot give us a figure regarding the
resale price of the new equipment, surely the Crown Assets Disposal Corpora-
tion balances its books at the end of the year and Mr. Richard can give the
members of this committee information regarding the book value of assets
received as surplus and the final receipts for the same after disposal? Are

there no bookkeeping systems in effect in the Crown Assets Disposal Corporation
at all?

Mr. RicHARD: We do not record the original costs.
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Mr. WincH: The original cost is indicated on the declarations.

Mr. ManNDzIUK: You do not have to record the original cost because, as my
colleague has pointed out, that cost appears on the invoice or declaration.

Mr. RicHARD: The cost appears on the declaration, that is right.

Mr. ManpzIuk: Do you record the price you receive for the material when
it is sold?

Mr. RicHARD: Yes.

Mr. ManDpzIUK: We should like to know those two figures. We do have
the figure of $39,500,000 and we should like to have the other figure whether
it is $500,000 or $2 million, so that we know where we stand.

Mr. RicHARD: We will have a record of the amount of proceeds we have
received, but even then that figure will not be broken up as between new
and scrap material or otherwise.

Mr. ManpzIiuk: I fully realize the difficulty involved in breaking up that
figure between new and old equipment. Perhaps that is an impossible task but
I am just as interested as Mr. Winch in knowing what the comparison is in
order that perhaps the impression generally throughout the country that
regardless of whether this surplus is new or used it is sold for practically
nothing can be dispelled or confirmed. I think it would be well for us to have
information in this regard.

Mr. HaLEs: Mr. Chairman, I apologize if I repeat some of the questions
that have been asked, but as I understand the situation, there has been
$39,500,000 worth of new equipment bought by the Department of National
Defence and turned over to the Crown Assets Disposal Corporation for resale.

Mr. WincH: Both new and used equipment is represented by the $39
million,

Mr. HaLEs: This committee would like to know how much of the new
equipment was sold by Crown Assets Disposal Corporation and at what price.
Mr. Richard has informed us that there are invoices or declarations in
existence. Perhaps he could produce one of those declarations so that we may
see what it is.

As I understand the situation, a declaration lists the item and the original
cost. We should like to know what the item was sold for. Apparently the
Crown Assets Disposal Corporation does not break down the receipts as between
new and used equipment, and if that is not being done now perhaps the
Auditor General’s department could set up a bookkeeping system as a result of
which these items could be divided into new and used so that at the end of the
year by adding up the original cost column and the price column, representing
the amount received when the items were sold, we would have an answer to
the question Mr. Winch has asked.

The CHAIRMAN: Do you have a declaration available Mr. Richard?

Mr. WincH: I have seen hundreds of those declarations and on the
declaration there is an indication regarding the equipment being new or used.
I think there is an indication on the declaration that the equipment is
guaranteed new but not warranted.

Mr. REGaN: Mr. Richard, as I understand the situation, the reason your
department does not keep track of whether the equipment is new, or the
original cost, is that the concern and purpose of Crown Assets Disposal Cor-
poration is to dispose of goods which are handed to you by the wvarious
departments; it is not your concern whether the department should have had
the materials in the first place, and it is not your concern why the department
handed the material over to you; is that right? I understand your concern
is to get the best possible price for the material, and in view of the fact you
dispose of the material on a competitive tender basis the original value is of no
particular consequence to your information; is that a correct assumption?
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Mr. RicHarD: That is correct.

Mr. WincH: That is of some consequence to the members of this com-
mittee. ;

Mr. REGAN: As Mr. Winch has suggested, this information certainly is of
interest to the members of this committee and I think we are all interested
in knowing what percentage of the original value of this equipment the
government has recovered in order than we can determine whether this is an
efficient method of disposing of that extra government equipment, or whether
some other system should be devised. Certainly I do not think that Mr.
Richard’s operation is subject to criticism because of the fact detailed records
in this regard are not kept. That is not one of the purposes of the Crown
Assets Disposal Corporation. The purpose of that organization is to dispose of
the surplus equipment by competitive tender.

Mr. WincH: May I point out by way of comment that as a result of
Mr. Richard’s evidence and my perusal of certain of these declarations I
know that the new price is known.

Mr. REGaN: Yes, I realize that the original price is known but what
Mr. Richard is saying is that it is not the purpose of the Crown Assets Disposal
Corporation to prepare a list of thousands of prices in respect of these items.
The individual inventory shows the original price and those prices are listed
for that purpose, but these records are not compiled into difference groups.
Is that right Mr. Richard?

Mr. RicHArRD: That is correct with one qualification. We do not always
have the original cost price on the declaration. We do have that price in the
majority of cases but somes cases do exist in respect of which we have not
got that information. Moreover, in respect of goods which are otherwise coded,
in probably 100 per cent of them we do not have the original cost.

Mr. HENDERSON: Perhaps I might speak in regard to Mr. Regan’s point. We
realize that Mr. Richard’s concern might not be with the original cost of the
material, and that is why I discussed this problem both with Mr. Richard and
the deputy minister of national defence, on the basis that using the records of
the Crown Assets Disposal Corporation as a starting point we would pick out
the appropriate number of the 2,600, which would account for the largest
portion of the $39,500,000 and then sit down and examine them. Mr. Armstrong
has already designated a senior officer and staff to sit down with us to go over

. these in order that we can furnish explanations regarding why the items were

purchased in the first place, the dates and the costs and why they were declared
surplus. That seems to us to be a very integral part of your question. We must
have a starting point and to all of us that starting point lies in Crown Assets
Disposal Corporation records.

Mr. REGAN: Beyond that, Mr. Henderson, is it not true that we can under-
stand why the Crown Assests Disposal Corporation has not been particularly
interested in original prices since it is operating on a tender basis? If we make
some determination in this regard we will then go back to the Department of
National Defence to find out why these goods were purchased in the first place,
why they were disposed of and whether in some cases the items were bought
in an unused condition so that we can decide whether the taxpayer is receiving
the largest amount possible in respect of the disposal of these goods? Surely the
information we are interested in receiving from Crown Assets Disposal Corpora-
tion has regard to the size of the lots of goods which are being put up for sale
by tender, how they determine whether new items should be tendered sepa-
rately or not or whether this is done on a lot basis with a great number of
different types of commodities included. I think we are also interested in
knowing who is allowed to compete for these commodities and what the
general overhead or operating costs of Crown Assets Disposal Corporation are.
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Mr. HENDERSON: May I answer that question by referring you to our
planning memorandum on this assignment? What we hope to get from the
records of the Crown Assets Disposal Corporation are the reasons for the
declaration as surplus to the corporation, the method of sale by the Crown
Assets Disposal Corporation—that is the type of method you described—the
date the articles were sold and the prices obtained, and in a final column a
calculation of the final profit or loss in each case, which would then give us the
disposition of the material in dollars and cents. I think that is the essence of
your question.

Mr. REGAN: The method of sale I presume would cover a wide field?

Mr. HENDERSON: Yes, and there will be a considerable amount of addi-
tional information supplied with the resultant dollars and cents calculation.

Mr. Carpirr: Is all this material being sold by advertisement tender or is
it sold individually? How is this material sold?

Mr. HENDERSON: Perhaps Mr. Richard could answer that question.

Mr. RicHARD: This material is sold by offer to dealers in the trade. We
request those dealers to put in their bids and the material is sold to the highest
bidder. The material is offered to dealers in the trade.

Mr. WincH: It is offered to the dealers in the trade who are on your
mailing list at their request; is that right?

Mr. RicHAarRD: We offer the material to the dealers in the trade who are on
our mailing list. I should like to point out that our mailing lists are not
restrictive at all but are prepared in order that when we have a specific item
of goods to offer the list is readily available and we can mail out circulars
asking for bids. It is sold by what is normally referred to as tenders or bids.

Mr. TARDIF: It appears to be the consensus that the committee would like
to know just how much of this unused material is sold and what is the difference
in price between cost and sale. I do not see what great problem would be
created if the department did go to the trouble of keeping at least a list of
new materials; it would only be an additional few bookkeeping entries, I
would think.

You could also find out whether that restrictive list that was talked about is
not more restrictive than it should be. I know people who wanted to bid on
some material which was declared surplus who were not only not invited but
whose bids were not accepted by the department. I am wondering whether this
restriction the department puts on by not accepting bids from anybody willing
to bid and willing to pay with legal Canadian currency is not too limited, and I
am wondering whether, if we did have a compilation of new material that is
sold and the difference in price, it might not induce this committee, for instance,
to make recommendations that might be put into effect next year that would
be an improvement over the present system.

Mr. McMiLLAN: Mr. Chairman, I would like to know the meaning of the
words ‘“new material”. Does it mean unused material or does it mean material
bought recently?

Mr. HENDERSON: It generally means material which has not been used.

Mr. McMiLLaN: Even though it is 10 years old?

Mr. RicHARD: There are various conditions of material. It could mean,
to go to the extreme, material that is new, has never been used, has been in
the original packing cases but has been there for years.

Mr. McMiLLAN: Could some of this material included in these 2,600
declarations called ‘“new material” have been purchased some years ago?

Mr. RicHARD: Yes.
Mr. McMiLLaN: Not necessarily recently?
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Mr. RicHARD: No, sir.

Mr. WincH: I am very glad that Mr. McMillan raised this question. I
personally know of equipment from the Department of National Defence that
was put up for tender two months ago in Vancouver and, to my knowledge,
because I am in the construction industry, has been out of date for 15 years,
and yet on the tender it was warranted as having been unused. So, this is all
part of the problem.

While I am speaking, sir, although it is the general picture that we are after
on what can be done, I was most interested in a remark of Mr. Richard a
moment ago, that all declarations do not necessarily give the purchase price,
although the majority do. I, therefore, have what I think is a logical question.
When you put that up for tender, not having known what the department
paid for it, how do you decide whether you will accept or reject that tender?

Mr. RicHARD: Largely on the experience of the past when we have offered
similar goods to the trade and we know the recoveries we have made in the
past. We can determine from that whether the highest bid is acceptable.

The CHAIRMAN: May I interrupt here? Have you that declaration Mr.
Richard? Possibly the messenger might pass it around. Some of the members
did express interest in it.

Mr. WincH: There is one further question that I have, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. HALES: Wait until we have this declaration. Have we one or have we
not?

The CHAIRMAN: I was going to ask Mr. Richard if he is in a position to
comply with the request of the committee.

Mr. WincH: I would like to ask now that I am certain that Mr. Richard
has an idea what the committee has in mind and what is the type of information
which we feel as a committee we should have on a most important matter
whether he can now, in his opinion, work out with Mr. Henderson a plan
whereby it will be possible, at least in a basic sense, to get the data which is
required by this committee?

The CHAIRMAN: Maybe you could postpone your answer to that, Mr.
Richard, until we find out about the declaration.

Mr. RicHARD: Just before I left my office, Mr. Chairman, I picked up half
a dozen files which are not very representative. I would hesitate to circulate
any of them to the committee.

Mr. HaLes: I simply asked for a blank declaration form so as to see the
the standard form. Have you a blank declaration form?

Mr. RicHARD: No.

Mr. HaLES: I am amazed that the witness would come to this meeting
without this material.

Mr. RicHARD: I was not asked to bring any.

Mr. HaLEs: We had better not waste any more time on this particular
question. I would think the committee has made a request for the information
which they want, the Auditor General is prepared to supply the informa-
tion to the committee if he has the co-operation and support of Crown Assets
Disposal Corporation, and I think the committee is entitled to know if the
Auditor General has this support, and if not, why not, and then we will
proceed with another matter.

The CHAIRMAN: Before we go on, I will go back to Mr. Winch’s questions
to which we did not get an answer. We should dispose of this question which
may be of consequence later. Is your position, Mr. Richard, that you feel you
_should not disclose the terms of the declarations - which have been made, or
is it just because the declarations are not representative? I am not concerned
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about today, but when you appear later; we should probably settle this thing
in advance. What is your view, as president of the corporation, on your rights
and duties with regard to presenting to the committee declarations which they
may wish to examine following Mr. Henderson’s comments?

Mr. RicHARD: I would be glad, if the committee desires, to produce a
representative sample of declarations.

Mr. WincH: That is not the request of this committee. The request of this
committee is that this matter is of such vital importance to all members of the
committee because of the disclosures which are now coming to our attention,
that, as the public accounts committee of the House of Commons, we want to
make a thorough examination. We do not want to have any specific or in-
dividual copies; we want to know what is the basis of, let us say, one depart-
ment declaring surplus $39% million worth of equipment of which, according
to Mr. Richard, a great deal was unused. What is the cost and what was
it sold for? We want that information right down the line, from beginning to
end. I think this is one of the most serious questions that has come to the
attention of the public accounts committee in the 11 years that I have been a
member of it, and we would be shirking our responsibility if we did not insist
on a complete study and an answer in order that we can do our duty in
making our report to the House of Commons.

The CHAIRMAN: It comes down to this, Mr. Richard. This is a prelim-
inary discussion now, but during the course of the main discussion, as I
understand the feeling of the committee, they may, and probably will, require
the production of such declarations as they feel are necessary to continue their
study and examination. I think it might be best to settle at this time what your
views are. Are you in a position where you feel you must refuse to produce
those, and if so on what basis?

Mr. RicHARD: Certainly not, Mr. Chairman.

The CHAIRMAN: So that if the committee calls for any particular declara-
tions, you would be in a position to produce them?

Mr. ScorT: Should we not be asking for something further than has been
asked for? It is my understanding from the discussions that the question we
are putting to the witness is whether he is prepared to make all files available
for Mr. Henderson’s examination, not just a representative number, or an
unrepresentative sample which he brought today, by his own words. Are you
prepared to produce all files in question for examination?

Mr. RicHARD: Yes, sir.

Mr. Rock: Mr. Chairman, I came in late, as you know. I want to know
what item we are on, and is it in the 1962 report?

The CHAIRMAN: No, Mr. Rock. This is going back to a matter which was
discussed at our second meeting, at which time Mr. Winch requested that Mr.
Henderson appear at the next meeting to answer a question he raised on the
relation between estimates and assets which had been disposed of under the
aegis of the Crown Assets Disposal Corporation. Mr. Henderson appeared at
the next meeting, and our committee then arranged, as I think it was virtually
an understanding, that Mr. Henderson would prepare a preliminary state-
ment for the use of the committee, and when that statement was ready then
Mr. Richard and the deputy minister of national defence would both appear
here, and with the aid of a statement prepared by Mr. Henderson we would
have then a full discussion of this whole problem which was raised by Mr.
Winch. What we are now discussing is the fact that Mr. Henderson feels
he has been unable to prepare the statement because he and Mr. Richard have
not been able to get together on the materials Mr. Henderson feels he requires.
This is what we are discussing now.
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Mr. Rock: I thought we were here principally to discuss the report of the
Auditor General. What I want to know is what report from the Auditor
General we are discussing concerning Crown Assets Disposal Corporation, or is
it that any member now can have any beef whatsoever and bring it up to
this committee?

The CHAIRMAN: No, Mr. Rock. This is a matter which was properly raised
dealing with the matter that came up in Mr. Henderson’s follow-up report.
The discussion was properly initiated and quite relevant at that time.

Mr. Rock: What was it all about, where is this report and on what item
was it?

Mr. STEFANSON: If you had come in earlier you would have known.

The CHAIRMAN: It appears in the second item in the follow-up report which
Mr. Henderson dealt with.

Mr. Rock: Last year?

The CHAIRMAN: No, of the follow-up report which is produced by Mr.
Henderson and which deals with the extent to which the departments of the
government have complied with the request which we made last year. We
started with that. Mr. Winch asked a proper and relevant question. We agreed
that Mr. Henderson should answer that question at the next meeting. As a
result of his answer the committee then decided that, following the preparation
of the preliminary report, there would be a further meeting some time in the
future at which a representative from the Department of National Defence, Mr.
Richard and Mr. Henderson, would be here. Now, we have arrived at an
impasse. In order for Mr. Henderson to prepare a statement which the commit-
tee asked him to prepare, he wants certain information from Mr. Richard,
and the inability to secure that information prompted him to come to me as
Chairman of this committee. I asked Mr. Richard to appear here so that the
committee, which is the proper place to discuss and decide this, should hear
both Mr. Henderson and Mr. Richard and come to a decision on it. It is a
preliminary point oh a matter which the committee has dealt with, and a point
for a study later on in the course of our proceedings.

Mr. RicHARD: May I interject here, Mr. Chairman? You speak of the in-
ability of Mr. Henderson to obtain this information. Might I say that we are
merely pointing out how large a task it is going to be and how difficult it is
to prepare this information on this basis. I would rather use the basis that we
start from our own records rather than the records of national defence.

Mr. HALES: I should like to speak to this point. I think the committee has
brought up a good suggestion for future comparison, and maybe the books of
Crown Assets Disposal Corporation could be set up on the basis that it would
be only a matter of ending a column at end of each six months or the end of
the year so that in future these figures would be available.

While I am speaking, Mr. Chairman, let me say that I think we have
achieved what we wanted, that is to get this on the rails so that the final report
can be made. I would just like to say, through the Chairman, that perhaps
one way of seeing these declaration forms is to have an appendix attached to
the report, or else have a blank declaration mailed to the members of the
committee so that we can study it.

The CrHAIRMAN: Could you forward a blank of one of these declarations?
We can have it appended to our proceedings and printed in today’s proceedings.
Would that be possible, Mr. Richard?

Mr. RicHARD: Yes.

Mr. WiNcH: And a number of specimen copies of tenders.
Mr. RicHARD: Yes.
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The CHAIRMAN: This would be useful background material when we have
our further discussion. We now come to the question raised by Mr. Winch.
Would you be able to repeat your question?

Mr. WincH: As a result of Mr. Richard hearing the discussion—and I appre-
ciate his appearance here this morning—he must now have a pretty clear
understanding of what is in the mind of the committee and why we want this
information. Does Mr. Richard now think, as a result of this discussion
these last forty-five minutes, that he and Mr. Henderson can now get together
so that between them this committee can have the information desired?

Mr. RicHARD: Mr. Chairman, it is a matter of time and of sufficient staff
to prepare this information.

Mr. WincH: Can you do it in a month?

Mr. RicHARD: We certainly feel that Mr. Henderson and I can get together
and prepare the information. :

Mr. WincH: That is all we need.

Mr. HENDERSON: May I speak to that, Mr. Chairman, and say this. I think
Mr. Richard has agreed with us right along that this job can be done the way
you want. However, if we follow the method he described, it would not, in
the view of my officers and myself, give you the end result you want.

Now, the real key to this is if he made available a senior man and sufficient
staff to enable this material to be taken out of his records. If he is in the posi-
tion to furnish me with a senior man and the necessary staff to get it rolling,
the same way as Mr. Armstrong proposes to do on his side for the Department
of National Defence, then we can get the thing under way.

As for the timing, I had hoped that it could be brought to you for your
meeting on June 30. What do you think about that, Mr. Richard? Do you feel
we can do it in two weeks?

Mr. RicHARD: I am not prepared to state any period of time.

Mr. WincH: I think we can end it in this way. As I originally raised the
question, I can say that we know how important all departments are. We have
a definite understanding on how shorthanded the Auditor General’s staff is.
I am quite certain, as a member of the defence committee, that t